0.50 6 File # Replication, Transcript, Smill Exhibits, Etc.

P. 0. Box 871 Jamuary 26, 1943

The Farmington Times Farmington, New Verice

RG: Case No. 126 - Notice of Sublication

Gentlemen:

D

and a

• •

۔ آ Flease publish the enclosed notice once, invediat 1. Hease proof-read the notice carefully and send a copy of the paper carrying such notice.

UPON COMPLETION OF THE PULLICATION, MULTING SECTION 13 APPIDAVIT IN DUPLICATE.

For payment please ou mit statement in duplicate, accompanied by voucher executed in duplicate. The necessary blanks are enclosed.

Yory truly Jours,

b AI

Allonia, antari, M**ilon**iar

eet 12. Al amore

PROOF OF JUBLICATION

State of New M ..., County of San Juan-85.

G. L. Butler

being first duly sworn upon his oath deposes and says :-- That during the time of the publication of the notice hereinafter mentioned, he was the

Manager

of the FARMINGTON TIMES HUS-TLER, a weekly newspaper published at Farmington in said County of San Juan and State of New Mexico; that the notice of

Publication State of h Hex

Cil Conservation Commission of which a printed copy taken from said newspaper is hereto annexed, was published in the regular issues of said newspaper once in each week for

one sattessive weeks; that the date of the first pub-

lication thereof was the _30th January 8 day of

and the date of the last publication

thereof was the _____ day of January 1948; that

said newspaper is published and of general circulation in said county, and is a legal newspaper qualified to publish any notice required by law to be published.

Receipt is hereby acknowledged by the publishers of payment in full for publication of the above mentioned legal notice.

notice.

Subscribed and sworn to before me

this -- france day of

Ge Master

Notary Public. My Thinkstolen Explore Feb. 24, 1948

LEGAL NOTICE NOTICE OF PUBLICATION STATE OF NEW MEXICO OIL CONSIGNATION COMMISSION

120

The State of New Mexico, by its Are by gives notice, pursuant to law, of the following public hearings to be held February 17, 1948, beginning at 10:00 oclock a. m. on that day in the City of Santa Fe. New Mexico:

STATE OF NEW MEXICO TO: All named parties in the following cases, and notice to the public: Case No. 126

In the matter of the petition of Southern Union Production Company for an order fixing the spacing of wells in the Kutz Canyon and Fulcher Basin gas fields of San Juan County (as they may be extended) on the basis of one well to a drilling unit of approximately 160 acres with suitable provisions for any related matters includ-ing special approval of unor-thodox well locations where

Given under the seal of the Oil Conservation Commission of New Mexico, at Santa Pe, New Mexico, on January 26, 1948.

STATE OF NEW MEXICO OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION By R. R. SPURRIER,

Secretary (SEAL)

₹- e^{-s}-

. .

Published in Farmington Times Hus-tler, Farmington, New Marico. Friday, Jan. 30, 1049.

BEFORE THE CIL CONSERVATION COMPLECION OF THE STAPE OF NEW NEXICO

)

IN THE MATTER OF A MEASING CALLED BY THE OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION OF THE STATE OF NEW MEXICO FOR THE PURPOSE OF CONSIDERING:

. . .

CASE NO. 126 ORDER NO. 749

IN THE MATTER OF THE PETITION OF THE SOUTHERN UNION PRODUCTION COMPANY FOR AN ORDER FIXING THE SFACING OF WELLS IN THE KUTZ CANYON-FULCHER BASIN GAS FIELDS OF SAN JUAN COUNTY (AS THEY MAY BE EXTENDED) ON THE BASIS OF ONE WELL TO A DRILLING UNIT OF AP-PROXIMATELY 160 ACRES MITH SUITABLE PROVIS-IONS FOR ANY RELATED MATTERS, INCLUDING SPECIAL APPROVAL OF NONCONFORMING WELL LO-CATTONS WHERE NECESSARY.

ORDER OF THE CONDIISSICN

BY THE COMMISSION:

MMEREAS, after due notice as required by law the Commission held a public hearing in Santa Fe on February 17, 1948, to consider the petition of Southern Union Production Company for the adoption of an order fixing the spacing of wells hereafter drilled in the Kutz Canyon-Fulcher Basin gas field, San Juan County, New Mexico, and related matters; and

WHEREAS, the Commission having considered the evidence adduced at such hearing, pertinent information otherwise available in the Commission's records, the statements made and viewpoints expressed by interested parties at or in connection with such hearing.

FEEDS, from the evidence adduced:

4. That the Kutz Canyon and Fulcher Basin gas pools are productive of natural gas from the Pictured Cliffs sandstone formation, that such pools are contiguous and from all information available to date appear to be one continuous gas producing area or pool in the Pictured Cliffs sandstone;

B. That such pool has produced natural gas for more than 15 years, during which time the average of well-head pressures has declined approximately 200 P.S.I. gauge.

C. That by reason of rules of this Consission previously applicable to the pool, of the general practices of certain operators in the area and of policies of the U.S. Geological Survey, a fairly uniform spacing of one well to 160 acres has herotofore prevailed throughout cost of the pool;

3. That one well will, in view of present evidence, economically and effectively drain the recoverable (as from at tened 160 acres of the pool, and, accordingly, that more dense spacing in the pool may be conducive to weath and will unnecessarily increase the costs of levelopment and projection.

1. That for wells hereafter drilled, a proval spacing pattern of an contractly tocated well on a unit of 160 acres, substantially in the shape of a square, is required to protect the capities of these having interests in wells heretofore drilled on 160-acre treats, for Mich paneral spacing patter the pooling of properties should be encouraged when necessary;

1. That the gas productive area of the pool is likely to be substantiatly more extensive than the presently developed porbion thereof;

G. the water filler to the belief of the structure of wells in the pool, unload a second multiple from the color filler the color filler the color filler.

H. that, while the Kutz Janyon-Fulcher as in jus field has been consorcially productive for core than 15 years, it has not been subject to cooperative astion representative of the interval of all the operators or leaseholders within the area during that period. In addition, properties, holdings and/or leases of any undetarmined number of small landowners or lease-bolders, whose total acreage is either less than 160 acres or includes portions of 160acre tracts, still exist within the pool boundaries, as herein defined. The number of such holdings will be likely to increase as the pool boundaries are extended by subsequent drilling.

ł

 $\mathbf{r} \sim \mathbf{x}$

THEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED that, effective on the date of this order, the following rules and regulations shall apply to wells hereafter drilled or completed or recompleted to the Fictured Cliff pool in the Kutz Canyon-Fulcher Basin area, defined below, in addition to the Commission's applicable rules, regulations and orders heretofore or hereafter adopted to the extent not in conflict herewith:

Section 1. No well shall be drilled or completed or recompleted, and no Notice of Intention to Drill or drilling permit shall be approved, unless

- (a) such well be located on a designated drilling unit of not less than one hundred sixty (160) acres of land, more or less, according to legal subdivisions of the United States Land Surveys, in which unit all the interests are consolidated by pooling agreement or otherwise and on which no other well is completed, or approved for completion, in the pool;
- (b) such drilling unit be in the shape of a square except for normal variations in legal subdivisions of the United States Lands Surveys; and
- (c) such well be located on its drilling unit at a distance from the unit boundaries of not less than nine hundred ninety feet (990); provided, if such proposed new well is to be an offset to any then producing gas well completed in the pool, or the drilling of which has author-ized prior to the effective date of this order, located on an adjoining unit in which the interests are not identical with those in the unit proposed to be drilled, such proposed well may be located and drilled offsetting the existing well and as close to the common unit boundary line as the well to be so offset.

Section 2. Any provision herein to the contrary notwithstanding, the Contistion may, and in proper cases will, on potition or on its own motion, by order entered after notice and hearing to the extent required by law, grant exceptions and peralt drifting toestions to because offective, thereby authorising the drifting or coupletion of wells in the pool and or forming to the provincients of method 1 above it the detailed on shall the het the property abught to be drifted would be deprived of an experiment, to find the property abught to be drifted would be deprived of an experiment, to find one or east from the pool in the absence of much exception, and shall also find one or east of the following conditions is not be

- (a) that consolidation or positing of the property sought to be fulled with electrony of joining land, totalitationling diligent efforts calls in good fully, is impossible or improvident;
- (a) that the property bought to be drilled in located within a then developed performent the polant its non-conforming tize or shape to due to the odd joining developed properties in the pool;
- (c) that because of the nature of the tarrain, doction of the pupped will a placer that man from our of the outer binchesian of the through the dibe parent tor; or

(d) that by reason of the location of the property to be drilled along the southwest or northeast flank of the developed portion of the area, it appears improbable that gas can be produced in paying quantities if the well conforms to Section 1, in which case the Commission may modify the requirements of Section 1 as to such well to the extent it deems necessary.

Irrespective of such findings, if the Cormission shall find that by reason of all circumstances an exception is proper in the prevention of waste, or undue drainage between properties, or otherwise in the exercise by the Commission of its jurisdiction over the spacing of wells or its other powers conferred by law, express or implied.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, in accordance with recommendations of the Northwestern New Mexico Nomenclature Committee approved and adopted by this Commission, the Pictured Cliff gas producing pool in the Kutz Canyon-Fulcher Basin area, to which this order applies, is defined to include the following described land in San Juan County, New Mexico:

Township 27 North, Range 10 West Sec. 3 W/2 Secs. 4 & 5 All
Township 28 North, Range 10 West Secs. 7 & 8 All Secs. 15 W/2 Secs. 16,17,18,19 W/2 20,21 All Sec. 22 W/2 Secs. 28,29,30,31, 32,33 Sec. 34 W/2
Township 28 North, Range 11 Nest Secs. 9,10,11,12,13 14,15,16,22,23,24,25,26 All
Township 29 North, Range 11 West Secs. 6,7,8,16,17,13, 19,20,21,22,26,27,28, 29,30,31,32,33,34,35, 36 All
Township 29 North, Hange 12 Nest Secs. 1,2,3,4,5,6,9, 10,11,12,13,14,15,23, 24,25 All
Journahly 29 Lorin, Large 19 Moab Sec. 1 All
Jourship 29 Lotth, Large 19 Conb Sec. 1 All Jourship 30 North, Large 12 West 300. 19 All Joc. 20 J/2 3003. 26,27,23,29, 30,31,32,33,24,35, 36 All

All additional lands located within one-halt (1/2) site of any lond in the pool as defined or as it may be extended shall conform to these rules and regulations; provided, however, that such pool shall in an event be extended to us to include by the possible in the second decomposition in the second as an off or any polluting area formally decimated as an off or any polluting the best to the

Fictured Cliffs, provided, further, by order of this Commission the pool may be redesignated from time to time so as to embrace other lands in the vicinity which are believed, on the basis of additional developments, to be capable of producing gas from the Kutz Canyon-Fulcher Basin pool, whether or not such other lands shall have been at one time included in another designated field or pool producing from the Pictured Cliffs.

Entered and adopted by the Oil Conservation Commission this 22 day of June 1948.

> STATE OF NWW MEXICO OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION

CHAIRPIAN Maby CHAIRPIAN Maby MEMBER Defection SECRETARY

April 5, 1948

CASE NO. 126, Southern Union Production Company.

MEMORANDUM:

Testimony shows that in Fulcher Basin-Kutz Canyon, San Juan County, that there was an original rock pressure of 585 pounds as of 1927 and 1928. A pressure survey in 1947 showed that the average rock pressure of gas to be 385 pounds, and it is indicated that since 1947 test the gas pressure has declined from the average of 385 pounds.

Certain wells, some of which have been drilled during recent years, are shown by chart to be below the original 585-pound pressure, but slightly above the 385-pound average of 1947. Evidence was submitted to the effect that approximately one-third of the gas of the field has already been taken out.

Upon the plat or diagram submitted there are "two sinks" indicating roughly the two old fields. In these the pressure is down to about to 350 pounds. Some of the recent wells drilled showed the pressure of between 400 and 500 pounds, which is below the pressure in the Feasel Well to the northwest end of the field which has 565-pound pressure indicating that the closely drilled wells has caused pressure decline.

The petitioner offered in evidence the results of an

Page 2. Case No. 126.

interference test covering seven wells on a 160-acre spacing to substantiate claim that there was gas drainage across 160 acres. The test consisted of Walker No. 1, Walker No. 2, McGrath 1, 2, and 3, Kattler No. 1, and Hudson No. 2 All were shut in for twelve days, then all except wells. Walker No. 1 were put on production against a line pressure of 261 P F I. Thereafter, on the following day, the six surrounding wells were taken off the gas line and blown to the air, with the Walker No. 1 continuing to be shut in. A recording pressure chart on the wellhead of Walker No. 1, the shut in well, showed a considerable gain in pressure, explained as the normal build up. Pressures on the third and fourth days continued this build up. On the fourth day, the six surrounding wells were put back on production. On the fifth day, the pressure of Walker No. 1 fell back below because of previous delays, thus indicating pressure interference. The average pressures dropped 1.9 pounds pressure, (not large but petitioner urges that in consideration of other reservoir factors is conclusive for a material drainage under 160 acres), The drop-back was about two pounds. Figures submitted were that the porosity of the Pictured Cliff was about 20%, estimated from about 20 core samples. The engineer calculated that under 160 acres under original pressure of 585 pounds that there was an approximate 1,878,000,000 cubic fect. The field would not be any good

Memorandum

1

Page 3. Case No. 126.

after the pressure goes down to 150 pounds, figured about 72% of the initial gas in place

BEFORE THE OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO

State of New Mexico to:

All named parties in the following case, and notice to the public:

CASE NO. 126

In the matter of the petition of Southern Union Production Company for an order fixing the spacing of wells in the Kuts Canon and Fulcher Basin gas fields of San Juan County (as they may be extended) on the basis of one well to a drilling unit of approximately 160 acres with suitable provisions for any related matters including special approval of unorthodox well locations where necessary.

BY MR. WILLIS LEA; Attorney for Southern Union Production Company.

If the Commission please, for the Petitioner we have Villis Lea of Dallas and Manuel Sanches of Santa Fe.

This is a petition of the Southern Union Production Company for an order of the Commission to fix a spacing program in Kutz Canon and Fulcher Basin. We have referred to them as two fields and it may be two fields, however, more recent drilling has developed the fact that the fields are contiguous. I believe our evidence will indicate, for practical purposes at least, the fields are one.

This problem of spacing has been handled rather satisfactorily heretofore because of several well known facts. During the war the P. A. W. had a spacing program of 160 acres, and this Commission conformed to it. Prior to that the activity in the area did not seem to require any particular spacing. Shortly after the war the 160 acre rule of this Commission applicable to that area was rescinded, with the result that the general spacing rule which I believe is 40 acres, with wells to be drilled 330 feet from lease boundary lines, has prevailed. This is an economic problem. We all know in a given reservoir there is only so much gas and only so much can be commercially extracted. This field is 20 years old, the first well was drilled in 1929; it has developed sometimes gradually and sometimes rapidly. The facts the Southern Union Production Company has accumulated ever the years as one of the oldest operators are available to us. The Company has made its own study of spacing and what is the proper spacing in that area. This is no oil area unless you want to call the oil turned up in the so-called Farmington series.

It may be one or more of the wells might commercially produce oil from the Farmington. In fact, I know of no well that is producing oil in this immediate area. We have a gas problem. We recently employed Mr. Earl Nichols of Dallas to test our figures and reach his own conclusions; for the benefit of the Commission and others interested as to what is a proper spacing unit for that field. His conclusions go not only to the area which a well will drain, but also go to the question of the economics of drilling on the 160 acres as opposed to some smaller spacing units. I don't think we have a pro-ration problem; it is not our view to do that. We have peculiarly a spacing problem. The wells in that area that have been drilled today have been connected with a pipe line. The gas comes to Santa Fe and Albuquerque. If there are any exceptions I don't believe I know of them, and if there are the wells must be recently completed and pipe line connection in the process of being made. As we all know, gas is maintained and necessarily so from other areas; some of it comes from Barker Dome. (After being duly sworn Mr. Farl Nichols and Mr. Van Thompson testified as follows)

MR. LEA:

Mr. Michols, state your name for the record.

MR. MICHOLS:

Earl Michols.

Q. You live in Dallas, Texas?

A. That is right.

Q. What is your profession?

A. Petroleum Engineer.

Q. You are actively engaged in that profession at the present time?

That is right, consultant.

Q. For how long?

A. As consultant or petroleum engineer?

Q. Petroleum engineer?

A. Since the first of 1938 - about 10 years.

Q. What has been the nature of your experience since 1938?

A. I spent about three years with Carter Oil Company in Oklahoma, during that time they put me through the training program gasoline plant work, research work in chemical laboratory, field engineering, office and inventory courses - a little bit of everything, they felt a Petroleum Engineer should have. After I left Carter I worked for Phillips in their research department for a short while; then with Core Laboratories, Inc., in Dallas. I worked for them about 6g years as manager of the reservoir fluid analysis department.

Q. You have had experience in the study of reservoir conditions?

A. Primarily that has been the biggest majority of my work.

Q. Included the study of reserves and porosity?

A. That is right.

Q. What is your educational background?

A. I received my degree from Texas Christian University, major in physics and math, a small amount of graduate work in physics from the Washington University in St. Louis.

Q. Have you been employed by Southern Union Production Company to make a study of statistics and conditions applicable to Kutz Canon-Fulcher Basin?

A. That is right,

Q. Is this the first time you have been employed by Southern Union Production Company?

A. That is right.

Q. Were the Company's data made available to you in so far as they apply to these fields?

A. Yes, they gave me all their data.

Q. Did you find those data complete or not for your purpose in making the required study?

A. Yes.

Q. How many wells located in these areas?

A. Approximately 77.

Q. Do you know when the first well was drilled?

A. I don't have that information.

MR. VAN THOMPSON:

The first well was completed in 1927 or 1928.

Q. What would you say to have been the initial field pressure in that area?

MR. NICHOLS:

In the order of 585 pounds, might be some variation one way or the other.

Q. 585 pounds Virgin Rock Pressure?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. From your study of the present conditions of that area what do you find to be the arithmetical average of pressures presently prevailing in wells completed in that area?

A. A lot of the work was based open the last pressure survey of April 1947. The arithmetic average pressure at that time was 385 pounds.

Q. As opposed to 585 pounds originally?

A. That is right.

Q. Would you state whether or not the pressure is likely to have declined under 385 pounds since the last test in April of 1947?

A. I think it is reasonable to assume that it would have - yes.

Q. In connection with these pressures, have you prepared a chart showing graphically the initial field pressure of approximately 585 pounds as compared with the average prevailing pressures in this field by years and also showing the initial well-head pressures of certain wells more recently completed in that area?

A. I have.

Q. Is this the study you refer to? (Presented charts)

A. Yes, it is.

Q. Will you please state what that means for the benefit of the record?

A. This particular compilation of data is divided into two areas, Kutz Canon and Fulcher Basin. In the Kutz Canon field the average arithmetic pressure in the wells producing at any given time has been plotted versus the time in years, that is the lower broken line near the middle or bottom of the page. The upper dotted line is a flat line showing approximately the initial pressure of the field. Between these two lines some of the wells have been drilled later in the life of the field. Some of them have been drilled during the last year, and the pressure in those wells is spotted in the proper position. The pressure on those wells does not lie near the 585 pound but between the 585 pound line and the average field pressure. A line has been drawn through these new wells representing an average of their pressures.

Q. Is it approximately one-half way between?

A. Yes. Not any individual well, but groups of wells by average, and it lies approximately one-half way between. There is a definite indication that in those areas where these wells have been drilled there had been pressure decline from the initial pressure, indicating you had pressure reduction out there previous to those wells having been drilled. The same would apply to Fulcher Basin.

Q. What is the conclusion or conclusions to be drawn from this type of study?

A. You have undoubtedly had, if the initial field pressure over the area is 585 pounds, and if you have drilled in adjacent areas since that time it is pretty conclusive you have had pressure decline in those areas. If you had pressure decline you have had removal of gas out of there.

Q. What does it mean with respect to the quantity of gas ultimately to be recovered from one of the wells more recently drilled?

A. The quantity of gas existing in a given unit of the reservoir is proportional to pressure existing on that gas. Whatever your pressure might be the quantity of gas you will recover is proportionate to the pressure of the gas existing. You would expect less gas from these wells drilled in lower pressure areas.

Q. If you drill a well with initial rock pressure of 400 pounds you could compute the quantity of gas which might be ultimately recovered from that well as opposed to the quantity expected to be recovered from a well having approximately the 585 pound virgin field pressure?

A. You could.

Q. In any event, to the extent that your initial rock pressure in any well is below the initial field pressure of 585 pounds, the quantity of gas to be recovered is reduced?

A. That is right.

Q. Would it be a fair question to ask you if you could a proximate by a fraction of the total reserves recoverable from a given spacing unit that will not be recovered because of the lower pressure from the recently drilled wells?

A. If the average pressure is 385 pounds and the initial 585 bounds you would have a ratio of 400 to 600 pounds absolute, and would have approximately 1/3 of your gas having already been produced.

Q. That is 1/3 of the gas that originally underlay a drilling unit that has been taken out by drilling not on that unit but on adjacent units?

A. That is right.

Q. Have you prepared, Mr. Nichols, what I will refer to as pressure contour map, showing in general terms at least, the prevailing well-head pressures in this field?

A. That is right.

Q. If the Commission please, may we have identified as Petitioner's Exhibits 1 and 2 the schedules concerning which Mr. Nichols has just testified to?

CONDISSIONFR MILES:

You may.

Q. We will offer them in evidence at a later time.

May we have similarly identified as Petitioner's Exhibit No. 3 the map I will refer to as a pressure contour map, dated January 7, 1948?

COMMISSION R MILES:

You may.

Q. Mr. Nichols, I hand you this map identified as Petitioner's Exhibit No. 3, and aks you to explain the method of its preparation and give the conclusions to be drawn from it.

A. On this particular map, I took the pressures existing in April of 1947 and systed them in their proper geographical location, adjacent to the well location. Then drawing lines of equal pres sures in their proper place between these pressure points, we get what we call a pressure contour map showing the overall pressure picture of the area. The outer line is the 575 pound contour. These are in 25 mound intervals so the innermost contour is the 375 pound contour. The innermost further down on the map is the 350 pound contour. There are two "sinks", and it is rather apparent those lie roughly in the center of the two old fields, with the intervening area having remained undrilled for sometime. It is normal you would expect in the older areas to have larger pressure declines. You will notice also in the new intervening area between the two sinks. That sink is outto likely due to the influence of production from the two older areas. Another sink is forming in the upper northwest area; that is due to the total withdrawals from that area being proportionately large due to the small well spacing units.

Q. Is it not a fact that the area on the northwest is a never developed area?

A. I believe that is right.

Q. Do you have the dates on which those wells were drilled?

A. Yes, sir. Waggoner #1, June 1946. Waggoner #2, September 1947. Comp #1 September 1946. Comp #3, October 1947. Wyper #2 January 1947.

Q. All fairly recent drilling?

A. That is right.

Q. What can you say with respect to the pressure in that area surrounding those wells?

A. You have pressures existing all the way from 475 pounds to 500 pounds, which is 100 pounds or so lower than the initial field pressure. It looks like the pressure decline there is rather rapid in that particular area.

and the second second

Q. Are those wells more or less densely spaced than the wells further to the south?

A. I think by observation they are more closely spaced.

Q. Any comparison between the pressure declines in these more densely spaced wells in comparison with the wells to the south which appear to be drilled on the 160 acre unit?

MR. THOMPSON:

That last record is in April 1947, and the majority of them have completed since that time.

MR. NICHOLS:

Your question could be tied back to withdrawals in any area regardless of the wells. Your total withdrawals on an area basis would give you an indication.

Q. Referring to this well in the extreme southeast portion of the field, the Feesel #1, what is its original rock pressure?

A. 565 pounds. Some 20 pounds lower than the initial of the field.

Q. Is it very close to any other well drilled in the area?

A. No it isn't.

Q. In other words, the Feasel well was drilled some distance from the other wells and you found initial pressure within 20 pounds of the original virgin rock pressure?

A. That is right.

Q. Will you compare that to some wells more recently drilled?

A. The wells in the center section, drilled a year or so ago, some of the Mangum wells, had pressures in April existing between the 425 pound and 459 pounds contour.

Q. Those were initial pressures?

1

A. Those were pressures existing in April 1947. The Mangum "I was completed in February 1947, and the initial pressure was 492 pounds, No. 2 was completed in June 1947 at 454 pounds, No. 3 was completed in July 1947 at 440 pounds.

Q. How do you account for the fact that those wells had lower initial pre-

A. The drainage from these two adjocent areas secalingly had a great effect on this pressure.

Q. That is because production from adjacent wells previously drilled had so reduced the pressure in that vicinity that in the main portion of the field you find lower initial pressures?

A. That is right.

Q. Anything else in particular to be said a but this map?

A. I don't believe so.

Q. Mr. Nichols, state whether or not the Company caused to be made an interference test at your suggestion on six or seven wells drilled in this area with a spacing unit of 160 acres for each well?

A. They did.

Q. Will you state in general terms how the interference test was conducted and what assumptions were necessary and what was found as a result of the interference test?

A. I believe my letter to Mr. Thompson dated February 5, 1948 will explain that.

(Letter as follows)

#EARL A NICHOLS Consulting Petroleum Engineer 2000 Kidwell Street Dallas, Texas T3-4422

February 5, 1948

Mr. Van Thompson Southern Union Gas Co. Burt Building Dallas, Texas

Dear Mr. Thompson:

"I have received the charts giving the results of the recommended field tests. These tests were performed on the Kutz Canyon -Fulcher Basin Field in order to attempt to establish a positive, mechanical answer as to whether pressure interference exists across 160 acre tracts in the above mentioned field. It was our belief that should such pressure interference exist between wells now drilled on approximately 160 acre spacing, one could accordingly feel that drainage across 160 acres tracts existed.

"Seven wells whose approximate spacing are 160 acres per well were chosen. They were the SUP Walker #1, SUP Walker #2, SUP Mc Grath #1, SUP Mc Grath #2, SUP McGrath #3, SUP Kattler #1, and the SUP Hudson #2 wells. These wells were shut in at noon January 9, 1948 and remained shut in until 8:30 A.M. January 12, 1948. At this time all of the wells except the Walker # 1 were put on production against a line pressure of 261 to 270 P.S.I. ga. At 9:00 A.M. on January 13th, the surrounding wells were taken off of the line and blown to the air, the Valker #1 still remaining shut in. A recording pressure chart on the well head of the Valker # 1 well during this test reveals the attached tabulated and graphical results.

"It is to be noticed that due to the normal cycle of atmospheric temperature change during a 24 hour period, the temperature effect on the recorded pressures. To help clarify this effect, the pressures were plotted versus time of day and this graph is included. It will be noticed that, irregardless of these temperature effects, the overall curve of pressures for the second day lie considerably above the curve of the pressures for the first day of the shut in period. This is explained, of course, as being the normal build up of pressure for the vell being shut in. Likewise, the curves of pressure for the 3rd and 4th days lie consectively higher each day, showing this same build up. The surrounding wells were put on production, on the norming of the 4th day, but their effect on Walbow 7.1 is not significantly felt wath the 5th day. It will be ncticed that the curve of pressures for the 5th day falls back below those of the 4th day, very definitely indicating pressure interference had reached the Walker # 1 from the outlying wells.

*In order to try to evaluate the magnitude of this pressure drop, an arithmetic average of the pressures the last 21 hours of the tests give a value of 401, 8 P.S.I. gauge. An arithmetic average of the pressures during the same hours of the preceding day gave 403.6 P.S.I. gauge. This is a 1.8 pound drop. This may not seem like a large drop, but after consideraing all of the reservoir factors involved, this is felt to be as large a pressure drop as one might expect.

"It is my feeling that these tests have conclusively shown pressure interference between wells now drilled on a 160 acre pattern. It is further my feeling that since pressure draw down can be experienced between such wells, drainage of reservoir material across 160 acre tracts exists under such conditions.

"If there are any points discussed on which you would like further comment, please contact me.

Very truly yours.

/s/ Earl A. Nichols

Earl A. Nichols

EAN/1y#

The Chart accompanying Mr. Nichols' letter was marked for identification as Petitioner's Exhibit #4.

MR. LEA:

1

Lets try to identify where these wells are located.

MR. THOMPSON:

Sections 2 and 3, Township 29; Section 34, Township 30, each in Range 12 W.

Q. Identify for us on this map the test well - Walker No. 1, outlining the spacing unit of Walker #1.

A. NE/4 Section 3, 29 N, 12 W.

Q. Will you identify for us the surrounding units on which the other six wells are located?

A. Walker #2, McGrath #3, McGrath #1, Kattler #1, Hudson #2, Southern Union Production McGrath #2.

Q. Your test well is located right in the middle of these other units?

A. That is right.

Q. Your pressures were taken on the Walker No. 1 Well?

A. MR, NICHOLS:

Yes, sir, those adjacent wells had been shut in. The pressures throughout that whole period of time were measured on the Walker Well.

Q. That is, I believe, without exception 160 acre spacing units with the well located in approximate center of the spacing unit? The fourth day is the red line?

A. That is right. The fifth day fell below the fourth day and in certain periods below the third day. The pressure during the last hour was below the third and fourth day pressures.

Q. Yet during this entire time the Walker No. 1 was shut in, the outlying wells were being produced during the last how many hours of the test?

A. Approximately 25 hours of the test.

Q. From the time the outlying wells were open to the air, how long did it take the pressure decline to be noted in the centrally located test well?

A. The remaining wells were put on the line at 8:30 a.m., January 12th at 9:00 o'clock a.m., January 13th twenty five hours later, they were taken off and put on the air, and there was approximately 24 hours remaining in this test.

Q. You regard the result of this interference test as being significant?

A. I do.

Q. Does it not indicate that not only did the outlying wells pull down their own pressures on 160 acre units - but that the outlying production also pulled down the pressure on the centrally located test well?

A. That is right.

Q. Is not each of those wells located on a regular 160 acre tract?

A. That is right.

Q. It is not noteworthy that instead of continuing to build up the test well pressure not only ceased to build up but in fact declined?

A. That is right. I think it might be expected that the well would have continued to build up for some time longer, how long I don't want to say. Might be a day or a week.

MR. SPURRIER:

How much did it drop back?

ŕ

A. About 2 pounds. That is the arithmetical average in the last 21 hours.

MR. LEA:

in the

7-1

Looking at this chart I find at the beginning of the first day a pressure of approximately 381 pounds on Walker #1.

A. It varies by the hour, it started at 381 pounds.

Q. At the same hour of the second day the well had built up to 398 pounds.

A. That is right.

Q. Approxizately 17 pounds build up.

That is right.

Q. The same hour the next day it had built up to approximately /03 pounds,

A, Right.

Q. At the same hour the fourth day the build up was approximately 407 mounds.

A. Right.

Q. At the same hour the fifth day I find a very noticeable pressure interference had been commenced.

A. That is right. It was at that hour of the fifth day that the interference began to show up. There was undoubtedly some effect after the fifth day.

Q. From the data available, has it been possible for you to compute the total gross number of cubic feet of gas which should be expected to be in the reservoir under 160 acres of land?

A. Yes, it has been. There are certain assumptions one frequently has to use. An attempt was made to calculate the actual reservoir gas in place from the available reservoir data.

We had one set of core analysis data on the Cossens #2 well. This is certainly a minimum amount of core analysis.

ġ	949-039-129-129-129-129-129-129-129-129-129-12	学。这次我们的现象了。"	

Sample Mumber	Permeability Millidaroys	Porosity Per Cent	
1 2 3 4 5 6	98 92 74	18.3 16.7 23.3	
4	90	18.6	to be 200 The connete
5	102	14.3	o be 20%. The connate rity of reservoirs you have
	10	9.8	i you have a film of water
7 8	51	12.3	istone you have some
9	83	9.6	usually referred to as
10	59 5	17.5	ir to reservoir; the
10	5. 5 18	8.1	figure . Some reser-
12	16	20.5	connate water. An
13	8.6	19.3 19.5) feet used. It varies
ĨÁ	10	18.3	some that have 10, 12
15	18	17.7	: (about 50 wells) gives
16	11	16.3	
17	18	19.1	
18	15	10.3	
19	<u>X</u> X	15.5	
20	17	18.5	part of the gross sand
21	50	19.2	ed. The deviation
22	95	12.3	Lifying some of the
23	118	13.1	t is nothing more than
24	340	11.1	Ideal gas laws. All
25	423	19.5	
26	160	16,2	tuni ana in minon
27	6.5	6.1	stual gas in place
28	15	18.5	inds, initially, on buft. of gas at recording initially

standard conditions existed in 160 weres of the reservoir initially.

That is the total gas in place. Below a certain pressure this field cannot be operated economically. We set it at 150 pounds. The net gas that can be taken from the recervoir between 585 pounds and 150 pounds is 1,361,000,000, or about 72% of the initial gas in place.

MR. CASWILL SILVIR - Florence Company:

Vould you consider all of those permeabilities as being within the effective pay?

MR. NICHOLS:

There was no consideration made as to the permeability in determining the effective pay. I presume you are referring to the thickness data. It was taken from the various drilling logs available and one or two electric logs were taken into consideration.

The amount of gas - net gas you might expect to recover between 585 pounds and 150 pounds, multiplied by 54 per thousand cu.ft. and allowing for State taxes, royalty and production tax brings the net down to about 845 which would give gross income irregardless of time of about \$56,000 per 160 acre block. That does not give any consideration to operating expense or the present worth of a dollar. A lot of these dollars are going to be obtained a number of years hence. This is simply the gross income minus royalty and tax. The cost of drilling wells would be roughly \$16,000 per well varying from person to person. That would allow a ratio of dollars returned on your investment of about 32 to 1.

If you will take 160 acres at the present pressure average of the field of 385 pounds. The ultimate total income to be recovered over the years would be \$30,000 after deducting royalty and taxes, but without giving any effect to operating expenses or other factors.

MR. SILVER:

That is assuming initial well-head pressure of 385 pounds would give you a ratio of about 1.9?

A. Yes - it would give you a ratio of about 1.9 to 1. If we look at it as a 40 acre drilling unit and calculate the ultimate returns you might expect in the order of \$14,000 with the initial pressure of 585 pounds. If the well cost you \$16,000 you would be in the red to begin with. If your well was drilled in an area with 385 pound pressure your total revenue would be in the order of \$7,500 and your well would still cost \$16,000.

MR. LEA:

Mr. Nichols, would you care to express an opinion from the studies made and data reviewed - whether or not one well drilled on 160 acres at approximately the canter could be reasonabley expected to drain in this field more or less than 160 acres or exactly 160 acres.

A. I feel the material we have looked at here has shown that the drainage from one well is adequate for a 160 acre block. You will be able to drain a 160 acre block with one well.

Q. Are there any instances where the gas produced from one of the older wells in the field exceeds the-field-exceeds the calculated quantity of gas initially in place under 160 acres.

A. There are several wells where total production to date has already either exceeded or been very close to the 1,873,000,000 cu. ft. of gas in 160 acres. The Browning and Stewart No. 4 well has produced over 2 billion cubic feet; that well still has 305 pounds of pressure and will undoubtedly produce still more gas.

MR. ENGLISH:

Who owns that well?

MR. THOMPSON:

We do now - Southern Union recently bought it from Browning and Stouart.

MR. NICHOLS:

Angels Peak, the 9-B and 10-B - between the two of them there has been 2,600,000,000 cubic feet of gas in 160 acres, and one-half of this is 1,300,000,000 each, which is approaching the 1,878,000,000. Summit #1 has produced 12 billion and the Summit #2 has produced 1-1/10 billion. The Cornell wells 3 and 4 have together produced nearly 12 billion, one half of which for each well is 7/10 billion with 373 pounds pressure remaining.

MR. ENGLISH:

Where **yes** are drawing more gas off one well, would that make a difference in your pressure? Your pressure would be lower than where you did not have to draw as much gas?

A. Yes, especially if you did not have any gas from other areas to help re-build your pressure. Those pressure sinks had been influenced from some adjacent areas. This is indicated by the pressure build-up. There have been times when some areas have been shut in and have had a considerable build up, indicating you have had pressure build-up from these outlying areas.

MR. LEA:

In making assumptions necessary to compute the total reserves of gas under the 160 acre tract you have taken such data as was available?

A. That is right.

Q. Where assumptions had to be made were you on the long side or on the low side in making your estimate.

A. I feel in all these estimates we have been optimistic in making the necessary assumptions for computing reserves.

(EXAMINATION OF MR. VAN THOMPSON)

MR. LEA:

Your name is Van Thompson and you live in Dallas?

MR. THOMPSON:

Tes, sir.

Q. You are employed by the Southern Union Gas Company and the Southern Union Production Company?

A, That is right.

Q. How long have you worked for Southern Union?

A. Since 1930.

Q. What is your present capacity?

A. I am Chief Engineer of the Company in charge of production for all properties.

Q. Are you familiar with the gas situation in Kutz Canon and Fulcher Easin?

A. I have been personally familiar with it since 1932.

Q. Is it, at the present time, under your personal supervision?

A. Yes, sir.

- T.S. -

Q. Are you familiar with the statistics and data in the way of gas production, open flow capacity, pressures, etc.?

A. That is right - our Company has accumulated this information by years since the beginning. We had a practice instituted of shutting all wells in for a week and took pressures during that time every year.

4. Was that the data made available to Mr. Nichols in the course of his study?

A. Yes, sir.

4. You have heard Mr. Michols testify, are his findings made in connection with the study of this field - have they confirmed or altered your own conclusions?

A. Yes, it has convinced me that on a lot of the wells we have drilled in the middle of the field on closer spacings we will never get our money back out of them - it isn't economical.

Q. Did your figures on the total reserves of gas on 160 acres correspond with the figures Mr. Nichols has given us?

A. I would say, if anything, they would probably be a little less.

Q. Your figures would be less than his?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. What experience have you had in connection with unitization or more simple form of commutization of separately owned tracts?

A. Well, during the last l_2^1 years we have unitised about seven different tracts into 160 acre drilling units. These have included fee land and federal land, so far they have not included any state land.

Q. Have you used the so-called short form of commutization agreement in these?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Has your experience been satisfactory or unsatisfactory?

A. So far it has worked very well, it hasn't taken long to get them approved.

Q. Have you commutized federal land with fee land?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. How about commutized with federal and federal?

A. I think we are working on one at the present time but it isn't completed.

Q. In general, your experience has been good and delay has not been too bad?

A, Right.

MR. LEA:

1

If the Commission please, we would like now to offer in evidence Exhibits which have been identified as Petitioner's exhibits 1 to 4 respectively.

COMMISSIONER MILES:

Exhibits received.

MR. LEA:

Mr. Foster Morrell wrote a letter regarding this proceeding in his letter suggested he would have no objection to the use of it in this proceeding. It may be well known that Mr. Morrell, and I presume his predecessors, have participated to some extent in the 160 acre spacing condition which generally prevails at the present time.

He writes under date of February 10, 1948 - -

"UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR GEOLOGICAL SURVEY

P. 0. Box 997 Roswell, New Mexico February 10, 1948

Mr. Willis L. Lea, Jr. Southern Union Production Company Burt Building Dallas, Texas

Dear Mr. Lea:

ì

"Reference is made to your letter of January 26, enclosing for our information a copy of Southern Union Production Company's petition forwarded to the New Mexico Oil Conservation Commission requesting an order, after notice and hearing fixing spacing requirements for wells hereafter drilled in the Kuts Canyon-Fulcher Basin gas fields, San Juan County, New Mexico. You requested our opinion concerning the proper spacing of wells in these fields.

"The essential facts presented in your petition are substantiated by the records of this office, and, accordingly, this office concurs in your request for the establishment of a well spacing plan with a minimum of one well to 160 acres to promote orderly development without waste in the Kutz Canyon and Fulcher Basin gas fields.

"As most of the lands in these fields are public lands of the United States, it is the desire of this office to encourage uniform and economic development and greatest ultimate recovery of gas from these fields. This can be accomplished only so long as areasonable profit can be secured from capital invested. Federal leases have been developed generally on a well spacing pattern of one well to 160 acres, except where necessary to protect properties from closer spacing by offset operators.

"Only where the market demand and marketing facilities are unlimited for continued expansion with the completion of additional outlets or producing gas wells can necessary profit be obtained to continue development. These conditions are not present in the fields under consideration. Hence the drilling of unnecessar; wells does not proportionately increase the ultimate volume of gas available for sale but instead tends to reduce the margin of profit of all wells in the fields and to discourage proper development of the fields.

"Future development at a well density consistent with the majority of past development is essential to prevent injury to neighboring leases or properties and to protect equities involved. "There is no objection to your use of this letter in connection with your petition to the New Mexico Oil Conservation Commission. As this office is very interested in the subject, I expect to be present at the hearing in Sante Fe on February 17.

Very truly yours,

/s/ Foster Morrell

FOSTER MORRELL Supervisor, Oil and Gas Operations"

MR. LEA:

I would like to have this in evidence as Petitioner's Exhibit No. 5. I believe that is all we have at the present time.

(Exhibit No. 5 admitted).

DUDLEY CORNELL:

I would like to ask Mr. Nichols is it a fact that the conclusions which you have drawn from your work here would support an application for pro-ration of gas in this field on a 160 acre basis just as fully as it does on 160 acre spacing?

A. My conclusion is that there is adequate drainage by one well on a 160 acre block.

Q. The petition have would really prevent the wells being drilled on 40 acres - have you given any thought to the wells on 40 acre spacing?

A. My purpose was to determine if adequate drainage can be obtained by one well, on a 160 acre block.

Q. If 160 acre spacing in this field is used, do you have any suggestions in handling the present wells on 40 acre spacing?

A. I have not given the problem any consideration. I think you will find some precedent set up, however.

MR. LEA:

We have always visualized this matter as a spacing matter. For that reason I am sure Mr. Nichols has not approached it on pro-ration.

MR. CORNELL:

I cannot see how the two problems can be separated, I was wondering if you would ignore the situation.

MR. LEA:

1

I would make a statement - Here is the way we see it, this field is 20 years old or more. It has been growing and developing by fits and starts ever since, but it is an old field with a rather loose spacing regulation which has provailed during most of the time. It is only natural there have grown up several inequities where the spacing of units is too close to larger adjoining units. I have your situation in mind among others. Pro-ration may have to come to the Kutz Canon-Fulcher Basin field on a proper pro-ration proposal. I can say now my Company will have no objection to pro-ration but we will be very much interested because of the additional burden cast upon us by pro-ration, and I think the Commission will be very much interested because of the additional burden of administering pro-ration. MR. CORNELL:

You have referred to my own situation, makes it personal - I would like to ask Hr. Thompson one or two questions.

You have an 80 acre lease on which you have two wells known as the Cornell-SUG 3 and 4?

MR. THOMPSON:

That is right, yes, sir.

MR. CORNFLL:

And that 80 is entirely surrounded by acreage I am interested in.

MR. THOMPSON:

I am not sure it is surrounded on the south.

MR. CORNELL:

ì

Yes, sir. How far do you think those two wells are draining?

MR. THOMPSON:

They are draining considerably more than 80 acres.

(CONTINUED ON PAGE 17)

w. In this study you say it is draining across the 160 cores, would you say this draining would go $\frac{1}{2}$ tile from the well?

A. No, I wouldn't say it is draining that far. That would be a half section in each direction.

 ς_{\bullet} Presupposing 160 acre spacing, the drainage would go across the next 40 acres?

A. Yes, sir.

4. A well located such as that would at least drain the 40 acres adjoining it?

A. That is correct.

Q. With an 80 acre lease - 2 - 40 acres on east, west, north and south, 6 - 40% plus the 80 you have, your two wells would be effective draining 640 acres?

A. In the petition we are asking for 160 acres minimum spacing and the purpose is to prevent what is happening right there.

G. I am simply making a little argument for this pro-ration; wouldn't it be true those two wells would be draining effective 640 acres?

A. Possibly so. He are contending one well would drain 160.

Q. If your spacing rule is put into effect without pro-ration those two wells will continue to drain 640 acres.

MR. LEA:

I don't believe the witness is in agreement with you that the two wells were draining 640 acres. It is conceded that one well will drain 160 acres.

MR. SILVER:

You make a presumption that Mr. Nichols has proved that. I don't believe the Commission has yet admitted that.

MR. LEA:

My statement was I did not think the evidence submitted would substantiate the idea, or that the witness agreed, that the two wells would drain the 640 acres.

MR. SILVER:

Ho one has admitted that a well would drain the 160.

MR. LEA:

to are willing to grant to Mr. Cornell the two wells referred to do drait wore than the 80 acres on which they are located.

5 🐅 19 84 - 54 -

You see willing to addit that the Consission has not agreed?

or, Hiver, I conthe only statement binding on this Condission.

MR. CORNELL:

I agree with the witnesses from the standpoint of the economics of drilling these wells on the 40 acres, but the spacing rule without a follow-up with a pro-ration order, I think is just doing one-half the job, and creates additional inequalities. I would like to suggest what we need for this field is a pro-ration order, ratable taking and common purchaser act. I would like to suggest to this Commission that some leader appoint a committee to present such legislation for the next legislature, that it be carefully prepared and operators have a chance to voice their suggestions and at this next legislature all the operators combined with their influence, to the end we do obtain a common purchaser and ratable taking law for gas. I think there has been changeon some operators in this subject. I think it fies into this application here.

I would like to ask another question - Mr. Nichols, with reference to your interference test of the seven wells, isn't it a fact that the original pressures on those wells differ and that their open flow potentials are different.

MR. NICHOLS:

That is right, I am sure it is.

Q. Very considerable difference isn't there?

A. I can check them and see.

Q. I would like to develop more fully in the economics in those wells, the amount of gas withdrawn and their open flow potentials.

A. In the interference test all the measurements were made on one well, the Walker No. 1. Irregardless of the open flow potentials and the pressures on the surrounding wells the pressures on this well built up to the fifth day and then dropped back. The only difference which the open flow potentials of the surrounding wells might make would be in the quantity of gas produced from them during the test, which in turn might influence only the magnitude of the pressure drop during that time,

MR. THOMPSON:

Hudson #2 well had an open flow in January 1948 of 560 MCF, McGrath #1 of 416 MCF, McGrath #2 140 MCF, McGrath #3, 596 MCF - Walker No. 1 584 MCF

Q. I did not have in mind proving anything particularly, but thought that information should be in the record.

IR. STIVER:

How are these wells gauged?

MR. NICHOLS:

The Walker No. 1 well had a recording instrument on the well head.

Q. What kind of recording instrument, dead weight?

MR. THOMPSON:

Bristol Spring Gauge - recording gauge.

Q. Mr. Nichols, you are familiar with spring gauges. To your knowledge isn't it true spring gauges have variation of five to 10 pounds. In use of spring gauges they have to be tested against larger tested gauges?

A. That is true in any type of gauge.

Q. In Sections 11 and 14, township 29 N, range 10 N, wasn't there considerable variation in rock pressure when the wells were brought in?

A. I think that is brought out in the exhibit showing initial field pressures and pressures of wells drilled later in the life of the field.

Q. Isn't it true that the pressure measured on a well is in part functional of the length of time in which that well is allowed to remain idle?

A. Your build-up time certainly affects the pressure measurements.

Q. Isn't it also true that the permeability changes and that the lower the permeability the longer the pressure build-up required to reach stabilization?

A. I am not aware the permeability changes in a given field.

Q. I have the permeability as given me here. (Quoting certain figures noted from evidence).

A. The permeabilities you are reading there are individual measurements on individual feet - one sample for each foot. That is normal in any kind of reservoir. Permeability of a given foot is constant and does not change during life of the well.

Q. Isn't it true the permeability in this well, which is the only well in the field that has core analysis, is not a good test of the permeability?

A. In what manner?

9. In that one well, if the variation of permeability is so great from foot to foot vertically, then conceiveably the permeability from foot to foot horisontally is just as great.

A. Getting back to your point, it is true that the amount of our core analysis data is on the low side. I pointed out early in my discussion that we had in that instance a minimum of data, and that we had to assume certain things - for example the deviation factor.

Q. I have no objections to your deviation value.

A. Along that same line of thought we have a minimum of permeability data but we used what we had, which is the best we can do.

G. The point I was attempting to bring out was the very serious effect permeability would have on your concept of drainage across 160 acres - I wanted to point the manner in which they affect that.

A. I think we can approach it from this angle; the permeability is a measure of the rate at which a well can produce, but not a measure of the total amount it will produce. Permeability times feet will be an index of the open flow. Potentials on every well in the field are not exactly the same.

Q. That is exactly right.

MR. THOMPSON:

Would you mind stating what you think minimum spacing should be?

TR. SELVERT

- -

We have a field of our own on which we own considerable part or majority of acreage in the San Juan Basin that has almost exactly similar reservoir conditions. Any decision the Commission might make with respect to your field will certainly have a bearing on a field almost exactly like it geologically. We have no opinion as to what the well spacing should be in this field, we are only interested in finding out what the most economic spacing would be.

Therefore, we are vitally interested in this case. That will determine what the economic spacing is in our field. Therefore, I want to bring out some of the inadequate data presented by Mr. Nichols. The fact that an additional test should be made which may aid the Commission to determine the type of drainage on 160 acre spacing they would want, but by 160 acre spacing the data presented today, I do not think is adequate. By meeting with Mr. Nichols I believe we could find out.

MR. NICHOLS:

Back to about the last point I made in regard to tetal production from certain blocks - that is based on porosity. It does not tie back into permeability or productivity.

MR. SILVER:

As I stated before. I thought you were over generous in the amount of gas in place.

A. That fact tied with the actual production from some of these wells is pretty hard to overlook.

MR. SILVER:

Let's go into the problem of reservoir development - each well is a sink and each field is in itself a larger sink within a known gas area. I think there are men in this audience who know there have been wells drilled outside this field which have encountered gas and that gas has been non-commercial. It is entirely conceivable this is the only connercial gas production in the area. If you have a sink here what is the optimum number of wells draining this basin.

A. That is an economic problem. I think the productivity of the wells is related directly to permeability. I think the fact that there has been greater production from these wells on the 160 acre block than the total original gas in place proves very definitely drainage across those areas.

MR. SILVER:

I do not believe this whole heartedly myself, but as a point of reasonable doubt, Mr. Thompson, you have drilled many wells in the area, the United States Geological Survey in its professional paper No. 134, by Mr. J. B. Reeside, Jr., gives the thickness of the Picture Cliff sand zone in this zone between 75 and 225 gross feet.

MR. THOMPSON:

- }

. . .

na an ann an 1990. Ann an 1990 an Ann a grup agus an Ann an A

A state of the sta

Therefore, we are vitally interested in this case. That will determine what the economic spacing is in our field. Therefore, I want to bring out some of the inadequate data presented by Mr. Nichols. The fact that an additional test should be made which may aid the Commission to determine the type of drainage on 160 acre spacing they would want, but by 160 acre spacing the data presented today, I do not think is adequate. By meeting with Mr. Nichols I believe we could find out.

and a second second

MR. NICHOLS:

Back to about the last point I made in regard to tetal production from certain blocks - that is based on porosity. It does not tie back into permeability or productivity.

MR. SILVER:

As I stated before, I thought you were over generous in the amount of gas in place.

A. That fact tied with the actual production from some of these wells is pretty hard to overlook.

NR. SILVER:

Let's go into the problem of reservoir development - each well is a sink and each field is in itself a larger sink within a known gas area. I think there are men in this audience who know there have been wells drilled outside this field which have encountered gas and that gas has been non-commercial. It is entirely conceivable this is the only commercial gas production in the area. If you have a sink here what is the optimum number of wells draining this basin.

A. That is an economic problem. I think the productivity of the wells is related directly to permeability. I think the fact that there has been greater production from these wells on the 160 acre block than the total original gas in place proves very definitely drainage across those areas.

MR. SILVER:

I do not believe this whole heartedly myself, but as a point of reasonable doubt, Mr. Thompson, you have drilled many wells in the area, the United States Geological Survey in its professional paper No. 134, by Mr. J. B. Reeside, Jr., gives the thickness of the Picture Cliff sand zone in this zone between 75 and 225 gross feet.

MR. THOMPSON:

The gross and effective thickness are two different things.

MR. SILVER:

Q. We have cored as much as 25 feet of such sand and found the core bleeding gas all the way.

BR. THOMPSON:

This appears in wells of that type as well as wells of thicknesses of 10 and 12 feet.

MR. SILVEA:

4. You get some influx of drainage of gas upward from the lower persochility zones?

A. Is it in the lower part?

MR. SILVER:

4. Usually it is in the lower part but you get streaks of higher permeability with lower permeability.

MR. CORIFIL:

Mr. Michols, you stated in your opinion 72% of the gas underlying 160 acres would be withdrawn under 160 acres spacing - how much do you think under 40 acres spacing? MR. NICHOLS:

I said it was, if we want to assume the abandonment pressure of 150#, it would be 72%.

Q. What would be the recovery from 40 acre block as compared to 160 acres?

A. You would have $\frac{1}{4}$ as much gas.

Q. How much gas is going to be missed in the sand - approximately 28% of the gas?

A. It would be the same percentage if your pressure was brought to the same pressure regardless of size of the unit.

MR. SILVER:

You could withdraw more gas on 40 acre spacing than 160 acres.

A. That is an economical problem. I don't know why you could,

Q. This isn't economics, I am just helping Mr. Cornell get his point.

A. You could take it to absolute zero pressure but you would be there an awful long time.

MR. ENGLISH:

Finishing the wells - the Picture Cliff wells have all got coal and water just above the pay zons. I wonder if it would make any difference in the finishing of the well - if it would make any difference in your pressures. We drilled a well and got $\frac{1}{2}$ more gas - we comented off some of that gas, I wondered if that would make any difference in your pressure?

A. If you comented the casing above that water it would make some difference.

Q. Some of these wells you are getting your figures off of - if they are wells of bad completion jobs and have some water in the well bore.

MR. THOMPSON:

We have siphon lines in every one, even then we get pressure that will be 10 to 20 pounds low.

MR. NICHOLS:

If your well bore goes into the main part of Picture Cliff sand your buildup on that well is determined by the permeability - your pressure would be all right.

COLLISSIONER FILES:

One question was asked I did not get the answer on - someone asked if it would be more complete recovery of gas with a well on 40 acres than 180 acres.

HR. .HTCHOLS:

If your pressure over the whole block, whether it be 40 or 160 acres, is drawn down to 150# your gas recovery percentage would be the same-recovery of gas from a 40 acre block would be $\frac{1}{4}$ of the gas recovered from a 160 acre block.

MR. LEA:

• 1

Let me get this question clear - take a 40 acre unit as opposed to a 160 acre anit. If during the connercially productive life of this field you had one well on 160 acres as opposed to one on 40 acres, in the center of each unit, and no drainage between the units, would you be able to get from a 40 acre tract more than 25% of what you would get out of a 160 acre tract - during the productive life of the entire field. For your ultimate productivity of gas during the productive life of the field would recovery be substantially greater in the case of the cost of the field would not be able on a 11 for the cost of the case of the order of the field of 160 cost from what one of 11 for the cost of the

is it just a question of time?

MR. NICHOLS:

If your pressure is stabilised, if you draw down that whole area to 150# the same in any geographical area, if your complete 40 acre block is drawn down to exactly 150#, you would get 1 of what is recoverable on the 160 acre block drawn down to exactly 150#. Those things are true because equal withdrawals in a given unit will be as your pressure is drawn down; just the same in a large area as a small. You will get the gas out one way or the other. It is this question of drainage from 160 acres being adequate and I believe it is.

MR. LEA:

Given a reasonable period of time, which might be measured by the economic life of the field, would your pressure equalization of 160 acres with one well be substantially all the way across that 160 acres?

A. If your permeability from one area to another is substantially the same, whether foot by foot does not matter - the permeability times the feet is uniform geographically, the answer is yes.

MR. LEA:

Would you be able to state from the study of this field and from the data available that there exists, generally speaking, that type of permeability - are you satisfied there is drainage across 160 acre tracts by virtue of permeability of the areas?

A. I believe about the first thing we introduced was that those wells drilled later in the life of the field had initial pressures considerably lower than the field initial of 585%. Those were taken where they might happen to hit and have indicated that generally speaking you have sufficient permeability for drainage over large areas.

MR. ALBERT GREER:

In your first exhibit you have shown these wells - the new wells come in with pressure between the old field pressure and the initial field pressure. In other words, you found a pressure differential which here approximates 100#. You made the statement that the wells would probably have to be abandoned at 150# pressure which I assume to be the seven day shut-in pressure you have recorded.

MR. NICHOLS:

I do not believe I stated that they had to be abandoned at 150#. This 150# arbitrarily has been set as possible abandonment pressure.

HR. GREER:

·ì

There would still be a pressure differential between the old wells and new wells,

MR. HICHOLS:

These wells vary from well to well. Even drilled at a given time there is as much as 70% difference from well, to well. It would depend on showe you drilled your well.

TR. GREER:

Too, isn't the differential increasing as the pressure in the old field declines.

MR. NICHOLS:

Magnitudo, yes. It is not declining by percentages.

MR. GREER:

At 150# for the field we may expect a differential of 150 or 200#.

LR. THOMPSON:

I don't think there will be any new wells at that point.

MR. GREER:

I was assuming there would be - doesn't that 200# represent additional recoverable gas if the wells had been drilled on closer spacing?

MR. THOMPSON:

If you found a position to drill where that was true - but that would be uneconomical, don't you think?

MR. GREER:

I think that ought to be decided by the Commission. Approximately 3/4 of the gas originally in the place would still be there.

MR. THOMPSON:

This well - a theoretical well - what is the actual pressure - 150 plus 200# - - -

MR. GREER:

Nould there be a greater recovery of gas with denser spacing - there will be more, just how much you are just about to figure out.

MR. NICHOLS:

If your pressure is 365# and initial 600# you would have approximately 61% of your pressure remaining or approximately 1,100,000,000 cu. ft. of gas. At 150# we have a little over 500,000,000 remaining, which would amount to a difference of 500 or 600 million that could be obtained between 365# and 150#.

MR. GREER.

Which represents a very large volume of gas when you consider a large field.

MR. NICHOLS:

On a 160 acre block at 5¢ a thousand, it would be about \$30,000 derived.

MR. GREER:

If the operator could reduce the cost from 14 or 15 thousand dollars to 10 thousand dollars he would have a ratio of 3 to 1 and could do it economically.

IR. NICHOLS:

If your drilling cost could be reduced that great, those conditions would hold true.

MR. GREER:

That is one thing possibly an operator could do.

MR. MICHOLS:

It doesn't prove that closer spacings would recover more gas - if your pressure reduction is such that you have equalization of pressure of 150% over the entire area you will recover the same amount of gas regardless of well density.

MR. GREER:

The information you present here does not substantiate that fact. The wells open with most bottom hole pressure and the well you were testing had a draw down, very small draw down compared to very many of the oil and gas fields in the state.

We have a great draw down but spacings are not changed. The operators believed they would recover more oil or gas due to the fact that they get greater production. Draw down of approximately 400# in adjoining wells that caused draw-down of 2# in the adjoining wells was very small.

MR. NICHOLS:

But is an indication of differential.

MR. GREERS

You will have that anywhere in the United States. The question is one of how much will it draw down and how much will it affect it.

MR. THOMPSON:

I think these wells shown in the outlying area - show that.

MR. GREER:

What percentage?

MR. THOMPSON:

It is 150# compared with 600#. You are assuming pressure of some theoretical amount in the outlying area.

MR. GREERS

You do not have evidence to support that and we don't know it will do it.

MR. THOMPSON:

You have got drainage across there.

MR. GREER:

}

Drainage, but how much drainage and at the end of the time how much gas is left in the reservoir that you could have produced? Spacing on 160 acres it would be adjoining wells on your spacings. We can take wells in most of the fields of New Mexico and West Texas and you will find the same type of pressure interference between wells on adjoining units. That factor alone is not sufficient evidence, it is a minor important consideration. The well spacing itself - it is going to result to the unrecoverable gas and cost of drilling the wells. There is a question it will be a considerable amount of gas left.

-24-

MR. THOMPSON:

I don't follow you. If you drilled a well on 160 acres - we are going to abandon that particular well at 150%, you could not possibly have 360% pressure inside the unit.

MR. GREER:

We are not talking about now wells - two or three miles in some cases, in most cases they are off to the sides - the average.

MR. THOMPSON:

In some cases they are 160 acres from the old wells.

MR. GREER:

When you have that you have no differential at all.

UR. THOMPSON:

All these wells had not been produced at all when this was taken. That was a dead section, no production being taken out there at all.

MR. GREER:

Let's take a close one - 416²_a, that is a difference of 60^{3}_{a} on a 160 acre unit.

MR. THOMPSON:

This well wasn't being produced at the time. It had just been drilled. When you connect it with the pipe line it will immediately start declining. You would have an area of 1/4 or 1/2 mile - everywhere else where you had a well connected with the pipeline it will be coming down in pressure.

MR. GREER:

So would the well drilled five miles away, but how far would it deplete the area? Mr. Morrell said something about inadequate market for all the wells and the drilling of additional wells would further decrease the bake from any individual well. It was his opinion 160 acre spacing would tend to alleviate that situation. It appears to me 160 acres would tend to aggravate rather than alleviate. There are a great many wells now drilled that lie on the inside of any particular block but the company drilled the well, which is greater than 1320 feet from the edge of the lease. This well then does not force the offset on the adjoining lease. If the 160 acre spacing is taken up a great many more offsets will be forced and required than is now existing in the field on 40 acre spacing ruling. If we take this information presented today as correct, a man would have the right and privilege to say to the land owners -I do not believe I can economically drill this well on 40 acres - it is possible he can unitize with serverse or he would have a reasonable excuse for not dvilling a woll himself. 160 acres, he would not have the excase or reason for not drilling the well and you would have additional wells drilled not forced or required, I think for the 160 core spacing you require some 30 or 40 officets in the field.

ER. LEAT

You assure that if the requested order is ordered, any 160 and will dive about a 160 acre unit you have get to have a well drilled on it?

MR. GR ER:

I presume that to be so, if the Consission passes this ruling. It is now a 40 acro ruling and I colleve it would be the spice for 160.

IR. JIA:

3. If you are predicting that the permanent is plug to be the loss is one terms, but if you are assorbing the necessity for such offsetting to would be inclined.
to disagree with you.

A. The government thinks this is the logical thing to do. It will depend on how your lease is written up. I believe they are federal leases in the Kuts Canon area - - -

MR. ENGLISH:

The majority of them.

LR. ORNER:

I believe this should be taken into consideration.

MR. THOMPSON:

Nichols and I checked the amount of gas withdrawals from the two fields for last year. The average take from the whole field was 17% of its open flow.

MR. GRMER:

You feel any wells in those fields would be granted an allowable to what it has been in the past, regardless of the production and spacing.

MR. THOMPSON:

I did not follow you at all.

MR. GREER:

I believe if you will show the government acreage in these fields you will find approximately 15 or 20 additional locations which will be forced if the 160 acre ruling is upheld.

LR. THOMPSON:

Why on 160 if it is not being forced on 40?

LR. GREER:

Some of the wells now drilled are more than 1320 feet from the edge of the lease.

MR. THOMPSON:

I believe that is a problem of the United States Goological Survey.

MA. SPORTIA:

Al do you mean to say that the distance of 1320 fact is the offset distance. If I am drilling a well closer than 1320 feet to your acroage than you will be forced to drill an offset. - By whose rules and regulations?

N2. GR SR:

1

Mr. Morroll will you contradict or add to that?

CR. MORROEL:

I would like to make my statement all at one time.

TR. SPERIERS

Is it reasonable to believe that the price of get in this ered will recain at by protheoremic and if so how long. I arout tokey facetious in the least - Mr. Nichols' figures were necessarily predicted on 5¢ a thousand but also the prices were assumed.

MR. GREER:

Additional recoverable gas left in the ground more from it and possibly additional wells. Just how much gas would be left is the question.

COMMISSIONER MILES:

The point I am interested in is as to the recovery. It may become more valuable - but the recovery is what I am interested in.

MANUEL SANCHEZ:

Wouldn't your regulations have to be changed then? It is a matter to be considered at the time. When the time comes if you can recover it below 150% economically, isn't that the time to come in and pass regulations?

UNCHISSIONER MILLES:

If it could be recovered now that would be the time to consider it.

MR. SANCHEZ:

Has there ever been any basic figure fixed upon which recovery at the present time could not be had economically?

MR. NICHOLS:

I think that varies both with your drilling cost and operating expense in any given areas; I think it would be considerably misleading for me to try to give a point such as that.

MR. GREER:

It is conceivable all gas could be recovered on 160 acre basis - it is better for the operators to get together and decide among themselves as to what they prefer. Certainly an operator is not going to drill a well closer than he feels he can recover gas economically in and at the same time he would like to be able to drill on smaller area if he feels he can.

MR. LEA:

Br. Contaissioner, I would like to make a state ant. Mr. Spurrier asked the question regarding the price of gas. We don't know that is going to happen to the price of gus in San Juan County or suy other location. The only know the price of gas in this general area has increased within the last 15 months from 3 to 5%. The concensus of opinion among producers is that the price of gas will increase. We all know the value of gas in a given area depends on many factors, not the least of which is the arount of gas available in that area. I don't know whether 150% or 100% or some other figure to the aba dominant prossure for this field, but it strikes he that the operating costs of the producers or of the gathering company is a real and positive barrier, dot only on the value of the gas but on the abandonment pressure for the field. Unless I as bedly informed, I believe Seathern Union Greduction Company in its operations in this Kutz Canon - Valchor Basin area is required to visit every well on a daily or twice daily basis for the purpose of checking the well as to its operating condition. Having operated up in that field for a long time it has been our view, as evidenced by our own operations, we have operated on a basis of one well to 160 acres - we believe one welt will reasonably and econo-ically drain 160 acres. Anyone is entitled to his views, and ours should not necessarily provail; however, no have gone to some effort to either confirm or modify our and conclusions and while it is probable that is any given period you can get more gas out by putting four wells on 160 acres; it is also true and cannot be denied that you do have drainage, counter drainage, cross drainage and drainage

from wide areas. If the present spacing rule prevails - I have heard some comments that made me wonder whether someone would really like to see 240 or 320 acre spacing, but so long as the present 40 acre ruling provalls in these fields some 20 years old - where pressures have declined without exception because of adjoining wells - we contend there is ample drainage across 160 acres. 1/3 of the gas has already been taken out. To leave the spacing like it is will permit or perhaps encourage the drilling of wells on a 40 nore basis, and is actually going to reduce the value of gas produced from that field because of additional operating cost, ultimately, to the man interested in getting value from that gas. My people are convinced we should have had 160 acres in the field all the time. To a large extent we have, in fact, operated on the basis of 160 acres; it is the smallest area that we think is a proper spacing unit. It isn't really feasible to try to unitize any smaller, but if you did you would almost be compelled to go to 40 acres. There might be some gas in remote areas that will never be recovered but we cannot see the economics of it. We can see it is liable to permit and encourage the operators to drill to their own self-destruction. I think we are all interested in getting the most gas for the least money. We want all the gas we can produce consistently with reasonable investment. It will naturally take longer to get that 71% of the total reserves out of one well on 160 acres than it will take with one well on each 40 acres; as pressures get lower and lower it is naturally going to produce less.

With the Southern Union Compressor Station serving this area - it is now some 2000 HP - and the gathering lines and with 160 acre spacing prevailing we aren't concerned about our ability to get the gas out of there. There is a definite danger to anybody owning and operating in that field under a spacing rule that will permit the drilling of wells on 40 acre units. We have just had an example of it - we have some wells located on like units, under the rule of the Commission and don't criticise it. Under your rules, however, it was proposed recently to drill a well up in the neck of three 160 acre units 550 fect from each of them. Such well would require a 3 way offset and that kind of thing isn't even 40 acre spacing. We would be forced to pay compensatory royalty or drill three wells to offset - I as sure my figures are right and the distance between those wells is only 660 feet. If that is not 10 acre spacing I am badly mistaken. It is this very situation that brought this matter before this Commission. The well was re-located before it was commenced and put in the center of a 160 acre unit. We sincerely have brought this thing to the Commission because we falt that something had to be done. We are drilling in an old area where 1/3 of the gas is already gone. As to the old wells on small units, the wells were drilled properly and lawfully at the time. They are there and if we had it all to do over again we wouldn't drill them in some cases. Whether that is true with some other people I don't know, but there the wells are and we cannot do anything about it. We do know that one well will drain more than 160 acres of land if given a reasonable opportunity in point of time. Us suggest 180 serves because that is the generally established spacing.

COUMISSIONAR MILS:

Anybody also like to ask any questions?

(llo response)

het to get one point straight - as an overall piebare, I was talking about the mabbar the twore discussing at black particular the biss partaining to shotly our solution would perfore there gas from 4 wells on 40 about such beau 1 well on 160 acres.

TR. LAS

I would concede it is manifest that is the same period of the you can extract here gas on 160 acro tracts by drilling 4 wells than one well. It is the limiting factor of the open flow. I think everyons realizes that they can produce more gas per day with 4 wells than one. Our problem is to find an opticar spacing unit being the reasonably adequate and economical well for the field, the exclusion cannot produce more gas ultimately from 4 wells from free on localed on a 100 acre unit.

JUDGE SETH:

On behalf of the Stanolind Oil Company I am instructed to advise the Commission they have no objection, but believe the spacing should be larger than the 160 acres in these pools of gas.

DUDLEY CORNELL:

Mr. A. Greer has been informal chairman of independent operators, and he asked me to ask that a copy of these exhibits be made available - and that the independent operators be allowed a rebuttal at the next meeting of the Commission.

MR. LEAT

I don't know what that means exactly, but it strikes me a little singular. We went to the extreme of mailing to each person a copy of our petition with the suggestion that we exchange information with a view to ending our business properly at this hearing. I do not comprehend exactly why it should be necessary under those conditions - adequate notice has been given and we had no request from anyone for information. We did not hear from Mr. Cornell. We are not denying the opportunity to anyone to be heard in this matter, but I believe the opportunity has been given.

MR. SILVER:

I would like to make a statement for my employer. As I said before, we have no particular desire about well spacing other than the most economical. We have a peculiar problem in San Juan Basin of having a like permeability of sand structure, productive areas which are not too well understood to the present day. We do not particularly have any preference in this field, we have a small amount of acreage on which we probably will never drill. We would like to see, if possible, additional data on this field as time goes on. So far as the 160 acre spacing is concerned, it is entirely feasible that a greater or lesser spacing might be desirable. That should be determined from the economic facts. We would like to see the data given here today given to us in some form.

COUNTSSIONAR HILLS:

Mr. Lea, you do not feel you can operate on less than 160 acres from an economical standpoint?

MR. LEA:

We sincerely think it would be a mistake to do it. Mr. Nichols' figures assume \$16,000.00 cost and a 5¢ rate on present day conditions. If you could find a spot where a well drilled could produce 535% and you drill on 40 acres, the only thing other than 160 acres that is feasible, you would recover only 37% of your investment disregarding operating cost and disregarding the fast that it would take you years to do it in. If you drill a well with 400% of pressure you would recover - assuming you had this kind of condition, exactly one-half your original investment.

FR. ENGLISH:

You fellows have been talking on pressure all day and have noter meetinged the millions of feet you could get.

MANUSE SANCHEZI

Mr. Nichols gave it in the record.

MR. ENGLISH:

I would like to know about millions of feat of gas.

WR. DHOMASCHI

The trothrony has developed the net recoverable gas on 160 heres an 1,300,000,000 foct. If you drill on 40 heres and everybody also does, your recoverable gas would a MA of the Lemma area of the present field covers approximately 22,000 hores; We we delived the even have a finite and the covers part of the equilibrium even wells at 316,000.00 a well - would be almost \$8,000,000.00 you would have to spend. It would be impossible to ever recover the original investment.

MR. LEAT

My statement was made on the same assumption, a 400% well could never produce the same quantity of gas as a 585% well.

MR. ENGLISH:

You fellows have anything against ratable taking?

MR. LEA:

No. But about a year ago there was a bill appeared - about a year ago - and it was the most immature I have seen. If we are going to have one, let's have a good one.

COMMISSION R MILES :

That was the only bill presented, you had the same opportunity of anybody else to present one. The meeting was called for the purpose of discussing it and that should not be taken as an example.

MR. LEA:

I did not mean to suggest that at all, but the fact does remain that a bill was presented and we thought it a bad one and had to oppose it. Pro-ration may come to this field, perhaps it should. There are people in the field today that would be hurt by this. Our only question about pro-ration would be the additional burden on the operators and the Commission.

COMMISSIONER MILES:

This is a matter to come before the Legislature and not this Commission.

MR. GREER:

I would like to request that the Commission consider the offsets that will be required if a 160 acre spacing ruling is upheld or in deciding on spacing ruling that they be taken into consideration; and the reason for that being considered I would refer to Mr. Foster Morrell's letter in which he remarks about the market, and the increased number of wells causing the production from each well to be so small as to make it uneconomical to drill additional wells. Also the rule 4 - 40 acres to a unit, and establishing a great number of bad spaced wells throughout the field. I doubt that the average spacing in the field exceeds 120 acres. I do not believe the rotaining of the 40 acre spacing unit will see additional wells in the old field unless it does become economically feasible.

FOSTER MORRELLI

I would like to clarify the points that have been raised.

First, in order to show the interest that the Pederal Sovernoot has in the Kutz Canyon - Fulcher Basin accas, I have prepared some acreage figures. A conservative estimate taking in more than 1/2 mile from present existing wells arrived at a figure of approximately 22,080 mores that could be considered as proven production. From the south end of Jection 32 up to Section 19, 30 M, 12 M - of that acreage the federal is 16,200 or 71%, fee land 6400 acres or 20%. According to our maps there are 30 acres of state land we could not get percentage mark on. On that proven acreage there have been 77 wells completed; 45 on government lands and 32 on fee lands. The development, 53% of the wells, a painet 42% for fee lands as compared to 71% of the acreage, broken down to fields - Fulcher Basin total is 12,400 - 32% taxing percented by 40% for and no state.

In the Fulcher Basin fields, 40% of the wells on U. S. land, in number 21 on U.S. land, 31 on fee land - a total of 52. Kutz Canon is a total of 10,230 acres, of the federal interest represents 96%, of the fee 4%. Twenty-five wells have been completed, 24 of those 25 wells are on our federal land, with the control we have under the lease act and federal leases in Kuts Canon, we have 96% of the acreage developed by 96% of the wells. Going back somewhat into history of the development, I think the whole picture is somewhat complicated by the variance of opinions of individuals versus companies which we always have with us, but our position is one that equity should be provided regardless of whether the operator is a major company or an individual or small company. The facts with respect to development are indicated in a very short statement I reported recently to Washington, that during the past six years wells increased from 8 as of December 51, 1941 in Fulcher Basin only to 15 as of December 31, 1944 and 51 as of December 31, 1947. A ratio of 8 to 51 or over six times increase. The field withdrawals during that period is represented by the figures of 1 billion ou. ft. for 1942, 1.9 billion in 1945, and 2.6 billion in 1947. That is a ratio of one to 2.6. We have a number of outlying producing wells but the number of wells increased 6 times and the market increased by only 2.6 on all wells in the same period. The withdrawal per unit decreased.

MR. ENGLISH:

Have they been taking all that gas?

A. They have a market for all the gas.

MR. ENGLISH:

If you are furnishing gas from Barker you wouldn't be taking as much gas from Fulcher Basin?

MR. HORRELL:

Barker comes into the pipeline south of Kutz Canyon and does not affect the deliveries in the Kutz Canyon - Fulcher Basin area.

Any market from any field will depend on deliverability of the gas from that field, and deliverability depends on the open flow capacity. You can't get away from pressure at the rate to which the wells can get it up.

R. ENGLISH:

At one time they had the same pressure in each field. You are not noing to try and tell me there isn't any more gas than before. How do you know this field won't reach out and take in a large area?

MR. MORRELL:

This is just a matter of record of past production. The point we are matting in that you have greater increased wells than you have in the market, which means you will have to divy up your market.

HR. DEGLISH:

From what I hear there is a probby good sime market.

ER. GRUNR:

Isn't it natural for the pressure of gas we is to decline in any gas field? They could have taken more gas from time to time by lowering their pressure.

IR. MURSLIN

I don't know about lowered pressure in order to get more gas. It is a matter of record in all gas publications that for protection of recorvoirs gas should not exceed 20% of the flow. Over the years yes will find that is raisballed.

TE, GREAR:

The gestitue of chabless is should be particulated in 2011 of the such flow and

whether you hurt the reservoir by taking more is certainly an open question.

MR. MORRELL:

It has been debated for the last 30 years and there has been very little proof otherwise. You are getting to the matter of rate at which a reservoir will re-charge itself. If you pull it out too fast when it comes you are going to have to sit there and wait for it.

MR. GREER:

I do not believe you could find evidence to substantiate that.

MR. SILVER:

This field and your data given - more gas by harder draws and I believe it will be substantiated.

MR. THOMPSON:

I said the average annual take was 17% of its open flow, I don't know of a field in the country that is being given a better pull than that.

MR. MORRELL:

In the earlier days of development, there were certain spacing exceptions made before it was determined that a 160 acre spacing was the most economical and best for the reservoir - at that time by agreement with both Southern Union Gas and Dudley Cornell in connection with the development of the Fulcher Basin field, the only one active at that time - we set up 160 acre units. P.A.W. had the 640 acre limitation and at the request of Cornell and Southern Union Gas, several 160 acre exceptions were made.

MR. CORNELL:

Southern Union Gas refused to join with me in my application at that time.

MR. MORRELL:

The fact was that we had 160 acre spacing and the Oil Conservation Commission adopted an order for that field - Order 551 effective in June 1943.

On application from private land operators and after a hearing of the Commission, the Commission cancelled the order. The Interstate Compact Commission made a recommendation that well spacing adopted during the war should be continued wherever feasible to protect equities. A great additional development - this increase from 15 to 31 over a three year period has been to a considerable extent caused by the recent development on private lands along the Animas River. I think they are entitled to all the gas underneath their ground and should be given considerations, but I don't think that acreage should set up spacing for the entire field. What the Commission could do and should do has been pointed out in the testimony. The only other thing I could see at this time would be by logislation for pro-ration, as Mr. Cornell proposed. As I understand the petition of the Southern Union day it is for development from now on and will not adversely affect any existing wells up to this these. In answer to some of the questions that have been values up to this these. In

MR. BEGLISH:

That is what no are afraid of.

12. 10 AULI

The question of offsets is a matter of your lease terms, lease terms on private lands are more strict than on federal land. If the operator does not do what the owner thinks he should, he can take it into court and you have to drill on offset. The public lease allow considerable discretion - that discretion is in favor of the operator. Componsatory royalty is called for in lieu of astual drilling. We made this as to each location and wherever a possible location might be we take into consideration all known facts. If we think there is drainage we will call on you to show cause why you shouldn't drill. You have a chance to show us and if the information is adequate that is all there is to it. Our office at Roswell has leaned over backwards on the spacing matter in Fulcher Basin, primarily because of the small type of production obtained. To let this thing come to a head where it can get to a point of development -I have in mind a tract surrounded by four wells, immediately adjoining that 120 on which we have asked Byrd-Frost to drill one well, but if the Commission does not see fit to protect the equity of operators who have already drilled and allows unnecessary wells to be drilled on 40 acre tracts - - -

MR. ENGLISH:

What well is that?

MR. MORRELL:

That is the Byrd-Frost Hudson.

MR. ENGLISH:

You don't consider that a gas well?

MR. MORRELL:

That is a gas well of the type being completed in that field.

If the Commission does not see fit to set up a minimum spacing for that, more than 40 acres and up to 160, it may become necessary for us to essentially draw a fence around private operations by requiring offsets where we have a block of acreage on 160 acre spacing. We don't want to do that, that is false economy. The testimony presented has shown this is more a matter of economics than anything else. I would like to take exception to Mr. Greer's statements as to the gas left in the ground. There will not be any more gas in the 160 than the 40. I would also like to correct a statement made by Mr. Silver - you said you had an identical field.

MR. SILVER:

I meant the geological boundaries - type of formation, age, conditions of accumulation, everything but the pressure.

MR. DUIRELLI

Would you name that for the record - the name of the field?

MR. SILVER:

- 1

Blanco field - two producing zones, Mess Verde for addition and foint Acokout sandstone. 4400 feet and approximately 5051 feet.

MR. MORDERLI

Pressure is about what?

MR. SILV R:

The pressure is around 1300%, the only difference, the accurrentation is currents of gas the limits of the field and their field is not limited by geological conditions so much as by economical factors of production and development. We feel we have a field limited the same way by economic factors of production and development. The geological factors closely approximate these in Fulcher Basin - Kutz Canon.

TR. MORRELLAT

I understood you more talking of an entire different reservoir. You nade the state only what was done in the Fulcher Basin and Kutz Genou would a ply directly to your field.

MR. SILVER:

I meant what action the Commission might take on low permeability reservoir, it is economically a marginal reservoir, has to be produced as such. We feel also our reservoir might be marginal reservoir and will have to be produced as such. The action of the Commission in this case will have some bearing on our field.

MR. MORRELL:

Did you have in mind a spacing of 160 acres or more.

MR. SILVER:

Our pressure is greater. We could not conceivably see less than 320 acre spacing.

MR. MORRELLI

As I recall, the south of your present wells at San Juan, the river crosses your structures on which there is considerable land. The same question could arise in the Blanco area as in Fulcher Basin.

It may be a good idea to make an application to the Oil Conservation Commission before it gets out of hand.

MR. SILVER:

We feel we cannot discuss it with the Oil Conservation Commission without a geological survey.

MR. LEA:

Yours is a new field?

MR. SILVER:

No, it is fully as old as Fulcher Basin.

MR. MORRELL:

I would like to mention for the information of the Commission - I think Governor Miles mentioned something about 5¢ gas - I think the operators in Fulcher Basin -Kutz Canon should feel very fortunate that they are receiving 5¢ nof because there is no other gas produced in the State of New Mexico that is getting 5¢per mof. The standard price in Lea County - the best you can get on normal sale is $3\frac{1}{2}4$ mof.

I do say, as stated in this letter, the 160 acre spacing is a necessary thing to protect all parties who have drilled wells - to protect then from losing the money they have invested - the questions that have been asked indicates a lack of knowledge of what may happen in the future on the part of some individual operators who may be making investments and end up in the red. If we have operators losing money it is uping to discourage development. To want to keep operators on a profitable basis.

HR. HIGHLIGHT

If we get 160 gore spacing a d if we take to drill a woll in Particutor.

MR. MORRBLL:

Nouldn's have any effect.

CO TISSIOUR MILES:

Anyone have a question or state and to usid?

MR. A. D. STATABBE

I used 1100 to present these printiess from factors in the Juan County, and I 11 The sector is a sector of the respect.

Case 120

COMMISSIONER MILES:

They will be considered by the Counission and included in the record.

MR. LEA:

While all these statements have been made without the benefit of the testimony I have some other statements for the record.

One from the Western Natural Gas Company expressing approval of the plan, and one from J. J. Hudson. There seems to be several spots of concern about exceptions; I guess we have taken it for granted that exceptions would be provided by the Commission. There will be and there are situations in which if the operator can find it economically feasible to drill he should be permitted to do so, on petition to this Commission describing what he expects to do and be given full consideration whatever spacing unit should be adopted. That applies not only in the well developed field but in the flanking areas where open flows and permeability are a little out of the trend. The citizens from Farmington seem concerned over the statement in the petition that the Commission's order should govern the field or area as it might be extended. The only purpose of that is to make unnecessary new orders of the Commission on account of extensions. The Commission's order should include the immediate surrounding area of the field as it is extended; otherwise, it could only be controlled by repeated orders of the Commission. I did not suppose anyone had the idea this field would include other developed areas. The Commission's order should have a provision to include this field and exclude other producing areas. So far as other areas are concerned it strikes us there is not sufficient information to this Commission or to the operator to know what is needed. There is no reason to prevent this Commission from entering, on petition, whatever additional orders might be necessary.

MR. MORRELLI

Of the wells drilled 71% of the total and 96% in Kutz Canon and 54%, I believe, in Fulcher Basin are on Federal land. I would like to add we have had in the past several applications and one current for relief an account of high operating costs, for relief from rentals on public land leases from \$1.00 an acre to 25% an acre. In granting those the Bepartment has recognized the low return. We have one by Mr. Carroll and Mr. Carroll has developed his own lease on 160 acre spacing and still needs reduction on the rental.

This increased number of wells and the annual rate of withdrawals at 2.6 billion for 1947 and estimated for 1948 approximately the same. Fifty one gas wells in Fulcher Basin \$15,000 or \$16,000 per well for cost of drilling. You can add your taxes, you would have in the neighborhood of \$1,000 to \$1,500 net per year, in the neighborhood of \$100 per month. That is the situation if you get into excess wells it will continue to decrease. Instead of \$100 to \$150 per month you get \$75 to \$100 per month.

HR. CORDON:

Byrd-Frost encourages spacing not loss than 160 acres to the well, but we are concerned with this offset proposition and also feel when the boundaries of the field is reached there should be some latitude given on the losation of wells loss than 1/2 wile if possible, and should be a little latitude there.

134-0142-34:

The geological listbation of the field we have been discussing will be more by computer than by geology.

PR. ED RELL

I will say as much.

MR. JOBLISH:

According be the United States Geological Survey Viero is to standthe Chere.

MR. MORRELLI

I am afraid we would have to differ, anything is a structure.

MR. GRAHAMI

What area did the proposed order apply to?

MR. THOMPSON:

}

Approximate area is described in the application.

COMMISSIONER MILES:

Anybody else any question to ask or any statement to make?

The Commission is going to take this case under advisement and anyone who wants to file a written statement to the Commission, we will be glad to have you do so.



1020 North Shipp Hobbs, New Sexico Nebruary 21, 1948

The New Mexico Oil Conservation Complesion

Santa Ne, New Lexico

Concerning: Brief submitted on behalf of same of the independent operators and small land owners of can Juan County in regard to:

> date tanger 190, relative to the request of the touchern Union Gas Company for a spacing coling for the Fulcher Dasin-Autz Canyon Gas Tiglds, the Jann County.

Centlemon:

> I wish to submit herewill for your consideration in this matter a few written statements current into the case and testimony perteining thereto, as i have analyzed it.

1. The general problem of optimum spacing in any field requires careful study and a large account of carefully jethered and compiled information.

2. Until a proximately two sector prior to this bearin all of the necessary into action has been availed only to the forther Union das Conseny. It is that the construction is a capacy information has been complied by these does the traction of the they weliable to respected on the sector is the construction of the they, enter, the problem is a sector is the construction of the they enter, the problem is a sector is the construction of the they enter, the problem is the construction of the theory and parts respondent of the construction of the enter of the parts is provide a cut the collector.

3. A spacing ruling in an old field of thoat regard to proration--or without a provation ruling--would, in effect, be a direct contradiction to the conception of correlative rights as understood in the petroleum industry.

> For, just as new 40-acre wells offsetting old wells on 180 nores would unfairly danin the 140-abre timet; so would new 160-acre taile he distant of the old of 40-acre tracts.

 Whe proof of the shadd wells at those on unlitited market, and resulting scalle of well a scattion rate is proght out by Mr. . oster Correll of the MGAD would, in y cointen, be more likely a gravated by Ido-acto units than relievely due to the increased number of forced offacts.

5. In regard to the ovidence presented at shy hearing, February 17, 1943 It was shown that old wolls had a drainale influence over extended distances in space areas, and in interference test conducted on adjoining wells astaulished couldnichtion between them: but the evidence procented did not more here had as will be left unrecovered in the reserveir at abaldonicat ior various well spacings; now die She bestlaan, besorbla toe maner in which wells is blue locked on Fid-more multiplication to as will could later to hold for many many of, is present we readed by frashing in the first of the second state of the second state of the second second second second second second second s

1

. .

(n) or 1, chick or constants or realized (n) Galeria de la constant Romando de la la constant de la constant de la constant de la constant de la constant La Realized de la constant de la constant de la constant de la constant Realized de la constant Realized de la constant Realized de la constant Realized de la constant Realized de la constant Realized de la constant Realized de la constant de

estusence.

(a) in the set of a set of the set of a set of the set of a space of the set of the set

in the reservoir for various soll spacings; for which subject inadequate testimmy was presented.

(c) A provision should be made, if a spacing of 100 a new per well is contouplated, to permit later infilled drilling on a closer spacing, if ever proven economically feasible. It should be recognized that the next smallest, practical spacing from 160-acre units is 30 acres per well; and this is possible only if the wells on the initial 160-acre tracts are spotted on 80-acre patterns. If a rigid center-spot location on 100 comes is sectived, the only uniform spacing on infilled drilling for each 160-acre tract, would require 4 were wells, or an average of 32 acres per well.

From the testimony presented at the hearing it can be seen that an increase in the price of gas, plus a decrease in the cost of arilling the wells (both of which are normal trends*) would justify infilled drilling on 30-acre locationsif it is found later that as much as approximately 25% more as can be recovered on the closer spacing. This same information indicates that infilled drilling of 32 acres per well would probably never be economically feasible. Hence, 160-acre center-spot locations sould make later infilled drilling on individual 160-acre tracts forever impossible.

field indicates that a large number of the drilling units can be more effectively drained by locating the sells in the most permeable part of the unit; and this permeable part is not necessarily in the center of 100-acro spaces. For the same number of wells, the field can be core effectively drained by placing the wells in the most perceable parts of units rather than rigid conteners! locations.

It is therefore required, and in the sect the Constant decides to set a spectrum Mapple print 100-actes for well, that consideration be given to floatbilling of law day could well on its out; in order that enclose edvants of a source stated from the continuously developed to lo test and as incortant incometion; and in order that operates of the the opportraity to loaded their colle of compatibility to the opportraity to they could be in postated in the factor (infill wells it proven

1

e onomically justifiable.

6. It is realized that some action may be necessary to protect the investment of operators who drilled wells on 160acre tracts. It is possible, however that the entire situation could best be handled by an operators condittee formed by active operators in the meas. Benchar mostings could be held and all additional information studied and allocassed. In the event of fathure of such a condittee to bein reasonable a recent among the operators, resort could be hed to legal action by the Oil Conservation Sourceston.

Yourd very bruly,

/8/ Albert C. Greer Albert N. Greer

The decrease in the cost of drilling would reall from improved methods and competition in drilling as more activity centers in this area.

El Fidel Hotel Albuquerque, New Maxico

February 13, 1948

011 Conservation Coumission Santa Fe, New Mexico

Gentlemen:

The writer has made a study of the petition of Southern Union Production Company for a spacing order fixing the spacing of wells hereafter drilled in the Kuts-Canyon-Fulcher Basin gas fields, looking towards the best interest of the United States, the State of New Mexico and the development of potential areas involved. It is my opinion that this proposed program is sound. No doubt, there will be instances where exceptions are warranted, which would come under the wise discretion of the New Mexico Oil Conservation Commission.

Respectfully,

J. J. Hudson

JJH:fr

- 1

cc - Southern Union Production Company / Burt Building Dallas 1, Texas

EARL A. NICHOLS Consulting Petroleum Engineer 2000 KIDWELL STREET DALLAS, TEXAS T3-14:22

. .

G. # - 126

Petriary 5, 1010

Ir. Van Theipson Southern Union Gas Co. Burt Building Dallas, Texas

Dear I'r. Thomson:

- 1

I have received the charts riving the results of the recommended field tests. These tests were performed on the Eutz Cannon -Fulcher Basin Field in order to attempt to establish a positive, mechanical answer as to whether pressure interference exists across 160 acre tracts in the above rentioned field. It was our helief that should such pressure interference exist between wells now drilled on approximately 160 acre spacing, one could accordingly feel that drainage across 160 acre tracts existed.

Seven wells whose approximate spacing are 160 acres per well were chosen. They were the SUP Malker #1, SUP Walker #2, SUP 1c Grath #1, SUP BC Grath # 2, SUP 1c Grath # 3, SUP Kattler # 1, and the SUP Hudson # 2 wells. These wells were shut in at noon January 9, 1006 and retained shut in until 8:30 A.M. January 12, 1006. At this time all of the wells except the Walker # 1 were nut on production against a line pressure of 261 to 270 P.S.I. ga. at 9:00 A.M. on January 13th, the surrounding wells were taken off of the line and blown to the air, the Walker #1 still retaining shut in. - recording pressure chart on the well head of the Welker # 1 well during this test reveals the attached tebulated and graphical results.

It is to be noticed that due to the normal cycle of strospheric temperature change during a 2' hour period, the temperature effect on the recording instrument shows a distinctive 2' hour cycle change on the recorded pressures. To help clarify this effect, the pressures were righted versus time of day and this graph is included. It will be noticed that, integralizes of these termerature effects, the evenall entry of pressures for the second day lie eventle offects, the evenall entry of pressures for the second day lie eventle offects, the evenall entry of pressures for the second day lie eventle with above the entry of pressures for the first less of the shut in period. This is offected, of evenue, a baist the entry hall usef consume due to the offective lie respective distance of a , aboving this as a build us. The successive distance of an entry action, on the evening of the back day, but there effect an balter W L is not sit interstive for the fit off of the back belevened that the evene of pressures for the 5th day. The fit here is here these of the life day, but the fit off of the back of the fit of the back day were defined printing enderned to be these of the life day, mere definitely interfined enderned to here these of the life day, were definitely interfined enderned to here these of the life day, were definitely interfined enderned to here these of the life day, were definitely interfined enderned to here these of the life day, were definitely interfined enderned to here these of the life day, were definitely interfined enderned to here these of the life day is not the ender the enderned to be the here these of the life day, were definitely interfined enderned to here the of the life day.

te profe

In order to try to evaluate the regainvie of this creative det, an arithmetic average of the pressures the last fillours of the tests give a value of 101, fill, auto, we arithmetic average of the pressures during the same hours of the preceding day gave 103.6 P.S.I. gauge. This is a 1, f pound drop. This can not seen like a large drop, but after considering all of the reservoir fac-tors involved, this is felt to be as large a pressure drop as one wight expect. might expect.

It is my feeling that these tests have conclusively shown oressure interference between wells now drilled on a 160 acre sattern. It is further my feeling that since prossure draw down can be exbe to further by recting that state prossure that down can be ex-perienced between such wells, drainage of reservoir material across 160 acre tracts exists under such conditions.

If there are any points discussed on which you would like further concent, please contact ce.

Very truly yours,

Earl a. Nichols

Barl A. Tichols

EAN/1.

7 1

1

. .

pago 3.

Time Noon 1 PM 2 T 3 T 5 T 7 T 10 T 12 idni 1 2 idni 1 2 idni 1 2 idni 1 2 idni 1 2 T 10 T 10 T 10 T 10 T 10 T 10 T 10 T 10	381 382 382 382 383 385 385 385 385 392 392	2nd day 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 20	3rd day 102 103 105 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100	hth day 107 108 108 108 108 108 108 108 108 107 106 107 106 107 103 103 102 102 102 102 102 102 101 101 100 100	5th day 107 102 102 102 103 103 103 103 103 103 103 103 103 103
10 " 11 "	396 398	705 205	1.01	1:01: 1:07	

· - 1

. .

SHUT IN PRESSURES on MALKER # 1

۰.

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR GEOLOGICAL SURVEY

El 5-126

P. 0. Box 997 Roswell, New Mexico Februery 10, 1948

AIR MAIL

Mr. Willis L. Lea, Jr. Southern Union Production Company Burt Building Dallas, Texas

Dear Mr. Lea:

Reference is made to your letter of January 26, enclosing for our information a copy of Southern Union Production Company's petition forwarded to the New Mexico Oil Conservation Commission requesting an order, after notice and hearing, fixing spacing requirements for wells hereafter drilled in the Kutz Canyon-Fulcher Basin gas fields, San Juan County, New Mexico. You requested our opinion concerning the proper specing of wells in these fields.

The essential facts presented in your petition are substantiated by the records of this office, and, accordingly, this office concurs in your request for the establishment of a well specing plan with a minimum of one well to 160 acres to promote orderly development without waste in the Kutz Canyon and Fulcher Basin gas fields.

As most of the lands in these fields are public lands of the United States, it is the desire of this office to encourage uniform and economic development and greatest ultimate recovery of gas from these fields. This can be accomplished only so long as a reasonable profit can be secured from capital invested. Federal leases have been developed generally on a well spacing pattern of one well to 160 acres, except where necessary to protect properties from closer spacing by offset operators.

Only where the market demand and marketing facilities are unlimited for continued expansion with the completion of additional outlets or producing gas wells can necessary profit be obtained to continue development. These conditions are not present in the fields under consideration. Hence the drilling of unnecessary wells does not proportionately increase the ultimate volume of gas available for sale but instead tends to reduce the margin of profit of all wells in the fields and to discourage proper development of the fields. Future development at a well density consistent with the majority of past development is essential to prevent injury to neighboring leases or properties and to protect equities involved.

)

There is no objection to your use of this letter in connection with your petition to the New Mexico Oil Conservation Commission. As this office is very interested in the subject, I expect to be present at the hearing in Santa Fe on February 17.

Very truly yours,

Foster Morrell FOSTER MORRELL, Supervisor, Oil and Gas Operations

Jour file 4,26

ALBERT R. GREER REGISTERED PETROLEUM ENGINEER STATE OF NEW MEXICO

UL CONDERVATION COMPANIES SAUTA FEB 23 IS IS SUSIM

1020 North Shipp Hobbs, New Mexico February 21, 1948

The New Mexico Oil Conservation Commission

Santa Fe, New Mexico

Concerning: Brief submitted on the behalf of some of the independent operators and small land owners of San Juan County in regard to: Case Nummber 126, relative to the request of the Southern Union Gas Company for a spacing ruling for the Fulcher Basin-Kutz Canyon Gas Fields, San Juan County.

Gentlemen:

I wish to submit herewith for your consideration in this matter a few written statements summarizing this case and testimony pertaining thereto, as I have analyzed it.

1. The general problem of optimum spacing in any field requires careful study and a large amount of carefully gathered and compiled information.

2. Until approximately two weeks prior to this hearing all of the necessary information has been available only to the Southern Union Gas Company. At that time part of this necessary information had been compiled by them from their files and made available to interested parties. Two weeks is not sufficient time, however, to permit a study of this nature by an outside company or individual. Moreover, the information assembled at that time was not adequate to provide a definite solution.

3. A spacing ruling in an old field without regard to proration-- or without a proration ruling-- would, in effect, be a direct contradiction to the conception of correlative rights, as understood in the petroleum industry. For, just as new 40-acre wells offsetting old wells on 160 acres would unfairly drain the 160-acre tract; so would new 160-acre units be drained by old wells on 40-acre tracts.

4. The problem of increased wells without an unlimited market, and

ALBERT R. GREER REGIBTERED PETROLEUM ENGINEER STATE OF NEW MEXICO -2-

Brief of case 126

resulting smaller per well production rate as brought out by Mr. Foster Morrell of the USGS would, in my opinion, be more likely aggravated by 160-acre units than relieved; due to the increased number of forced offsets.

5. In regard to the evidence presented at the hearing, February 17, 1948 it was shown that old wells had a drainage influence over extended distances in some areas, and an interference test conducted on adjoining wells established communication between them: but the evidence presented did not show how much gas will be left unrecovered in the reservoir at abandonment for various well spacings; nor did the testimony describe the manner in which wells would be located on 160-acre units in order that wells could later be infilled on smaller tracts, if proven ecomonically feasible.

To briefly clarify these points, I wish to point out:

(a) That, although drainage over extended distances has been proven and communication has been established between adjoining wells; the Kutz Canyon-Fulcher Basin Field is not unique in this respect. The same can be shown for most of the oil and gas fields now in existence.

(b) In view of this, a decision on a spacing ruling should be based—not from evidence of communication and some drainage alone— but also from a consideration of the value of the ultimately unrecoverable gas left in the reservoir for various well spacings; for which subject inadequate testimony was presented.

(c) A provision should be made, if a spacing of 160 acres per well is contemplated, to permit later infilled drilling on a closer spacing, if ever proven economically feasible. It should be recognized that the next smallest, practical spacing from 160-acre units is 80 acres per well; and this is possible only if the wells on the initial 160-acre tracts are spotted on 80-acre patterns. If a rigid center-spot location on 160 acres is required, the only uniform spacing on infilled drilling for each 160-acre tract would require 4 more wells, or an average of 32 acres per well.

From the testimony presented at the hearing, it can be seen that an increase in the price of gas, plus a decrease in the cost of drilling the wells

ALBERT R. GREER REGISTERED PETROLEUM ENGINEER STATE OF NEW MEXICO -3-

Brief of case 126

(both of which are normal trends*) would justify infilled drilling on 80-acre locations if it is found later that as much as approximately 25% more gas can be recovered on the closer spacing. This same information indicates that infilled drilling of 32 acres per well would probably never be economically feasible. Hence, 160-acre center-spot locations would make later infilled drilling on individual 160-acre tracts forever impossible.

Moreover, a study of the field indicates that a large number of the drilling units can be more effectively drained by locating the wells in the most permeable part of the unit; and this permeable part is not necessarily in the center of 160-acre tracts. For the same number of wells, the field can be more effectively drained by placing the wells in the most permeable parts of units rather than rigid centerspot locations.

It is therefore requested, that in the event the Commission decides to set a spacing ruling requiring 160-acres per well, that consideration be given to flexibility of locating each well on its unit: in order that maximum advantage may be realized from the continuously developed geological and engineering information; and in order that operators may have the opportunity to locate their wells on 80-acre patterns if they so choose, so that they would be in position in the future to infill wells if proven economically justifiable.

6. It is realized that some action may be necessary to protect the investment of operators who drilled wells on 160-acre tracts. It is possible, however that the entire situation could best be handled by an operators committee formed by active operators in the area. Kegular meetings could be held and all additional information studied and discussed. In the event of failure of such a committee to bring reasonable agreement among the operators, resort could be had to legal action by the Oil Conservation Commission.

Yours very truly,

Albert R. Greer

*The decrease in the cost of drilling would result from improved methods and competition in drilling as more activity centers in this area.

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR GEOLOGICAL SURVEY

P. C. Dox 997 Roswell, 1987 Merrico March 15, 1948

Mr. R. R. Spurrier New Mexico Oil Conservation Convission P. O. Box 871 Santa Fe, New Mexico

UL CONSE-Same MAR 17 1848

Dear Mr. Spurrier:

Reference is made to the petition of the Southern Union Production Company for an order fixing the spacing of wells in the Kutz Canyon and Fulcher Essin gas fields, San Juan County, Hew Menico, on the basis of one well to a drilling unit of approximately 160 acres, testimony on which was taken under Case 40. 126 at the hearing hold in Santa Fe on February 17.

The Department of the Interior has approved five agreements communitizing Federal lands with fee lands in these two fields for drilling units of 160 acres. In approving these agreements the Department has stated

> "The major portion of the gas production in the Fulcher Basin (or Kutz Canyon) field has been developed on an average spacing pattern of approximately 160 acres per well. Development on the basis of 160 acres per well is considered to be adequate for efficient exploitation of the gas reserves."

In the Approval-Certification-Determination executed by the Assistant Secretary for each of these agreements, which included separate or isolated 40 or 80 acre tracts of Federal land, is the following action:

> "Determine that the portion of the Mederal leasehold committed to the attached a reenant cannot be independently developed and operated in conformity with the established well-spacing pattern for the (Autz Conyon or Fulcher Decin) get field and that consumation of the spreacht will be in the public interest."

Your fills should about the couldings under which HCD cores well specing enoughlous for drilling ges colls in these fields were ground by the watrology collected for the for the field include the following: Lach well be drilled on a drilling unit of not less than 160 surface acres; each well be drilled at least 1980 feet from all other wells; and each well be drilled at least 990 feet from any lacse line, property line, or subdivision line which separates unconsolidated property interests.

Enclosed is a copy of a form letter dated March 1 from Fred Peasel and a copy of my instructions of March 10 regarding the spacing of gas wells on Pederal lesses adjoining lease Santa de 0,0505, issued to Peasel.

This information is being furnished with the hope that it would be helpful to the Consission to have further knowledge of the position taken by the Department of the Interior and by this office with respect to well spacing in the two gas fields as to bedered lend. I would like to add that if at all feasible under existing State statutes, it would be most equitable to all parties concerned to include provision for allocation of gas in any order the Cormission may issue establishing well spacing units in the Kutz Conyon and Fulcher Basin gas fields.

Very truly yours,

1 Morrell

FOSTER NO.DELL, Supervisor, Gil and Gas Operations.

Enclosures

FRED FEASEL LAWYER FOSTORIA 4, OHIO

March 1, 1948

U. S. Geological Survey Box 187 Artesia, New Mexico

Re: Lease Santa Fe 046563 Fred Feasel, Lessee

Gentlemen:

The Oil Conservation Commission of New Mexico is now considering the advisability of adopting the policy of only one gas well, centrally located, to every 160 acres in the Kutz Canyon and Fulcher Basin Fields. If this policy is adopted, it should mean that no well would be located nearer than 1320 feet to the property line of any designated lease.

Anticipating that the above contemplated policy will shortly become a principle to be followed by the United States Geological Survey, I request that no one be authorized to drill on any Federal lands closer than 1320 feet from the property line of Santa Fe Lease Serial Number 046563, which is described as follows:

> T. 27 N., R. 10 V., N.M.P.M., New Mexico Sec. 2, Lots 3,4, S¹/₂NW¹/₄, S¹/₂, S¹/₂NE¹/₄; Sec. 3, Lot 1;

> T. 28 N., R. 10 W., N.M.P.M., New Mexico

10,179

Sec. 32, All; Sec. 33, All; Sec. 34, All.

n de la Maria. Al Colombia

Very truly yours,

Find Freed

cc: U.S.G.S. P.O. Box 997, Roswell, New Mexico

1

U.S.G.S. Federal Works Building Washington 25, D. C.



С

i

Reference is made to several letters deted lerch 1 from Fred Feesel requesting that no one be authorized to drill on any adjoining Federal leases closer than 1320 feet from the property line of lease Santa Fe 046563. This request is based on the probability that the Oil Conservation Coumission of New Maxico may adopt a well specing pattern of one well to each 160 acres in the Kutz Canon and Fulcher Basin fields. Separate leaters were submitted by Mr. Feesel covering each of the Federal oil and ges leases adjoining lease Santa Fe 046563.

Pursuent to Mr. Feesel's request, you are directed not to approve drilling on Federal Lesses adjoining lesse 046463 closer than 990 feet from the outer boundaries of that lesse. Mr. Possel is distaken in the principle that the well spacing pattern of 160 ecres would require the gas well to be located exactly in the conter of the drilling unit.

The spacing practice in these two fields for operating on Federal leases has been to limit development to one well to 100 seres. However, the wells are generally located 330 fest from the enter of the 100 sere tract and not closer than 330 fest from the outer boundary of such well spacing unit. It is preferred, of course, that the drilling units be in the form of a square wherever practicable, which is the form of such units under the tive communitization agreements previously approved by the Department.

A copy of this letter is being forwarded to Ur. Feesel for his information.

MSTER CLIER, Supervisor, til sid av der biols.

co: Mr. Fr.d. Pessel for 611 Alba worgen, h.a. 1 21co

co: not supremit the e

}

С

Graham i These are my revisione -dip the Nomenclature

NEW MEXICO OIL CONSERVATION COMPLISSION

SANTA PE, NEW MEXICO

In the matter of the petition of the Southern Union Production Company for an order fixing the spacing of wells in the Kuts Canon-Fulcher Basin Gas fields of San Juan County (as they may be extended) on the basis of one well to a drilling unit of approximately 160 acres with suitable provisions for any related matters, including special approval of nonconforming well locations where necessary.

CEDER	10.	
CASE	10.	······

WHEREAS, after due notice as required by law the Commission held a public hearing in Santa Fe on February 17, 1948, to consider the petition of Southern Union Production Company for the adoption of an order fixing the spacing of wells hereafter drilled in the Kutz Canon-Fulcher Basin gas fields, San Juan County, New Mexico, and related matters; and

WHIREAS, the Commission having considered the evidence adduced at such hearing, pertinent information otherwise available in the Commission's records, the statements made and viewpoints expressed by interested parties at or in connection with such hearing,

FINDS, from the evidence adduced:

pool 15

A. That the Eutr Canon and Fulcher Basin gas fields are productive of natural gas from the Pictured Cliff sandstone formation, that such fields are contiguous and from all information available to date appear to be one continuous gas producing area or pool in the Pictured Cliff, with a total of over 75 producing gas wells at the present time;

B. That such pool has produced natural gas for more than 15 years, during which time the average of well-head pressures has declined to approximately 385 P.S.I. gauge from an initial field pressure of approximately 585 P.S.I. gauge, the difference indicating the substantial quantities of gas heretofore produced from the pool;

C. That by reason of rules of this Commission previously applicable to the pool, of the general practices of certain operators in the area and of policies of the U.S. Geological Survey (having jurisdiction over oil and gas practices

affecting the substantial federal acreage involved), a fairly uniform spacing of one well to 160 acres has heretofore prevailed in the pool;

D. That one well will, except in unusual instances, economically (and effectively) drain the recoverable gas in an orderly manner from at least 160 acres of the Pictured Cliff pool and, accordingly, that more dense spacing in the pool will, as a general rule, result in (waste or in unnecessary hazards conducive to waste) and unnecessarily increase the costs of development and production;

E. That, except in unusual instances, the volume of recoverable gas in the peol does not under existing conditions afford economic justification for the drilling of wells on units of less than 160 acres, more dense spacing being, therefore, likely to result in retardation of development, premature abandonment of wells and in other conditions wasteful or conducive to waste;

F. That for wells hereafter drilled a general spacing pattern of one centrally located well on a unit of 160 acres, substantially in the shape of a square, is required to protect the equities of those having interests in wells heretofore drilled on 160-asre tracts, for which general spacing pattern the pooling of properties should be encouraged when necessary;

G. That the gas productive area of the pool is likely to be substantially more extensive, in one or more directions, than the presently developed portion thereof;

H. That the definition of the pool, contained herein, is reasonable and is necessary to the efficacy of this spacing order; and

I. That waste will result in the drilling of wells in the pool, as hereinafter defined, unless special rules and regulations are adopted for the prevention thereof, and that the special rules and regulations provided below are necessary to prevent such waste and hazards conducive to weste, to protect present equities and to provide for the orderly development and operation of such pool, as it may be extended.

THEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED that, effective immediately, the following rules and regulations shall apply to wells hereafter suthorized by the Commission to be drilled or completed or recompleted to the Pictured Cliff pool in the Kutz

- 2 -

peo/ Canon-Fulcher Basin area, defined below, in addition to the Commission's applicable rules, regulations and orders heretofore or hereafter adopted to the extent not in conflict herewith;

Section 1. No well shall be drilled or completed or recompleted, and no Notice of Intention to Drill or drilling permit with respect to a well shall be granted or drilling location otherwise permitted to become effective, unless

(a) such well be located on a designated drilling unit of not less then one hundred sixty (160) acres of land, more or less, according to legal subdivisions of the United States Land Surveys, in which unit all the interests are consolidated by pooling agreement or othervise and on which no other well is completed, or authorised for completion, in the pool; a5 n car a5 pre516/c(b) such drilling unit be, in the shape of a square except for normal variations in legal subdivisions of the United States Lands Surveys;

(c) such well be located on its drilling unit at a distance from the outside unit boundaries of not less than seven hundred fifty feet

why met 990', (750'); provided, if such proposed new well is to be an offset to any then producing gas well completed in the pool, or the drilling of which was authorized, prior to the effective date of this order, located on an edjoining unit in which the interests are not identical with those in the unit proposed to be drilled, such proposed well may be located and drilled offsetting the existing well and as close to the common unit boundary line as the well to be so offset.

> Section 2. Any provision herein to the contrary notwithstanding, the Commission may, and in proper cases will, on patition or on its own motion, by order entered after notice and hearing to the extent required by law, grant exceptions and permit drilling locations to become effective, thereby authorizing the drilling or completion of wells in the pool not conform-

> > - 3 -

ing to the requirements of Section 1 above if the Commission shall find that the property sought to be drilled would be deprived of an opportunity his share of to produce gas from the pool in the absence of such exception, and shall also find one or more of the following conditions to exist:

(a) that consolidation or pooling of the property sought to be drilled with necessary adjoining land, notwithstanding diligent efforts
made in good faith, is impossible or impractical;

(b) that the property sought to be drilled is located within a then developed portion of the pool and its non-conforming size or shape is due to the adjoining developed properties in the pool;

(c) that because of the nature of the terrain, location of the proposed well at a lesser distance from one of the outer boundaries of its drilling unit should be permitted; or

(d) that by reason of the location of the property sought to be drilled along the southwest or northeast flank of a developed portion of the area; it appears improbable that gas which can be produced in paying quantities will be encountered if the well conforms to Section 1, in which case the Commission may modify the requirements of Section 1 as to such well to the extent it deems necessary; provided, it shall be the general policy of the Commission in any such case to require the pooling of properties to consolidate interests in at least 160 acres if practical to do so, whether or not in the shape of a square, and to require that the well be located, if practical to do so, at least thirteen hundred twenty feet (1320^4) from each other well completed, or authorized for completion, in the pool;

or, irrespective of such findings, if the Commission shall find that by reason of all circumstances an exception is proper in the prevention of waste, hazards conducive to waste, or undue drainage between properties, or otherwise in the exercise by the Commission of its jurisdiction over the spacing of wells or its other powers conferred by law, express or implied.

- 4 -

The Commission reserves the right to impose any and all reasonable conditions upon the granting of any such exception, and to take all other proper actions in the exercise of its jurisdiction over the spacing of wells or its other powers conferred by law, express or implied.

IT IS FURTHER CREATED that, in accordance with recommendations of the New Maxies Romanalature Committee approved and adopted by this Commission, the Pictured Cliff gas producing pool in the Kutz Canon-Fulcher Basin Gives, to which this order applies, is defined to include initially the following described land in Sam Juan County, New Maxico;

Sections Section Section Section Section	20, 29, 32, 33, 19 & 20 31 35 36 27	30, 34: : : :	84 184 & SE 84 & IW 84 84 84 84 84 84 84
Township 2 Bestions Bestions Bestion : Bestion :	1, 2, 3, 11, 12, 4 = 24	, 10, 13: 1	
	•	: Reng 19, 28,	#2 11 West
Section Sections Section Section Section	6 16 & 26 27 35 17	:	5월 2 5월 2 8월 2 8월 58 <u>년</u> 8월
Sections Township 2 Sections	5 North, 11, 12, 14, 24	Rang 13,	All
Sections Section Section Section	22 23 25	:	NE) 지수 6 65) 지수
Township 2 Sections	20, 29, 32, 28,	30, 33:	All
Section Section	21	:	SW1 V2

? Nat yet approved

- 5 -

Township 2 Section	7	North,	Rang	10 West
Section	4		:	All
Section	3		:	W à

and also to include, without the measurity of further motion by the Committee or this Commission; all additional lands loosted within three-fourths (3/4) mile of any part of a drilling unit established hereunder which includes land in the peel as it is initially defined or as it may be extended by the application of this provinion; provided, hereover, that such peel shall is no event be automatignily extended as as to include any lands now or hereafter included by the Commission in some other producing area formally designated as an oil or gas pool or field in the Pictured CINFF; provided, further, by order of this Commission the pool may be redesignated from time to time so as to embrace other lands in the vicinity which are believed, on the basis of additional developments, to be compable of producing gas from the Entz Canon-Fulcher Basin pool, whether or not such other lands shall have been at one time included in another designated field or pool producing from the Pictured Cliff.

Entered and adopted by the Oil Conservation Commission this _____ day of _____, 1948.

Chairman

Commissioner

Commissioner

CLASS OF SERVICE	WESTERN 1201	SYMBOLS DL = Day Letter HL = Night Letter
Telegram or Cable- gram unless its de-	TTATTINA	LC = Deferred Cable
ferred character is in- dicated by a suitable		NLT = Cable Night Loner
embol above or pro-	JOSEPH L. EGAN	Ship Rudiogram
	PRESEDENT	TIME at point of destination

VA51 PD=MONTICELLO UTAH 17 840A 200 17 11 9 16

SOUTHERN UNION GAS CO LAFONDA HOTEL

THE PROPOSED 160 ACRES WELL SPACING ORDER IN THE PICTURED CLIFF FORMATION IN THE FULCHER BASIN AND KUTZ CANYON FIELD IN NORTHWEST NEW MEXICO APPEARS TO BE REASONABLE AND IS AGREEABLE WITH US=

WESTERN NATURAL GAS CO W K DAVIS.

160.

CLASS OF SERVI

	WESTER
•	UNIOR JOSEPH L EGAN PRESIDENT

SHOTHER STOCKSTONS

SYMBOLS DL - Day Le

The filing time shown in the date line on telegrame and day letters is STANDARD TIME at point of origin. Time of receipt is BTANDARD TIME at point of d VA212 DL PD=FARMINGTON NMEX 16 300P CHAIRMAN OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION=

RESPECTFULLY REQUEST COMMISSION TO REFUSE SOUTHERN UNION GAS COMPANY'S REQUEST FOR 160 ACRE SPACING IN SAN JUAN COUNTY. CITIZENS OF THIS AREA FEEL THAT SUCH SPACING WOULD BE VERY DETRIMENTAL TO IMMEDIATE AND FUTURE OIL AND GAS DEVELOPMENT OF AREA, ALSO THAT NO VALID REASON EXISTS FOR 160 ACRE SPACING AT THIS TIME=

FARMINGTON CHAMBER OF COMMERCE.

WESTERN UNION 1 1201 SYMBOLS CLASS OF SERVICE Too 1/2 TH. of Data Lanta and day letters is STANDARD TIME at mant of a A IS STANDARD THE ON 31 5 13 41 11 03 VA75 DL PD=AZ NEWYORK NY 13 1117A RICHARD SPURRIER= STATE CAPITOL SANTA FE NMEX= JUST LEARNED OF SOUTHERN UNION HEARING SET FOR 17TH WOULD LIKE TO PUT STATEMENT IN RECORD BEFORE ORDER IS ENTERED PLEASE NOTIFY COMMISSION= Call JOHN DEMPSEY. 126 17. THE COMPANY WILL APPRECIATE SUGGESTIONS FROM ITS PATRONS CONCERNING ITS SERVICE
Southern Union Production Company Burt Building Dallas, Texas

April 6, 1948

Mr. R. R. Spurrier, Secretary New Mexico Oil Conservation Commission Santa Fe, New Mexico

Dear Mr. Spurrier:

Having had an opportunity to review the stemographic transcript of our February 17 hearing, I wanted to call to your attention one or two minor discrepancies.

At page 3 in the center of the page Exhibit 4 should consist of "the chart and data accompanying Mr. Nichols' letter. ...". I notice that the letter is made a part of the transcript proper and to complete the record both the accompanying chart and data should be attached as Exhibit 4.

At page 10 the first sentence appearing below the appended core analysis information should be amended by deleting the word "to" so as to make the sentence read "From the data the average perosity is found to be 20%."

If you concur in these corrections, please advise me so that I may make them on my copy of the record. At the same time please call to my attention any other discrepancies which you observed.

Mr. Thompson has now returned to Dallas and we sre trying to get together during the day with respect to revision of the suggested form of order. In any case, we will expedite our work and let you hear from us as promptly as possible.

I appreciate the very satisfactory conference we had in your office last week and trust that an appropriate order can be promptly entered.

With best regards and thanks, I am

Yours very truly,

Willis L. Lea, Jr.

VLL:fr cc - Mr. George Graham 🗸

NEW MEXICO OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO

In the matter of the petition of the Southern Union Production Company for an order fixing the spacing of wells in the Kutz Canon and Fulcher Basin Gas fields of San Juan County (as they may be extended) on the basis of one well to a drilling unit of approximately 160 acres with suitable provisions for any related matters including special approval of unorthodox well locations where necessary.

ORDER NO.

WHEREAS, after due notice as required by law the Commission held a public hearing in Santa Fe on February 17, 1948, to consider the petition of Southern Union Production Company for the adoption of an order fixing the spacing of wells hereafter drilled in the Kutz Canon-Fulcher Basin gas fields, San Juan County, New Mexico, and related matters; and

WHEREAS, the Commission having considered the evidence adduced at such hearing, pertiment information otherwise available in the Commission's records, the statements made and viewpoints expressed by interested parties at or in connection with such hearing.

FINDS, from the evidence adduced:

1. That the Kutz Canon and Fulcher Basin gas fields are productive of natural gas from the Pictured Cliff sandstone formation encountered at depths ranging between 1700 and 2300 feet, approximately; that such fields are contiguous and from all information available to date appear to be one continuous gas producing area;

2. That such area has produced natural gas for more than 15 years, during which time the average of well head pressures has declined to approximately 385 P.S.I. gauge from an initial field pressure of approximately 585 P.S.I. gauge, the difference representing the substantial quantities of gas produced during such period;

3. That by reason of rules of this Commission previously applicable to the area, of the general practices of certain operators in the area and of policies of the U. S. Geological Curvey (having jurisdiction over oil and gas practices affecting the substantial federal acreage involved,) a fairly uniform spacing pattern of one well to 160 acres has heretofore prevailed in the area; 4. That one well will, except in unusual instances, economically and effectively drain the recoverable gas in an orderly manner from at least 160 acres of the Pictured Cliff and, accordingly that more dense spacing will, as a general rule, result in waste or in unnecessary hazards conducive to waste and unnecessarily increase the costs of development and production;

5. That, except in unusual instances, the volume of recoverable gas in the Pictured Cliff reservoir does not under existing conditions afford economic justification for the drilling of wells on units of less than 160 acres, more dense spacing being, therefore, likely to result in retardation of development, premature abandonment of wells and in other conditions wasteful or conducive to waste;

6. That for wells hereafter drilled a general spacing pattern of one centrally located well on a unit of 160 acres, substantially in the shape of a square, is required to protect the equities of those having interests in wells heretofore drilled on 160 acre tracts, for which purpose the pooling of properties should be encouraged when necessary; and

7. That waste will result in the drilling of wells in the Kutz Canon-Fulcher Basin area, as hereinafter defined, unless special rules and regulations are adopted for the prevention thereof, and that the special rules and regulations provided below are necessary to prevent such waste, to protect present equities and to provide for the orderly development and operation of such area;

and regulations shall apply to wells hereafter drilled or completed or recompleted to the Pictured Cliff in the Kutz Canon-Fulcher Basin area, defined below, in addition to the Commission's rules, regulations and orders heretofore or hereafter adopted to the extent not in conflict herewith:

THEREFORE, IT IS ORDFRED that, effective immediately, the following rules

1. No well shall be drilled or completed or recompleted, and no drilling permit shall be granted or drilling location otherwise permitted to become effective, unless

(a) such well be located on a drilling unit of one hundred sixty (160) acres of land, more or less, according to official government survey, in which all the interests are consolidated by popling agreement or otherwise and on which no other Picture Cliff well is located or drilling; (b) such well be located at the center of its drilling unit
or at a distance from the center not greater than one-eighth
(1/8) the width of such unit at its narrowest part; and
(c) such drilling unit be in the shape of a square except
for normal variations in land divisions of the government

2. Any provision to the contrary notwithstanding, the Commission may in proper cases by order entered after notice and hearing, as required by law, grant exceptions and permit drilling locations to become effective, thereby authorizing the drilling or completion of wells to the Pictured Cliff not conforming to the requirements of Section 1 if the Commission shall find that the property sought to be drilled would be deprived of an opportunity to produce gas in the absence of such exception, and shall also find one or more of the following conditions to exist.

(a) that condulidation of properties through pooling of interests in additional land notwithstanding diligent efforts made in good faith; is impossible or impractical,

(b) that the property sought to be drilled is located within a developed portion of the area and its unorthodox size or shape is due to the adjacent developed properties;

(c) that because of the nature of the terrain, location of the proposed well at a greater distance from the center of its drilling unit should be permitted; or

(d) that by reason of the location of the property sought to be drilled along the southwest or northeast flank of a developed portion of the area; it appears impossible that gas which can be produced in paying quantities will be encountered if the well conforms to Section 1, in which case the Commission may modify the requirements of Section 1 to the extent it deems necessary; provided, it shall be the general policy of the Commission in any such case to require the pooling of properties to consolidate interests in 160 acres if practical to do so, whether or not in the shape of a square, and to require that the well be located at least thirteen hundred twenty (1320) feet from the nearest well producing from the Pietured Chiff if practical to do so. The Commission reserves the right to impare reasonable conditions upon the granting of any such exception.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, that the Kuts Canon-Fulcher Basin area which is subject to this order, herein sometimes termed the "area", shall be those lands in T.30W, R 12W, T 29N, R. 12W, T 29N, R. 11W, T 28N, R 11W, and T 28N, R. 10W, N.M.P.M., which are commonly known as the Kutz Canon or Fulcher Basin gas field, or as both such fields, and also all land located within one (1) mile of any well in such fields which is capable of producing natural gas from the Pictured Cliff, including wells hereafter drilled which extend the gas productive area of such fields; provided that the term "area" shall not include any lands now or hereafter included by the Commission in some other field or fields.

CHAIRMAN

COMMISSIONFR

COMMISSIONER

TC.

The New Mexico Oil and Gas Conservation Commission. Santa Fe, New Mexico.

Gentlemen:-

The undersigned owners of fee lands situated in San Juan County, respectfully a submit their opposition to the granting of the petition of the SOUTHERN UNION PRODUCTION . CO MPANY, now pending before the Commission, such petition being entitled.

> "In the matter of the petition for an order fixing the " spacing o f wells hereinefter drilled in the Kats canyon and Fulcher Basin Fields in San Juan County, AS THEY MAY ; JE EXTINCTED and related matters. "

- (1) We down the granting of the potition will result in a disedvantage to operators as a whole, and to the State of New Mexico, and to the fee land owners.
- (2) In particular we oppose any rule or regulation whereunder the present Kuts Canyon and Fulcher Basin Fields may be <u>extended</u>
- (3) A Major part of the lands in the County (including State lands) are undeveloped, both as to oil and gas.
- (4) Humarous oil and gas leases have been secured by Major and Independent operators embracing units less than 160 asres.
- (5) The State of Now Mexico has issued many oil and gas leases, on state and institutional lands and many of such leases are in smaller units than 160 acres, m any being for 40 acres, 80 acres, and 120 acres. The Commissioner of Public Lands (and the state) will be in the position of having issued oil and gas leases, accepting money therefore and then not allowing development of such leased lands. (If a 160 acre unit be adopted.)
- (6) The petitioner (The Southern Union Production Company) who have heretofore developed certain of the lands now within the area of the Nutr sanyon and Fulcher Basin Fields, dispose of natural gas to the Southern Union Gas Company, its associate, under some arrangement unknown to the protestants. The Southern Union Gas Company is the only purchaser of gas produced in these two fields, and therefore the two corporations have a <u>MCNOPLY</u> as pertains to the present disposition and transportation of gas, and have been able to (and do) dictate and fix the price of gas produced by independent operators, and it now appears that said two corpo rations have succeeded in getting the gas situation in said two fields in a condition to meet its desires, and now wish an order from the Commission, which would prevent independent operators from drilling, as to units of less than 160 acres.
- (7) The limits of the present Kntz Canyon and Fulcher Basin Fields should be definitely determined. Gas has been discovered in other parts of the County, to-wit: Several wells near Elanso, wells at Bloomfield, at Astec, and near the state line to the north. It should be made certain that neither the petitioner, or any one else, might successfully claim that the Kutz Canyon and Fulcher Basin Fields be EXTENDED to embrase other parts of the County.
- (8) No rule or regulation should be adopted that would interfere or restrict or retard the development of lands within the County as to exploration, production or development of either oil or gas in any part of the County, insomuch as there are sever suble and formations, above and below the picture cliff formation (from which the petitioner obtains gas)

Wherefore petitioners, as protestants, pray that said petition be donied.

Respectfully submitted.

OK me learly ser. ton 14 7. A. in molto curr. Ston Sin ho ia. Crawford unil rational Craw Sard Tuna run for raufor belaw Caldun Lois E. Woak ere il 126 ÷., alna 15 Ċ marile \mathcal{O}_{\cdot} King 5 lanear Rosene C. Kei

P. Prain Ŵ relimour ひひ Hom UTPATI (> 19 Einy m Baone 47 n kla V Ba Æ 73 - I i lies Las A.A.M. -41 Mauric Harpon. S. J. sint's s 1. J. han

ì

TO.

The New Mexico Oil and Gas Conservation Commission. Santa Fe, New Merzico.

Gentlemen:-

The undersigned consts of fee lands situated in San Juan County, respectfully sul submit their opposition to the granting of the petition of the SOUTHERN UNION PRODUCTION CO MPANY, now pending before the Commission, such petition being entitled.

> "In the matter of the petition for an order fixing the " spacing o f wells hereinafter drilled in the Kutz canyon and Fulcher Basin Fields in Sam Juan County, AS THEY MAY HE EXTRADED and related matters.

- (1) We down the granting of the petition will result in a disadvantage to operators as a whole, and to the State of New Marico, and to the fee land owners.
- (2) In particular we oppose any rule or regulation whereunder the present Kutz Canyon and Fulcher Basin Fields may be extended
- (3) A Major part of the lands in the County (including State lands) are undeveloped. both as to oil and gas.
- (4) Remerous oil and gas leases have been secured by Major and Independent operators embracing units less than 160 acres.
- (5) The State of New Mexico has issued many oil and gas leases, on state and institutional lands and many of such leases are in smaller units than 160 acres, m any being for 40 acres, 80 acres, and 120 acres. The Commissioner of Public Lands (and the state) will be in the position of having issued oil and gas leases, accepting money therefore and then not allowing development of such leased lands. (If a 160 acre unit he adopted.)
- (6) The petitioner (The Southern Union Production Company) who have heretofore developed certain of the lands now within the area of the Kutx canyon and Fulcher Basin Fields, dispose of natural gas to the Southern Union Gas Company, its associate, under some arrangement unknown to the protestants. The Southern Union Gas Company is the only purchaser of gas produced in these two fields, and therefore the two corporations have a MONOPLY as pertains to the present disposition and transportation of gas, and have been able to (and do) dictate and fix the price of gas produced by independent operators, and it now appears that said two corpo rations have succeeded in getting the gas situation in said two fields in a condition to meet its desires, and now wish an order from the Coundssion, which would prevent independent operators from drilling, as to units of less than 160 acris.
- (7) The limits of the present Kutz Canyon and Fulcher Basin Fields should be definitely determined. Gas has been discovered in other parts of the County, to-wit: Several wells near Blanso, wells at Bloomfield, at Aztec, and near the state line to the morth. It should be made certain that neither the petitioner, or any one else, might successfully claim that the Kutz Canyon and Fulcher Basin Fields be EXTENDED to embrace other parts of the County.
- (8) No rule or regulation should be adopted that would interfere or restrict or retard the development of lends within the County as to exploration, production or development of either oil or gas in any part of the County, insomuch as there are several sands and formations, above and below the picture cliff formation (from which the petitioner obtains gas)

Wherefore petitioners, as protestents, pray that said petition be denied.

Respectfully submitted.

Name of land owner.

Name of land owner.

7. Jicka McCay Harle ion ui Juins in Quin Gouda Cana 1.B Ster utchison Knu urk Stranger 1.1 aders vin ur. utten Binito Staca

4

1

ŧ

San Juan County, New Mexico. February, 1948.

TO, The New Mexico Oil and Gas Conservation Commission. Santa Fe, New Mexico. Gentlemen;

The undersigned owners of fee lands situated in San Juan County, respectfully submit their opposition to the granting of the petition of Southern Union Production Company, now pending before the Commission, such petition being entitled;

"In the matter of the petition for an Order fixing the spacing of wells hereinafter drilled in the Kutz Canyon and Fulcher Basin Fields in San Juan County,AS THEY MAY BE ENTENDED and related matters."

Our opposition includes the following.

7.

- 1. We deem the granting of the jetition will resualt in a disadvantage to operators as a whole, and to the State of New Meeico, and to the fee land owners.
- 2. In particular we oppose any rule or regulation whereunder the present Kutz Canyon and Fulcher Basin fields may be EXTENDED.
- 3. A major part of the lands in the county (including State lands) are undeveloped, both as to oil and gas.
- 4. Numerous oil and gas leases have been secured by Major and Independent operators embracing units less than 160 acres.
- 5. The State of New Mexico has issued many oil and gas leases, on state and institutional lands and many of such leases are in smaller units than 160 acres, many being for 40 acres,80 acres and 120 acres. The Commissioner of Public lands (and the State) will be in a position of having issued oil and gas leases, accepting money therefor, and then not allowing development of such leased lands. (if a 160 unit be adopted).
- 6. The petitioner, who have heretofore developed certain of the lands now within the area of the kutz Canyon and Fulcher Basin fields, dosposed of natural gas to the Southern Union Gas Company, its associate, under some arrangement unknown to protestants. The Bouthern Union Gas Company is the only purchaser of gas produced in these two fields, and therefore the two corporations have a HONOPHY as pertains to the present disposition and transportation of gas, and have been able to (and do) dictate and fix the price of gas produced by independent operators, and it now appears that said two corporations have succeeded in getting the gas situation in stid two fields in a condition to meet its desires, and now wish an order from the Comission, which would provent independent operators from drilling, as to units of less than 160 acres.

The limits of the present Mutz Cenyon and Fulcher Masin fields should be definetely determined. Gas has been discovered in other parts of the county, to-wit, deveral wells near blanco, wells at doomfield, at dated, and near the State line to the north. It should be made certain that neither the petitioner, or any one else, with successfully claim that the lutz Conyon and gulcher Basin field is be REFEREND to embrace other parts of the county. 8. No rule or regulation should be adopted that would interfere or restrict or retard the development of lands within the county as to exploration, production or development of either Oil or Gas in any part of the county, incomuch as there are serveral sands and formations. above and below the licture Oliff formation (from which petitioner obtains gas).

Wherefore petitionrs, as protestants, pray that said petition be denied.

Respectfully submitted.

Name of land owner. (0 بمالك فالحمد للاصل فالفراد الاراد الالال والمحمد والس

Name of land, owner.

2.

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR GEOLOGICAL SURVEY

P. O. Box 997 Roswell, New Mexico April 29, 1948

Case 12.6

Mr. R. R. Spurrier Director, New Mexico Oil Conservation Commission Box 871 Santa Fe, New Mexico

Dear Dick:

As a result of your comment during our brief visit in the Survey office in Artesia on April 21, regarding the relatively wide distribution that might be given part of the material included in the report entitled "Allocation of Gas Withdrawals Among Wells in the Fulcher Basin Pool", I reviewed the original draft of the paper and found that a few minor changes and revisions would be desirable.

I am enclosing a copy of the report on which the desired changes have been indicated by penciled notation (pages 3, 5, 6 and 7, and figure 1) with a request that the material reproduced for distribution be conformed accordingly.

Submission of the edited copy transmitted herewith does not change or modify in any way restrictions that may have been expressed by the Supervisor regarding the use or distribution of the material contained in the draft of the report handed to you at his direction when you visited this office several weeks ago.

Please call on me if I can assist you in any way.

With sincerest regards.

Very truly yours,

m A. Dehellhurdt

M. A. SCHELLHARDT, Gas Engineer.

OIL CONSERVATION COMPLETION

Senta Fe, New Mexico

IN THE MATTHE OF PETTYDON FOR AN ORDER FIXING THE SPACING OF WELLS NUMBER OF MALLING IN THE KINE CAMPUN AND PERSON DANCE GAS FIXING OF BAR JUNE COURTY, AS THEY MAY DR NEWMOND, AND RELATED MATTHES.

10.____

oused the second strategy company,

Petitioner

To the Consistion and its Honorable Humbers:

This is a Petition for an order of the Commission fixing by appropriate rules and regulations the spacing requirements applicable to wells hereafter defilled in the Kutz Omnyon gas field and in the Paloher Jacin gas field, Son Juan County, and related matters. Your Petitioner, Southern Union Production Company, a corporation authorized to transect business in New Mexico, maintains an effice in Santa Ye at the corner of Marcy and Obaro Streets and an office in Farmington.

Putitioner would show the Commission as follows:

1.

The Kutz Canyon and Fulcher Basin fields are productive of natural gas in commercial quantities from the Pictured Cliff candstone formation encountered at depths ranging between 1700 and 2300 feet, approximately. The fields are in close proximity, my to contiguous and may; in fact, be essentially one gas producing area. The term "general area" will be used herein to refer to these fields, as they may be extended from time to time. The lands now known or reasonably regarded as proved to be productive of natural gas in commercial quantities from the Pictured Cliff are those described in Exhibit A annexed.

2.

According to Petitioner's information, there are now a total of approximately 76 wells in the general area which are productive of natural gas from the Pictured Cliff. Except for those very recently completed and in the process of being connected, each such well is connected with and producing into the natural gas transportation system of Southern Union Gas Company extending from gas areas in ten Juan County, New Maxico, to existing markets in South (c), Albuquergue and elsewhere.

Potitioner has been actively engaged for many years in operating its era wells and certain others in the general area. It has accommisted statistics and other information bearing upon the permeability, perceity and producing characteristics of the Pictured Cliff, and from such information believes that a well completed in the Pictured Cliff will in an orderly senser drain gas from not loss them 160 mores of that formation; hence, that more dense drilling is unnecessary and uncommunic.

3.

Although there are encoptions, provious drilling in this area has generally conformed to 160-acro syncing, with wells located substantially in the conter of a unit. To some extent this spacing pattern is a result of the fact that during World War II the Commission's spacing rule applicable to ges areas provided generally for one well to each 160 acros. To some extent it is fine to the current palicies of the United States Geological Survey in its exercise of jurisdistion over eil and gas practices affecting the substantial federal extenses in the area. To some extent, moreover, it is a result of Petitioner's own convistions, based on the data accumulated from its own and other wells, and the convictions of certain other operators.

Encyloige of the general area and its characteristics has, of course, inereased with extensions of the proven screege and other developments, particularly in recent years. Much of this pertinent information has not yet been submitted to the Commission in appropriate form.

4.

The present spacing rule applicable in the general eres appears to be contained in Section 1 of Order 637 effective March 1, 1946 (the Statewide Order), which provides in parts which wilt to another with the type Subdrum of the to find the model with the forder with

The present spacing provision, therefore, would permit the location, on 40-acre tracts, of proposed wells within 330 feet of any established drilling unit, including those 160-acre units now existing in the general area which are producing gas from one centrally located well. It is apparent that under present spacing rules the recent marked activity and competition for the limited attractive acreage available will result in 330 foot offset wells in a gas area and, consequently, in competitive offset drilling of unnecessary wells -- on units already established in addition to those to be established in the future. In this competition it is believed significant that Section 12, Chapter 72, Laws of 1935 (Section 69-213, New Maxico Statutes Acaptated, "41 Edition), while it is applicable to eil or eil and gas wells, provides in part as fellows:

"The drilling of uncommary wells creates fire and other hanards conductive to vaste, and uncommarily increases the production cost of all and gas to the operator, and thus also unscommarily increases the cost of the products to the ultimate consumer."

It is also significant that by Section 10 of the same ensotaant (Section 69-211, "41 Mittion), the Commission is expressly authorized to make rules, regulations and orders fixing the spacing of wells. Moreover, the Commission posucces, and in several instances has emersioed, authority to promulgate special rules and regulations applicable to a particular area of production.

5.

My proper rule, regulation or order of special application to the Kutz Conven-Fulcher Basin general area, as it may be from time to time extended, the Commission should inaugurate and enforce a spacing program which will economically and affectively parmit, without unnecessary drilling costs or operating expenses, the recovery of natural gas reasonably producible from that area. Petitioner is propared to subsit evidence pertinent to a proper spacing program. From the information available to it Fetitioner believes that, except in unusual instances, a uniform spacing unit of not less than 160 acres should be provided with respect to wells hereafter drilled in the general area,

Attention is directed to the increasingly common practice of pooling leaseholds for exploration and development, particularly where small tracts in gas areas are involved, and to the expeditions sorthod now provided by applicable statutes and regulations for communitizing federal oil or gas sevenge with other lands. Moreover, the Commissioner of Fublic Lands is authorized in proper cases to approve and consent to unitization programs involving State of New Ferico leases.

- 3 -

WERKEPORE, Petitioner requests that the Commission, after notice and hearing as required by law and applicable regulations, enter its proper order or orders fixing the specing of wells hereafter drilled in the Exts Canyon-Palaber hasin general area of production, as it may be from time to time extended, on the basis of one well at approximately the center of a 160eere drilling unit in substantially the shape of a square, with suitable provisions for any related matters, including special approval, after notice and hearing, of unarthedex well locations messesitated by the size or shape of available units or by the nature of the terrain; and, pending final action on such request, that the Commission, its agents and suplayees refrain as a matter of policy from approving or permitting to become effective any Hotice of Intention to Drill now or hereafter on file with respect to a well in the general area which does not provide for the location of such well at or within a reaconable distance of the center of its drilling unit centisting of 160 asses, more or laws, in substantially the shape of a square.

Petitioner hereby affers to supply such information concerning the subject matter of this application as is available to it.

Respectfully submitted, SOUTHERN UNION PRODUCTION COMPANY

By Contendent

ATTAST alatent

VERIFICATION

DTATE OF TEXAS

Refore me, a Notary Public in and for Dallas County, Texas, personally appeared J. C. ENTR, Vice President of SOURDER WHICH PRODUCTION COMPANY, a corporation, well known to me to be such person and officer, and he upon oath

- 4 -

daly administered stated that he had read the foregoing petition and that the facto therein set forth are true and correct to the best of his information and ballef, and that he had emperied such petition on behalf of suid corporation as its free and voluntary act and deed, purpount to due authorization.

fc Reif

Such to and subscribed before no this 24th day of January, 1948, to certify which witness my hand and seal of office.

fur

Briany Public in doil for Dallas County, Tomas

My Constantion Regiros:

PAYE GRIEFIN Notary End In D. T. & County, Texas My conducted metables dure 1, 19.54

}

A TIMINE

Description of lands known or reasonably regarded as proved to be productive of mateural gas in commercial quantities from the Pictured. Cliff.

Summits 30 Horth, Runne 12 Vest

Sections 26, 29, 30, 32, 33, 34: All

Tennekia 29 Borth, Renne 12 Vent

Bootions 1, 2, 3, 11, 12, 13: All Soction 10: \mathbb{F}_2^2

Senatio 29 Herth, Banas 11 Vest

Bootions 18, 19, 20, 28, 29, 33, 34: All Bootion 7: W2 Bootion 21: W2

Township 26 Morth, Range 11 West

Sections 11, 13, 14, 24: All

Trenchip 28 Marth, Bange 10 West

Section	19,	27:	411
Section	18:	¥ł.	
Section	20:		
Section			
Section	32:	Ę	

• •

May 31, 1946

ALLOCATION OF CAS WITHDRAWALS AMONG THE WELLS IN THE FULCHER BASIN POOL

By M. A. Schellhardt

INTRODUCTION

The Fulcher Basin pool is situated in San Juan County, New Mexico. The developed area, at present, includes land in the public and patented categories in T. 30 N., R. 27 W.; T. 29 N., R. 12 W.; and T. 29 N., R. 11 W. Records for April 1946 show that there were 26 productive wells in the pool; 15 of which were on public land and 11 were located on patented land.

The New Mexico conservation statutes pertaining to oil and gas development and recovery operations include no stipulations regarding ratable taking of gas from gas pools. Gas wells, however, are not excepted by the statute authorizing the Conservation Commission to "fix the spacing of wells". Statutory provisions regarding the ratable taking of gas apply only to gas withdrawals from prorated oil pools. The State conservation laws also empower the Commission to require that wells be operated in such manner as to prevent injury to neighboring leases or properties, and to prevent underground and surface waste of oil and gas. Operation of the only pipe line serving the Fulcher Basin pool, however, is subject to the regulations concerning rights-of-way for pipe lines (OLO circular No. 1386, page 16) approved by the Scoretary of the Interior May 7, 1956. An excerpt from those regulations follows. "In approving such right-of-way grant it shall be specifically stated that such pipe line shall be constructed, operated, and maintained as a conten carrier and that the grantee shall accopt, convey, transport, or purchase without discrimination oil or netwrel jes produced from Covernment lends in the visitive of the pipe Record the produced from the entropy to the produced from the provident for the pro-ling in such proportionals arounds as the Secretary of the Interview may, after a full hearing with due between to be resonable, and in a differ-a proper finding of factor determine to be resonable, and in a differ-ble constant pipe line for the frequential of the gen-chard be limited to sit and the probability of the terms of the limit. The Frequencies for the pipe line for the frequencies of the figurable for the believe to site and the probability of the formation of the figurable for the believe to the site of the figurable of the figurable for the Frequencies for the figurable of the figurable of the figurable for the Frequencies for the figurable of the figurable of the figurable of the Frequencies for the figurable of the Frequencies for the figurable of the figurable of the figurable of the figurable of the Frequencies for the figurable of the figurable of the figurable of the figurable of the Frequencies for the figurable of the fig

(in the backing referred of the different for a first of a first of the control of the contro

in such proportional amounts as shall be determined reasonable by the Secretary of the Interior. Under the existing circumstances measures developed voluntarily and applied for allocating gas withdrawals from the groups of wells in the respective land categories among the wells in the respective groups may be conformed to principles desired.

Conventional gas proration practices applied throughout the early stages of the development of the natural gas industry in the many states were predicated upon the "law of capture", the principle adhered to by the courts in rendering decisions regarding the ownership of accumulations of oil and gas existing in or recovered from natural reservoirs. Provation methods that coefformed to the law-ofcapture principle of recovery operations required consideration of only one factor, availability, which generally was expressed in terms of open flow delivery capacity or "potential".

The trend of statutes enacted by state legislative bodies in recent years, however, shows an increasing tendency to regard migratory minerals in place as property susceptible to the precepts of ownership rights accorded to owners of land. The effect of the operation of the revised legal concept regarding property rights and the ownership of oil is evidenced by two commonly occurring examples, namely, (1) participation of the owners of small areas, that often could not be developed individually for economic reasons, in the revenues derived from wells drilled on blocks formed by the pooling of small tracts to conform to established spacing regulations, and (2) compensatory payments made by holders of leasehold rights to royalty interests on undrilled treats offset by productive units. The changed concept regarding property rights and the ownership of bil now hold by a large element of the oil industry was expressed by a statement issued by the Board of Directors of the A.P.I. in 1931, an excerpt from which is quoted as follows, " * * * * * * that it indorses, and believes the petroleum industry inderses, the principle that each owner of the surface is ontitled only to his equitable and ratable share of the recoverable oil and has energy in the common pool in the proportion which the recoverable reserves underlying his land bony to the recoversible resolves in the post".

The revised concept regarding property rights and the encorship of oil in place was featured by the restrictions hypotel upon rates ad oil withdrawal and well specing by regulatory agencies is second the issue correct the condition of over supply that followed extenalize burdepent of the feature field, will be provide the feature of during the carly one of all provident for determining allowing and on other place involved the provident of the law of approxy of wells in may areas involved the provepts of the law of approxy to find allowing providers optical be all not very three lows

ć.

the intervening period shows increasing consideration for the fundamental principle of property rights and ownership described by the statement quoted in the preceding paragraph. Orders of the State Conservation Commission of New Mexico pertaining to oil prorate pool allowables equally among the wells or oil productive units therein. The delivery capacity factor is considered only if wells are incapable of producing oil at the maximum rate allocated to the respective productive units. Hells not capable of producing maximum allowables are classified as marginal and their allowables for determined directly by productive capacity.⁶⁵

allocation

Progress toward conformation of gas allocation practices to the more recently developed concept regarding the ownership of migratory minerals, which would insure the diverse interests reasonable opportunities to recover (not market) their equitable share of the recoverable gas in a common reservoir, lagged behind the advance made by oil allocation methods toward that objective. Regulatory measures established maximum allowable delivery rates for natural gas wells in several states many years before the application of regulatory measures to oil recovery rates become general. The precedents established by early regulatory practices have materially retarded the development and application of equitable allocation measures to natural gas recovery operations.

GENERAL CONSIDERATIONS

The availability of gas from gas wells, usually expressed as open flow delivery rate, served as a conventional standard for prescribing conservational measures and for prorating market demand among groups of wells throughout the history of gas recovery operations in many fields. Proration measures prodicated upon the delivery capacity factor wore beneficial to the development of orderly marketing programs in many fields. A knowledge of the delivery capacities of individual wells and of conditions that influence the producing characteristics of individual wells and of pools as a whole is essential to gas transmission and marketing economy. Delivery capacities of gas wells however do not provide a reliable index to the volume of gas in a reservoir or to the volume of gas underlying acreage accredited to individual wells by prevailing well spacing programs. Consequently, the delivery capacity factor is not essential to allocation formulas predicated upon the principle that the owners of productive units developed in conformance to authorized spacing regulations should have a reasonable opporbunity to produce the recoverable cas embrased by the respective units.

Conservation measures likewise based upon delivery capacity were implicial to ultimate recoveries from many gas reservoirs. Application of conventional provation and conservation reasures based on

~

delivery capacity has not been feasible physically or economically, however, throughout the operative lives of many shallow gas wells. Difficulties that baset evaluating delivery capacities of the deep, high-pressure gas wells that represent an increasing element of overall source of supply were discussed in Bureau of Mines R.I. 3767. Horeover, operation of deep gas wells will be considerably more difficult than shallow wells as reservoir pressures decline and the inadequacy of conventional delivery restrictions, as a conservation measure, will be manifest at considerably higher pressures. Inasmuch as the beneficial effect of restricted delivery rates on ultimate recoveries from gas wells probably is a direct result of the corresponding limitation effected thereby on pressure differentials in the reservoir, it is logical to conclude that pressure could be used advantageously for prescribing conservative operating practices.

Conventional proration measures reduced delivery rates from gas wells progressively as open flow delivery rates declined. The decreased pressure differentials that prevailed in the reservoirs about the wells under the decreased rates of gas withdrawal probably were beneficial to efficiency of well operation and to ultimate recoveries in reservoirs subject to active water encreachment. Conditions observed in some pools in which there was no evidence of water encreachment, however, indicated that well performance was improved materially by maintenance of relatively high rates of withdrawal during the latter stages of their operative lives.

RELATIONSHIPS EETHEEN PRESSURES AND CAS DELIVERY RATES FOR GAS WELLS

Generalized relationships between back pressures at the face of the producing sand, expressed as percentages of the closed-in pressures, and rates of gas delivery, expressed as percentages of the absolute open-flow deliveries, for gas wells are shown by the graphs on figure 1.

1/ Sobel Hardt, U. A., Application of the Dack-Pressure Method for Deber during Absolute Open Flows of Large Cas Wells: Dureau of Whee depth of Investigations (767, 1915, 19 pp.)



FIGURE X - GENERALIZED RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN PRESSURE AT FACE OF SAND AND RATE OF GAS DELIVERY FOR GAS WELLS.

An empirical equation expressing a fundamental relationship between rate of flow of gas through reservoirs into wells and well pressures follows:

$$\mathbf{Q} = \mathbf{C} \left(\mathbf{P_f}^2 - \mathbf{P_g}^2 \right)^n$$

whore

- a rate of low of gas in cubic feet per 24 hours,
- C z a coefficient,
- P_f = shut-in formation pressure, pounds per square inch absolute,
- P_s = back prossure at the sand face in the well bore in pounds per square inch absolute,
- n z an exponent corresponding to the slope of the straight-line relationship between Q and $(P_f^2 P_g^2)$ plotted on logarithmic paper.

Limits of the range of values for the exponent, n, of the equation were discussed in Bureau of Mines Monograph 72' and in Bureau of Mines R.I. 3767 Graphs A to G, figure 1, represent generalized relationships between pressures at the face of the send and rates of gas delivery corresponding to values ranging from 1.2 to 0.6 for the slopes of the relationships determined by plotting rate of gas delivery, Q, against corresponding values of the pressure factor, $(P_f^2 - P_g^2)$, on logarithmic paper.

The graphs on figure 1 indicate that if values of the slopes of the relationships between Q and $(P_f^2 - P_g^2)$, or values of n of the equation for flow, $Q = C(P_f^2 - P_g^2)^n$, determined by back-pressure data range from 1.2 to 0.6, back pressures at the face of the sand corresponding to deliveries equivalent to 25 per cent of the absolute open flows of the wells range from **eleven** 83 to 95 per cent of the elosed-in pressure. The graphs on figure 1 show also that if values of n range from 1.2 to 0.6, rates of gas delivery at back pressures equivalent to 90 per cent of the closed-in pressures range from **eleven** 13 to 37 per cent of the absolute open-flow deliveries of the wells. Tonac, the absolute open-flow delivery of a well provides only an approximate back pressure to back

د د ۲۰ رو از رو **به موجو می منطقه و م**در اف مدارد از این از ماری می اور دارد. این ۲۰ رو از رو از موجو می منطقه موجوع می اف مدارد از این از ماری می در می از این از این از این از این از این ا

^{2/} Pierce, E. &. and Marlins, C. L., The Study of a Contrast of Abic for Controlling and Captury Defunctation and S. Park for Survey of University, of Transitistics (230, 1982), Studys.

^[3] Antibus, N. G., and Standby, N. J., Antiberson & Deleten Submal-das Addis and Their Spyliceblas by Production do No. 19 201 (2016) "Intel Tengraph 7, 1996, pp. 32 and 46.

h/ Probate 1,

July 20, 1046

APP.CODN

to report ontitled

ALLOCATION OF GAS STITUDRAUALS AMONG MELLS IN THE PULLIDE BASIN POOL

The most recent closed in pressure data available for the wells in the Fulcher Fasin pool were gauged in April 1946 - Production reports show that the volume of gas withdrawn from the pool in April was 166,034,000 cable foot, which represents an average withdrawal rate of 5,555,000 cable foot per 24 hours - The average daily withdrawal rate for April 1946, closely aprioximated the average daily rate of withdrawal for 1945, which were 5,452,000 cubic foot

Comparison baby to arbital or flatenait is regult 15% or is encomposing, will alterables debutance by the personner success or bottom is shown by the data in tailed a cherge ison betwee alterables liberalised by the open flow standard and alterables decommend by the pressure-receive criterion is shown by the data in table 2. Information regarding the reserves underlying the various developed tracks in the pool was not available and the acreage allocated to the respective wells by Foster Morrell, Supervisor of Oil and Gas Operations, was used instead of reserves for computing allowables by the pressure-reserve criterion. Although reserveir pressure data are essential to accurate evaluation of reserves and the solution of many gas recovery problems, the relationship between the alterables exputied by the pressurereserve criterion is influenced materially by the substitution of wellhead pressures for the values of the corresponding pressures at the pressurereserve criterion shown in tables 1 and 2. The open flow delivery data shown in table 2 represent the initial delivery capacities of the wells, and the corresponding allowables (bable 2) were based on the initial con flow delivery data.

Withdrawal Jaha shown in table 1 represent the meximum delivery robes obtainable under the pressures provailing in the jationing system in April 1946 - Censequ ally, my adjustment of delivery table that might be sequired be conferential from a difference of the procedien would sequire without pool withdrawal rubes be reduced on the table poll withdrawal rubes be reduced on their the pollowing system protested be decreased.

> M. A. SCHOLDIARDI Gad Daglador

. . . e e e terre

 $\begin{array}{c} & \left(\begin{array}{c} & \left(\end{array}{c} & \left(\begin{array}{c} & \left(\end{array}{c} & \left(\end{array}{c$ • ÷ unian sintana sina ana ; N. D. Axyl contline decipally
N. D. Explore the Conjecty
N. D. Explore the Conjecty 4,56 . C7758 - 364 - 735-7 - 7705-5 - 7705-5 - 7705-5 - 7850 (3) - 55495 1. JE7 7.001 1.599 75075 7,705 7,672 • 5:674 XIII 35,400 . . Automation Weak design, Automation Probably approach Automation Probably Automaty Automatics Probably Automaty Automatics Probably Probably Automatics Probably Probably Automatics Probably Automatics Probably Automatics Automatics Automatics Automatics Automatics Automatics 5,503 1,000 1,000 2,000 2,000 1,000 1,000)。 (,为3 (,为2 91200 31299

- 1

(1, 1, 2, 2, 3)the clarge

.

بالمحجر والعائب

y Marina and State and State

•

	•		
pr 313 - (1), . 28-13 - (1), . 28-13 - (1)			

4	373 360			
1	573 360 360 (302) (302) (302) List List List	33		
	の時間に、一般の	1997 1997 1997 1997 1997 1997 1997 1997		
9 7 	国家が行うになった。	1.5 160 161 161 161 161 161 161 161		
			•	

• • • •

		۰.		
ા જાણી છે.	Enter States		in a contraction of the second se	
				to a start
		· · ·	. t (). (*) • • •	
		•		
			an an gin La trainneach La trainneach	
	2007 197			
	Alise in a Alise providence			
				•

· •

.

ì

- • • •

. د

(relative differentials)

differ widely)

1

. .

preserve at the second state closedwide preserve that preserve at the second state of the approximation of the preserve to the shorther open from the second state preserve to show the well preserve shift on the second state preservation measures profiles or as which applies her of conservation measures profiles or as which are instead of delivery rate wall prove sivilations on the second for such above of open flow delivery rates, for the prove of the schedules.

A Plant Lipping With Chiffs for Four Diffs withing of the Lipping boundary A Lips

Responsibility can do at int of gen available from individual wolls in any dials for parts a approval by regulatory adherities rests upon the optimal, indication will, an allocation or promotion states and only distribute overall dibbly analy authorized by regulatory subtorities on regularities supply existing market demand arong increased wills and establish allocates or a correst equitable basis for any additional will be backles or a correst equitable basis for any additional will be back post involopment wight in fude.

WASPO

1

. -

- a = maximum allowable rate of gas withdrawal from a well, M cubie foot par 24 hours,
- P_{f} = closed-in pressure at the productive zone in the well, pounds per square incl. absoluto,
- Ra = gas reserve under the entenge cllottet to the well, con-
- A volume of gas to be supplied from the common reservoir during a specified period, expressed as !! onlie feet per
- $(P_f^2 \times Rw) = survey of the products of <math>P_f^2 \times Rw$ for all of the

The square of the value of reservoir pressure is used in the formula because the significance of the dynamic property of the pressore factor is nore important to the allocation formula than static propertus of pressure; irrespective of whether the reserve factor is expressed in terms of gas volume or land area. Under normal conditions the rate of flow of gas through reservoir strata, either into wells or from one area to another, is a function of the difference between the values of the squares of the prevailing turningl pressures. The absolute open flow delivery rate of a gas well is a function of the square of the affective reservoir pressure. Velues of reservoir pressures determined for different wells in a gas pool by tests of brief duration often differ widely. Percentage recovery of gas in place usually will be lower for productive units character. ized by higher pressures then for units having lower reservoir pressures. Although the relative values of the pressures do not always provide a reliable standard for evaluation the properties of the recoverable gas remaining in or produced from the vertices productive unite, existence of prosture differential in a gas resouver is a positive indication of fluid at police sither within the respective

<u>5/</u> The second considerable provided by a second providence of the second se

is applying the procession conserves of the formation of a with the maximum of the probability of the series with therease the properties of the probability contractor of a probability where having relatively such thereas a construction of the protation having relatively such therease construction of the by relatively for the probability that there is a serie of the therease much there are probably the structure of the series of the properties the formation probability of the series of the second by relatively form the second probability of the second the second of the probability of the second probability of the second the second for the probability for the second the second second of the second the probability of the second of the second second of the probability of the second second the second of the second for probability for the second second second second a marginal formation the second best of the second of the second second attemption of the second the second second of the second second attemption of the second second second of the second second of a marginal formation the second second of the second second attemption of the second second second second second for a second the probability for the second second second for a second the second second second second second second for a point of the second second second second second second for second the second second second second second second for second the second second second second second second for the point of the she can second second second second second for second second second second second second second second for second seco

- 1

is a figure of the second All and the

betof i si sterra a chibesiin. Si issuel a taétoga ent entuseeli (a chibes a chibes) a chibesi ga chibes a chibesi (a chibes) a chibesi (a chibes) a chibesi (a chibes)

Protocies wills in the Stater July goal are coupled thin the Protocies wills in the Stater July goal are coupled thin the presented such that in the termination of the termination in the 6 with the tag of the Type Lie of the termination of the termination of the Type Lie to 1,970 feet at even the termination in showshes from 9,844 to 3,007 feet at even the termination included by the gas-beering state even to be the termination from the gas-beering state even to be the rational scale of the gas-beering state even to be the rational scale of the gas-beering state even to be the rational scale, by the gas-beering state even to be the rational scale, by the gas-beering state even to be the rational scale, by the gas-beering state even to be the rational scale, by the gas-beering state even to be the rational scale, by the gas-beering state even to be the rational scale, by the gas-beering state is a state of the state is stated by the scale is the relationship between the gas-bearing state will be water beering the genetic the scale of the rational scale is the scale of the scale bearing the relationship between the gas-bearing state of the scale bearing to be related to the scale of the rational scale is the term of the scale of the rational scale of the scale of the scale bearing to be related to be a scale of the rational scale of the scale bearing to be related to be a scale of the scale of the scale of the scale to be related to be a scale of the scale of the scale of the scale of the termination of the scale of the scale of the scale of the scale of the termination of the scale of the scale of the scale of the scale of the termination of the scale of the scale of the scale of the scale of the termination of the scale of the scale of the scale of the scale of the termination of the scale of the scale of the scale of the scale of the termination of the scale of the scale of the scale of the scale of the termination of the scale of the termination of

-

•)

Is the shear the second state of the second state of C
 And second and the second state of the second state of C
 And second and the second state of the second state of

The locations of all 2: cold is a block of the construction of a new mitter special patters. The test of the construction of t

To control to the low of the loss of the former of the particle characteristics of the polarization of the loss of the polarization of the tiples. Apparent control to the period of the intervalue of the theories is the polarization of the second base of the rest of the polarization is the solution of the polarization of the second base of the polarization is obtaining the data required for allocating as a tabletament or the polarization of the polarization of the definition of the polarization of the second basis of defining compatible of the described presence-exerce estimation. The defining compatible of the walls are relatively for all the low of the definition of the measurement of the definition of the polarization of the sures. The presence as uncorrebusing strate belief the provide described presence as uncorrebusing strate belief the provide measurement of the definition of the provide the date of the presence of the second belief the provide at easing, hence represente and interface much provide the constant for anticle between a develor and interface much provide the constant to a string of easing, hence represented interface much provide the constant for anticle between a develor and interface much period of the constant to a solution of the constants, the relation date for exclusive date is used for promoting of the closer standard should not sequire that be welle be operated as provide standard should not sequire that be welle be operated as provides attended by lease then these that protail under contine operations.

Conditions in the Sected scale periods as the mail in the the angle α and α is the product of exclusion of the contrast β is the product of exclusion of the contrast β is the sected scale of the contrast β is the sected scale of the contrast is the contrast β is the contrast is the contrast β is the contrast of the contrast of the contrast β is the contrast of the contrast of the contrast β is the contrast of the contra

int is a set of a set of the set of the product of the set of the product of the set of the se

svrsern-causaena celoji ku atel colfoesti or ostarredo sliov reijicela da weji arge sel gi kortelea i salto Vitelej e cel sifi od mijacqee recil kortele of filw fleeg cele or bit or el

.

.

- 1

- • • • • •



OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION SF=

APPLICATION FOR SPACING ORDER KUTZ CANYON-FULCHER BASIN FIELDS OF SAN JUAN COUNTY AIR MAILED TODAY WITH PARAGRAPH SUGGESTED FOR INCLUSION IN NOTICE AS FOLLOWS: IN THE MATTER OF THE PETITION OF SOUTHERN UNION PRODUCTION COMPANY FOR AN ORDER FIXING THE SPACING OF WELLS IN THE KUTZ CANYON AND FULCHER BASIN GAS FIELDS OF SAN JUAN COUNTY (AS THEY MAY BE EXTENDED) ON THE BASIS OF ONE WELL TO A DRILLING UNIT OF APPROXIMATELY 160 ACRES WITH SUITABLE PROVISIONS FOR ANY RELATED MATTERS INCLUDING SPECIAL APPROVAL OF UNORTHODOX WELL LOCATIONS WHERE NECESSARY =

SOUTHERN UNION PRODUCTION CO WILLIS E LEA JRM

160

THE COMPANY WILL APPRECIATE SUGGESTIONS FROM ITS PATRONS CONCERNING ITS SERVICE
DOMESTIC Check the class o otherwise this sent as a full	teervice d	lesired; rill be	V/I	ESTERNATION	1206	Check the cl	TIONAL SERVIC nes of service clear this meanage will at the full rate	ited;
FULL RATE TELEGRAM	SERIAL			NION		FULL RATE	DEFERRED	Π
DAY	NIGHT LETTER		Ų	JOBEPH L. EGAN, PRESIDENT		CODE	NIGHT	\square
NO. WDSCL. O	SVC.	PD. OR COLL.	CASH NO.	CHARGE TO THE ACCOUNT OF		T	INE FILED	
					MIT			

ect to the terms on back hereof, which are hereby agre

MILLAS TELAS

JANUME 24, 1948

.

MR. GRANGE GRANNA, ASSOCIATY OR MR. R. R. SPORTZER, MANAGEMET OIL COMMENCESSING CONSIDERION SANDA 72, NOV MILLION

APPLICATION FOR SPACING CODER ROTZ CANTON-FULCHER BARLY FIELDS OF SAN JULY

COUNTY AIR MAILED SODAY VITE PARAGRAPH SOLUTION DUR INCLURING IN MOTOR AS POLICIES: In the matter of the infition of socialistic which included company for at chink Filling the spacing of wells in the size calling and folgeer basin gas filles of say JUNH COUNTY (AS THEY MAY IN REPAINED) OF THE MAKES OF SHE WHILL TO A WEILLING WHIT OF Appingeidangely 160 action when supparing institutes for any melated matters including special approval of underthodox well locarisms where including art.

SCHEMENT UNICE PRODUCTION CONPANY

By Willis L. Los, Jr.



Telegraph your order for America's favorite magazines-HOLIDAY, 1 yr., 55 • the Post, 1 yr., 55 • LADIES' HOME JOURNAL, 1 yr., 53. All prices U. S. only. No charge for Wire. Pay Western Union clerk for subscription or witten billou by publisher.

TURGIBLE

SOUTHERN UNION PRODUCTION COMPANY BURT BUILDING DALLAB, TEXAB

AIR MAIL

January 24, 1948

Mr. George Graham, Attorney or Mr. R. R. Spurrier, Secretary Oil Conservation Commission Santa Fe, New Mexico

OIL CONSECUTION CONTRASTON

Dear Sir:

As we discussed the other day on the telephone, there is enclosed the petition of Southern Union Production Company for the Commission's order fixing spacing rules of special application to the Kutz Canyon-Fulcher Basin gas fields, San Juan County, as they may be hereafter extended. Also enclosed is a form suggesting the pertinent statement concerning this petition which might be included in your proposed notice of hearing, and a confirmation copy of our telegram dispatched today.

Please let us hear from you should there be any particular incidental subject on which you would like us to be prepared at the February 17 hearing. It is expected that Mr. Van Thompson, our engineer, and I will attend with Mr. J. R. Cole. Because of the interest which has been indicated in this subject by other operators, it is not unlikely that several of them will be in attendance, possibly for the purpose of introducing evidence.

Please arrange for us to receive in due course a copy of each publisher's affidavit with respect to the pertinent notice of hearing.

With thanks, we are

Yours very truly,

Willis L. Lea, Jr. General Attorney

WLL:FG Encls.

cc: Mr. J. R. Cole, Santa Fe Mr. Van Thompson, Dallas

OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Santa Fe, New Mexico

IN THE MATTER OF PETITION FOR AN ORDER FIXING THE SPACING OF WELLS HEREAFTER IRILLED IN THE KUIZ CANYON AND FULCHER BASIN GAS FIELDS OF SAN JUAN COUNTY, AS THEY MAY BE EXTENDED, AND RELATED MATTERS.

NO ._____

SOUTHERN UNION PRODUCTION COMPANY, Petitioner

To the Commission and its Honorable Members:

This is a Petition for an order of the Commission fixing by appropriate rules and regulations the spacing requirements applicable to wells hereafter drilled in the Kutz Canyon gas field and in the Fulcher Basin gas field, San Juan County, and related matters. Your Petitioner, Southern Union Production Company, a corporation authorized to transact business in New Mexico, maintains an office in Santa Fe at the corner of Marcy and Otero Streets and an office in Farmington.

Petitioner would show the Commission as follows:

l.

The Kutz Canyon and Fulcher Basin fields are productive of natural gas in commercial quantities from the Pictured Cliff sandstone formation encountered at depths ranging between 1700 and 2300 feet, approximately. The fields are in close proximity, may be contiguous and may, in fact, be essentially one gas producing area. The term "general area" will be used herein to refer to these fields, as they may be extended from time to time. The lands now known or reasonably regarded as proved to be productive of natural gas in commercial quantities from the Pictured Cliff are those described in Exhibit A annexed.

2.

According to Petitioner's information, there are now a total of approximately 76 wells in the general area which are productive of natural gas from the Pictured Cliff. Except for those very recently completed and in the process of being connected, each such well is connected with and producing into the natural gas transportation system of Southern Union Gas Company extending from gas areas in Sen Juan County, New Mexico, to existing markets in Santa Fe, Albuquerque and elsewhere.

3.

Petitioner has been actively engaged for many years in operating its own wells and certain others in the general area. It has accumulated statistics and other information bearing upon the permeability, porosity and producing characteristics of the Pictured Cliff, and from such information believes that a well completed in the Pictured Cliff will in an orderly manner drain gas from not less than 160 acres of that formation; hence, that more dense drilling is unnecessary and uneconomic.

Although there are exceptions, previous drilling in this area has generally conformed to 160-acre spacing, with wells located substantially in the center of a unit. To some extent this spacing pattern is a result of the fact that during World War II the Commission's spacing rule applicable to gas areas provided generally for one well to each 160 acres. To some extent it is due to the current policies of the United States Geological Survey in its exercise of jurisdiction over oil and gas practices affecting the substantial federal acreage in the area. To some extent, moreover, it is a result of Petitioner's own convictions, based on the data accumulated from its own and other wells, and the convictions of certain other operators.

Knowledge of the general area and its characteristics has, of course, increased with extensions of the proven acreage and other developments, particularly in recent years. Much of this pertinent information has not yet been submitted to the Commission in appropriate form.

ų.

The present spacing rule applicable in the general area appears to be contained in Section 1 of Order 637 effective March 1, 1946 (the Statewide Order), which provides in part:

"1. (a) i. . . . No well shall be drilled closer to any unit boundary line than 330 fect or less than 660 feet from any other well except upon petition, notice and hearing as provided by law, provided such unorthodox well location will create neither waste nor hazards conducive to waste."

The present spacing provision, therefore, would permit the location, on 40-acre tracts, of proposed wells within 330 feet of any established drilling unit, including those 160-acre units now existing in the general area which are

- 2 -

producing gas from one centrally located well. It is apparent that under present spacing rules the recent marked activity and competition for the limited attractive acreage available will result in 330 foot offset wells in a gas area and, consequently, in competitive offset drilling of unnecessary wells -- on units already established in addition to those to be established in the future. In this connection it is believed significant that Section 12, Chapter 72, Laws of 1935 (Section 69-213, New Mexico Statutes Annotated, '41 Edition), while it is applicable to oil or oil and gas wells, provides in part as follows:

"The drilling of unnecessary wells creates fire and other hazards conducive to waste, and unnecessarily increases the production cost of oil and gas to the operator, and thus also unnecessarily increases the cost of the products to the ultimate consumer."

It is also significant that by Section 10 of the same enactment (Section 69-211, '41 Edition), the Commission is expressly authorized to make rules, regulations and orders fixing the spacing of wells. Moreover, the Commission posesses, and in several instances has exercised, authority to promulgate special rules and regulations applicable to a particular area of production.

5.

By proper rule, regulation or order of special application to the Kutz Canyon-Fulcher Basin general area, as it may be from time to time extended, the Commission should inaugurate and enforce a spacing program which will economically and effectively permit, without unnecessary drilling costs or operating expenses, the recovery of natural gas reasonably producible from that area. Petitioner is prepared to submit evidence pertinent to a proper spacing program. From the information available to it Petitioner believes that, except in unusual instances, a uniform spacing unit of not less than 160 acres should be provided with respect to wells hereafter drilled in the general area,

Attention is directed to the increasingly common practice of pooling leaseholds for exploration and development, particularly where small tracts in gas areas are involved, and to the expeditious mothod now provided by applicable statutes and regulations for communitizing federal oil or gas acreage with other lands. Moreover, the Commissioner of Public Lends is authorized in proper cases to approve and consent to unitization programs involving State of New Mexico leases.

- 3 -

WHEREFORE, Fetitioner requests that the Commission, after notice and hearing as required by law and applicable regulations, enter its proper order or orders fixing the spacing of wells hereafter drilled in the Kutz Canyon-Fulcher Basin general area of production, as it may be from time to time extended, on the basis of one well at approximately the center of a 160acre drilling unit in substantially the shape of a square, with suitable provisions for any related matters, including special approval, after notice and hearing, of unorthodox well locations necessitated by the size or shape of available units or by the nature of the terrain; and, pending final action on such request, that the Commission, its agents and employees refrain as a matter of policy from approving or permitting to become effective any Notice of Intention to Drill now or hereafter on file with respect to a well in the general area which does not provide for the location of such well at or within a reasonable distance of the center of its drilling unit consisting of 160 ecres, more or less, in substantially the shape of a square.

Petitioner hereby offers to supply such information concerning the subject matter of this application as is available to it.

Respectfully submitted,

SOUTHERN UNION PRODUCTION COMPANY

EST: Assistant Secret

VERIFICATION

STATE OF TEXAS)) COUNTY OF DALLAS)

Before me, a Notary Public in and for Dallas County, Texas, personally appeared J. C. REID, Vice President of SOUTHERN UNION HRODUCTION COMPANY, a corporation, well known to me to be such person and officer, and he upon oath

- 14 -

duly administered stated that he had read the foregoing petition and that the facts therein set forth are true and correct to the best of his information and belief, and that he had executed such petition on behalf of said corporation as its free and voluntary act and deed, pursuant to due authorization.

filler

Sworn to and subscribed before me this 24th day of January, 1948, to certify which witness my hand and seal of office.

Notary Public in and

Dallas County, Texas

My Commission Expires:

. .

FAYE GRIEPIN Sector 1997 - C. Pathis County, Texas My compatition expires June 1, 19.452

EXHIBIT A

Description of lands known or reasonably regarded as proved to be productive of natural gas in commercial quantities from the Pictured Cliff.

Township 30 North, Range 12 West

Sections 28, 29, 30, 32, 33, 34: All

Township 29 North, Range 12 West

Sections 1, 2, 3, 11, 12, 13: All Section 10: E_2^1

Township 29 North, Range 11 West

Sections 18, 19, 20, 28, 29, 33, 34: All Section 7: W¹/₂ Section 21: W¹/₂

Township 28 North, Range 11 West

Sections 11, 13, 14, 24: All

Township 28 North, Range 10 West

Section 19, 29: All Section 18: Wa Section 20: Wa Section 30: Ea Section 32: Ea

AIR MAIL

January 24, 1948

Mr. George Graham, Attorney or Mr. R. R. Sparrier, Secretary 011 Conservation Commission Santa Fe, New Mexico

Dear Sir:

As we discussed the other day on the telephone, there is enclosed the petition of Southern Union Production Company for the Commission's order fixing spacing rules of special application to the Exts Conyon-Fulcher Basin gas fields, San Juan County, as they may be hereafter extended. Also enclosed is a form suggesting the pertinent statement concerning this petition which might be included in your proposed notice of hearing and a confirmation copy of our telegrum dispatched today.

Please let us hear from you should there be any particular incidental subject on which you would like us to be prepared at the February 17 hearing. It is expected that Mr. Van Thompson, our engineer, and I will attend with Mr. J. R. Cole. Because of the interest which has been indicated in this subject by other operators, it is not unlikely that several of them will be in attendance, possibly for the purpose of introducing evidence.

Please arrange for us to receive in due course a copy of each publisher's affidavit with respect to the pertinent notice of hearing.

With thanks, we are

Yours very truly,

Willis L. Les, Jr. General Attorney

WLL: NG Encls.

co: Mr. J. R. Cole, Santa Fe Mr. Van Thompson, Dallas

LUCGBLE

NOTICE FOR PUBLICATION

ł

STATE OF NEW MEXICO

OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION

The State of New Mexico, by its Oil Conservation Commission, hereby gives notice, pursuant to law, of the following public hearings to be held February 17, 1948, beginning at 10:00 o'clock A.M. on that day, in the City of Santa Fe, New Mexico:

Case No.____

In the matter of the petition of Southern Union Production Company for an order fixing the spacing of wells in the Kutz Canyon and Fulcher Basin gas fields of San Juan County (as they may be extended) on the basis of one well to a drilling unit of approximately 160 acres with suitable provisions for any related matters including special approval of unorthodox well locations where necessary. Given under the seal of the Oil Conservation Commission of New Mexico, at Santa Fe, New Mexico, on January _____, 1948.

> THE STATE OF NEW MEXICO acting by and through its Oil Conservation Commission

By: R. R. Spurrier, Secretary

(SEAL)

1

SC 26 Fik # 2 Replication, Transcript, Smill Exhibits, Etc.

HEN MEXICO OIL COMBRINATION COMMISSION

SANTA PF, NEW MELLICO

In the matter of the petition of the Southern Union Freduction Company for an order fixing the spacing of wells in the Kuts Canon-Falcher Section Gas fields of San Juan County (as they may be extended) on the basis of one well to a drilling unit of approxiuntely 160 acres with suitable provisions for any related matters, including special approval of nonconforming well locations there measurery.

CROWN NO.

CASE 10. 126

WERRAS, after due notice as required by low the Commission held a public bearing in Samta Fe on February 17, 1948, to consider the public of Southern Union Production Company for the adoption of an order fixing the spacing of wells hereafter drilled in the Kuts Canon-Fulcher Bosin gas fields, Bos Juan County, New Mexico, and related matters; and

WEREEAS, the Commission having considered the evidence adduced at such hearing, partiment information otherwise available in the Commission's records, the statements unde and viewpoints expressed by interested parties at or in commention with such hearing, いいひ

FINDS, from the evidence adduced;

A. That the Kutz Comon and Fulcher Basin gas fields are productive of matural gas from the Pictured Cliff consistons formation, that such fields are contignous and from all information available to date appear to be one continuous gas producing area or pool in the Pictured Cliff, with a total of over 70 producing gas wells at the present time:

5. That such tool has greatered metered and the same Cond by parage during which time the average of well-hast grassmas has dealined to appreximately 3% 2.3.7. grass from as botted field pressure of a pressure that a loss of the second the difference dealed by the second field pressure of the second field of the second from the pool.

affecting the substantial foderal acreage involved), a fairly uniform spacing of one wall to 160 scree has heretofore prevailed in the yeal;

D. That one well will, except in unusual instances, economically and effunctively drain the recoverable gas in an orderly manner from at least 160 mores of the Pictured Cliff pool and, accordingly, that more dense spacing in the peol will, as a general rule, result in warts or in unnecessary hazards combusive to waste and unnecessarily increase the costs of development and production;

E. That, encept in unusual instances, the volume of recoverable gas in the pool does not under existing conditions afford economic justification for the drilling of wells on units of less than 160 acres, more dense spacing being, therefore, likely to result in retardation of development, premature abandonment of wells and in other conditions westerul or conducive to veste;

F. That for walls hereafter drilled a general spacing pattern of one contrally located well on a unit of 160 mores, substantially in the shape of a square, is required to protect the equities of those having interests in wells heretefore drilled on 160-more tracts, for which general spacing pattern the pooling of properties should be encouraged when necessary;

G. That the gas productive area of the pool is likely to be substantially more extensive, in one of more directions, then the presently developed portion thereof;

H. That the definition of the pool, contained herein, is reasonable and is necessary to the efficacy of this spacing order; and

I. That waste will result in the drilling of walls in the pool, as hereinafter defined, unless special rules and regulations are adopted for the prevention thereof, and the openial outer and manufactors and the probability openast secury to prevent such waste and indexide conductive is mate, to probab present equities and to provide for the orderly development and operables of and pool, as it may be extended.

million of the constant sector without the base of the constant of the state of the constant o

191

Canon-Fulcher Basin area, defined below, in addition to the Commission's applicaable rules, regulations and orders heretofore or hereafter adopted to the extent not in conflict herewith:

Section 1. No well shall be drilled or completed or recompleted, and no Notice of Intention to Drill or drilling persit with respect to a well shall be granted or drilling location otherwise permitted to become offective, where

(a) such well be located on a designated drilling unit of not less than one hundred sixty (160) acres of land, more or less, according to legal subdivisions of the United States Land Surveys, in which whit all the interests are consolidated by pooling agreement or othervise and on which no other well is completed, or authorized for completion, in the pool;

(b) such drilling unit be in the shape of a square except for normal variations in legal subdivisions of the United States Lands Surveys; and

(c) such well be located on its drilling unit at a distance from the outside unit boundaries of not less them seven hundred fifty feet (750'); provided, if such proposed new well is to be an offset to any then producing gas well completed in the pool, or the drilling of which was authorized, prior to the effective date of this order, located on an adjoiring unit in which the interests are not identical with those in the anit proposed to be drilled, such proposed well may be located and drilled offsetting the axisting wall and as close to the constant of the offsetting the axisting wall and as close to

Section 2. Any provision bords to the orderary admittanceding, the varminutes any, and memory and will, as position of the constitut, by order entered after notice and based. The block of realized by law, grant exceptions and permit brithing to which as because decisive, thereby addational for unlitting to control a structure of the post of conform

- lecti

ing to the requirements of Section 1 above if the Commission shall find that the property cought to be drilled would be deprived of an opportunity to produce gas from the pool in the absence of such exception, and shall also find one or more of the following conditions to exist:

 (a) that consolidation or pooling of the property sought to be stilled with necessary adjoining land, notwithstanding diligent efforts made in good faith, is impossible or improvisal;

 (b) that the property sought to be drilled is located within a then developed portion of the pool and its non-conforming size or shape is due to the adjoining developed properties in the pool;

(c) that because of the nature of the terrain, location of the proposed well at a lesser distance from one of the outer boundaries of its drilling unit should be versitted; or

(d) that by remain of the location of the property sought to be drilled along the southmest or northeast flank of a developed portion of the area; it appears improbable that gas which can be produced in paying quantities will be encountered if the well conforms to Section 1, in which case the Commission may modify the requirements of Section 1 as to such well to the extent it deems necessary; provided, it shall be the general policy of the Commission in any such case to require the pooling of properties to consolidate interests in at least 160 acres if practical to do so, whether or not in the shape of a square, and to require that the well be located, 11 practical to do so, at least thirteen innered breaky area ($1 \le 0^{1}$) state and $0 \le 0^{1}$ well denthered, or subcontexe context defines, in other well den-

or, introportion of such finite of the constant of the time by transma of all structure on or solver to proport to be according of transmission contractor of the constant of the function of the or alternism in the analysis of the constant of the function of the the spacing of wells or the other process conference by the, report of the chief.

The Commission reserves the right to impose any and all reasonable conditions upon the granting of any such exception, and to take all other proper actions in the emercine of its juristiction over the spacing of valle or its other powers conferred by law, express or implied.

IT IS FURNESS ORDERED that, in accordance with recommendations of the New Maxico Momenclature Countities approved and adopted by this Counterion, the Pictured Cliff and producing pool in the Kuts Canon-Fulcher Masin area, to which this order applies, is defined to include initially the following described Land in San Juan County, New Maxico:

the second s	1 10	
		nge 12 West
200.07000	28, 29, 30	
	32, 33, 34 19 4 20	ALL ALL
50011008	19 4 20	: 5월 : 8월 & 5만실
Section	31	1 B4 & SE
Section	35	1 54 & MH
Section	36	: 8
Section	य	1 S & BW
themakin 2	Mooth Re	neo 12 Vest
Grant Lang	1, 2, 3, 1	
	11 10 17	wy
Genetit met	11, 12, 13 4 & 24	1 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Section 1	****	
Section 1		
	6	: 對金
Tennship 2	9 Morth Re	ngo 11 West
Sections	7. 18. 19.	
Sections	7, 18, 19,)
Sections	7, 18, 19, 20, 21, 28	3.
Sections	7, 18, 19, 20, 21, 28 29, 33, 34	3, N 311
Section	7, 18, 19, 20, 21, 28 29, 33, 34 6	8, +: All : 5¥∲
Section Section	7, 18, 19, 20, 21, 28 29, 33, 34 6 16 & 26	5, 11 ALL 1 SHA
Section Section Sections Section	7, 18, 19, 20, 21, 28 29, 33, 34 6 16 & 26	5, 11 ALL 1 SHA
Section Section Sections Section Section	7, 18, 19, 20, 21, 23 29, 33, 34 6 16 & 26 27 35	4: ALL 5₩2 : S₩2 : S₩2 : S4 & B₩2 : S4 & B₩2 : W4 & S50
Sections Sections Sections Section Section Section	7, 18, 19, 20, 21, 23 29, 33, 34 6 16 & 26 27 35 17	4: ALL 5₩2 : S₩2 : S₩2 : S4 & B₩2 : S4 & B₩2 : W4 & S50
Sections Sections Sections Section Section Section	7, 18, 19, 20, 21, 23 29, 33, 34 6 16 & 26 27 35	ALL SHA SHA SHA SHA ALL SHA SHA SHA SHA SHA SHA SHA SHA
Section Section Section Section Section Section	7, 18, 19, 20, 21, 28 29, 33, 34 6 16 & 26 27 35 17 30 & 32	ALL 544 544 54 & 100 54 & 100 104 & 574 104 & 100 104 & 100 104 & 100
Sections Sections Sections Section Section Section Sections	7, 18, 19, 20, 21, 23 29, 33, 34 6 16 & 26 27 35 17 30 & 32 30 & 32 3 porta, 20	1. ALL 3. ALL 3. ALL 3. ALL 3. ALL 3. ALL 4. ALL 5. ALL
Sections Sections Sections Section Section Section Sections	7, 18, 19, 20, 21, 23 29, 33, 34 6 16 & 26 27 35 17 30 & 32 30 & 32 30 & 32 30 & 32	ALL SHA SHA SHA SHA NH & SHA NH & SHA SHA SHA SHA SHA SHA SHA SHA
Section Section Section Section Section Section Sections Foundable Sections	7, 18, 19, 20, 21, 23 29, 33, 34 6 16 & 26 27 35 17 30 & 32 30 & 32 3, 207 th, 25 11, 12, 13 14, 24	ALL SHA SHA SHA SHA NH & SHA NH & SHA SHA SHA SHA SHA SHA SHA SHA
Section Sections Sections Section Section Sections Formula Sections	7, 18, 19, 20, 21, 23 29, 33, 34 6 16 & 26 27 35 17 30 & 30 3 porth, 20 3 porth, 20 11, 12, 13 14, 24 10 & 15	ALL - ALL - BW - BW - BW - B - B - B - B - B - B - B - B
Sections Sections Sections Section Section Sections Sections Sections Sections	7, 18, 19, 20, 21, 23 29, 33, 34 6 16 & 26 27 35 17 30 & 30 3 #0: 10, 20 11, 12, 13 14, 24 10 & 15 20	ALL BH BH BH BH BH BH BH BH BH BH
Section Sections Sections Section Section Sections Formula Sections	7, 18, 19, 20, 21, 23 29, 33, 34 6 16 & 26 27 35 17 30 & 30 3, 20, 10 3, 20, 10 11, 12, 13 14, 24 10 & 15 20 20	ALL - ALL - BW - BW - B - B - B - B - B - B - B - B

Terminity (14 Morth, 200, 8 10 Mart) 10001 (cast 7, 10, 10, 10, 0, 30, 10, 20, 30,

		<i>,</i>		
a tha is to be t	. ' k		3 1	- 14 J
Jection	<u></u>		i.	

FIGABL

ALL ALL Bactim 3 1 41

and also to include, without the messanity of further action by the Counities or this Countering, all additional lands located within three-fourths (3/4) mile of any part of a drilling unit established hereunder which includes land in the peak as it is initially defined or as it may be extended by the application of this provided, henever, that each peak shall in no event be extendionally extended on as to include any lands new or hereafter included by the Coumission in some other producing area formally designated as an oil or gas peak or field in the Pieturet Cliff; provided, further, by order of this Countering in the peak my be redesignated from time to time so as to embrase other lands in the visibility which are believed, on the basis of additional developments, to be supphie of producing gas from the Exts Canon-Pulsher Beain peak, whether or not can be ther lands shall have been at one time included in another designated field or peak producing from the Pictured Cliff.

Retered and adopted by the Oil Conservation Comminsion this

. 1948.

Chairman

COMMENTER LOOMENT

Cay of

and a second second

HGT BL

Hill to tata in

El Fidel Hotel Albuquerque, New Mexico

February 13, 1948

CH CONSFRVATION COMMISSION SANIALS NEW MICHINE, IN TOLES (TO DE ONLINE), IN FEB 16 1948)

Oil Conservation Commission Santa Fe, New Mexico

Gentlemen:

The writer has made a study of the petition of Southern Union Production Company for a spacing order fixing the spacing of wells hereafter drilled in the Kutz-Canyon-Fulcher Basin gas fields, looking towards the best interest of the United States, the State of New Mexico and the development of potential areas involved. It is my opinion that this proposed program is sound. No doubt, there will be instances where exceptions are warranted, which would come under the wise discretion of the New Mexico Oil Conservation Commission.

Respectfully,

1. Julion J. Hudson

JJH:fr

cc - Southern Union Production Company Burt Building Dallas 1, Texas Dan Juan County, Dow on too. jebruary, 1948.

The New Cexico (il nny Gha Conservation Santa 26, New Vexico. Genilemen:

5.1

V 126 Doub # 126

The und rsigned orners of fee lands situated in San Juan County. remedifully submit their opposition to the granting of the petition of 300 hern Union production Company, now pending before the Coumission, such petition being entitled;

"In the matter of the petition for an order fixing the spacing of wells hereinsfter drilled in the Ruts Canyon and Sulcher Basin Sields in San Juan County, AS THEY PAY WIEDED and related mathors." 14 ···

car exposition includes the following.

- 1. e doom the granting of the stition will repualt in a divadventage to operators as a whole, and to the State of new Jecico, and to the fos land owners.
- 2. In particular we oppose any vale or regulation whereander the present Futs Canyon and Sulcher Casin Falds may be EXTENDED.
- 3. a major part of the lands in the county (including State lands) are indeveloped, both as to oil and gav.
- 4. Humero # oil and gas leases have been secured by lafer and Independent operators embracing units less than 160 acres.
- The State of New Mexico has issued many oil and gas locees, on state and institutional lands and many of such leases are in smaller units than 160 acres, many being for 40 ac es,80 5. scres and 120 acres. The Commissioner of Jublic lands (and the State) will be in a position of having issue: oil and gas lasses, accepting non y therefor, and then not allowing developement of such leased lands. If a 160 u it bo adopted a stort finde
- ΰ. The petilioner, who have heretofore asveloped certain of the lands now within the area of the suts Canyon and Sulcher Sasin Ciclis, dampoond of natural gas to the Southern Union Ses Company, its associate, under some arrangement unknown to protestants. the touthorn daton the Collary to the only durchaser of gas produced in these two fields and ther fore the two o recentions have a Cancelly an pertains to the present strate on tion and Grans-portation of gas, and have been able to (and do) dictors and fix the price of gas produced by independent oper fors, and it Low a pages that ball two corporations have duccooled in cotting is guaranteering in a 10 two field is a condition to past its contrastant now teh an order from the de education, which could a svalt incomentation are set and the of loss then low do os.
- the listic of the presence of a terral second blocker Bedin fields where he contactely acts wined. The hep been street of the contract in the country for it, 7. averal alle and there, tools in the fold, the story of n as the tiste line to the south. it cheald be an e cortain that neither the petitioner, as any may also also, i his successfully claim that the size mayon and the states a state of the states of the stat con dy.

to rule or regulation should be adopted that would interfere or restrict or setard fig development of lands within the county as to exploration, production or development of either til or Gas in any part of the county, incomuch as there are serveral sands and for ations, above and below the licture diff formation (from which petitioner obtains gas).

·----

Sherefore peticionrs, as protestants, pray that said potition be denied. asportfully submitted.

医多壁 建铬铬酸 医包含 有力 多 化 含化 化 化 化 化 化 化 化 化 化 化 化 化 化 化 化 化	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Name of land owner.	Hame of land owner.

	and and a second and a second s
	₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩
<u></u>	
<mark>general general des la general de la constanta de la constanta</mark>	الم المحمد المراجع الم المراجع المراجع
nana an sanana ang ang ang ang ang ang ang ang an	and the second
പ്രം പ്രം നിന്നാം പ്രം പ്രം പ്രം പ്രം പ്രം തുടയും തുടയും പ്രം പ്രം പ്രം നിന്നും നിന്നും നിന്നും പ്രം പ്രം പ്രം	y y san ita ina mpi ang
na se	مېمىلەرمەتلەرمەتلەرمەر مەرەپىيە بەرەپ مەرەپ بەرەپ بەرەپ مەرەپ مەرەپ بەرەپ بەر
ى يې	مراجع المراجع المراجع العالمي المراجع ا المراجع المراجع
namen an	ала умариала ула тереник кинала ката байтана тереник тереник ката ката катана кинала тереник иналики катана кат Катана кинала
n en	പാരമാണ് കോല്പാനും പോരും പാരും നാന് നാന്ത്രം പോലായ് കോന്ന് പോലായ് നാന്ത്രം നാന്ത്രം പോരും പാല്പായ് പ്രതിയത്താണ്. ഇന്ത്രം കൂലായുന്നും വിക്ടുക്കുന്നും നാന്ത്രം നാന്ത്രം നാനായിന്നാന് പുത്താന് തന്ത്രം നാന്തരം നാന്തരം നായായിരും ഇത
nan an	ین میکندگیندههایستان سیز سرانی با این و با این با این با این این این این این این این این این ای
د المراجع المراجع المراجع ، والمراجع المراجع من معالي المراجع المراجع المراجع المراجع المراجع المراجع المراجع ا	որ և ընդհանականությունը տարապետությունը։ Դուսելու այս անդին երի հետ հանունենել նեն է անդենականություններում։ Դուս

-

Ľ

.

1

8.

.

lase #126

NEW MEXICO OIL CONSFRVATION COMMISSION

SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO

54x9+2 18

In the matter of the petition of the Southern Union Production Company for an order fixing the spacing of wells in the Kutz Canon and Fulcher Basin Gas fields of San Juan County (as they may be extended) on the basis of one well to a drilling unit of approximately 160 acres with suitable provisions for any related matters including special approval of unorthodox well locations where necessary.

ORDFR NO.

WHEREAS, after due notice as required by law the Commission held a public hearing in Santa Fe on February 17, 1948, to consider the petition of Southern Union Production Company for the adoption of an order fixing the spacing of wells hereafter drilled in the Kutz Canon-Fulcher Basin gas fields, San Juan County, New Mexico, and related matters; and

WHERFAS, the Commission having considered the evidence adduced at such hearing, pertinent information otherwise available in the Commission's records, the statements made and viewpoints expressed by interested parties at or in connection with such hearing,

FINDS, from the evidence adduced:

1. That the Kutz Canon and Fulcher Basin gas fields are productive of natural gas from the Pictured Cliff sandstone formation encountered at depths ranging between 1700 and 2300 feet, approximately; that such fields are contiguous and from all information available to date appear to be one continuous gas producing area;

2. That such area has produced natural gas for more than 15 years, during which time the average of well head pressures has declined to approximately 385 P.S.I. gauge from an initial field pressure of approximately 585 P.S.I. gauge, the difference representing the substantial quantities of gas produced during such poriod;

3. That by reason of rules of this Consission previously applicable to the area, of the general practices of certain operators in the area and of policies of the U.S. Geological Survey (having jurisdiction over oil and gas practices affecting the substantial federal acreage involved,) a fairly uniform spucing puttern of one well to 160 acres has horotofore prevailed in the area; 4. That one well will, except in unusual instances, economically and effectively drain the recoverable gas in an orderly manner from at least 160 acres of the Pictured Cliff and, accordingly that more dense exacing will, as a general rule, result in waste or in unnecessary hozards conducive to waste and unnecessarily increase the costs of development and production;

5. That, except in unusual instances, the volume of recoverable gas in the Pictured Cliff reservoir does not under existing conditions afford economic justification for the drilling of wells on units of less than 160 acres, more dense spacing being, therefore, likely to result in retardation of development, premature abundonment of wells and in other conditions wasteful or conducive to waste;

6. That for wells hereafter drilled a general spacing pattern of one centrally located well on a unit of 160 acres, substantially in the shape of a square, is required to protect the equities of those having interests in wells heretofore drilled on 160 acre tracts, for which purpose the pooling of properties should be encouraged when necessary; and

7. That waste will result in the drilling of wells in the Kutz Canon-Fulcher Basin area, as hereinafter defined, unless special rules and regulations are adopted for the prevention thereof, and that the special rules and regulations provided below are necessary to prevent such waste, to protect present equities and to provide for the orderly development and operation of such area;

THEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED that, effective immediately, the following rules

and regulations shall apply to wells hereafter drilled or completed or recompleted to the Pictured Cliff in the Kutz Canon-Fulcher Basin area, defined below, in addition to the Commission's rules, regulations and orders heretofore or hereafter adopted to the extent not in conflict herewith:

1. No well shall be drilled or completed or recompleted, and no drilling permit shall be granted or drilling location otherwise permitted to become effective, unless

(a) such well be located on a drilling unit of one hundred sixty (160) acres of land, more or less, according to official government survey, in which all the interests are consolidated by pooling agreement or otherwise and on which no other Picture Cliff well is located or drilling; (b) such well be located at the center of its drilling unit
or at a distance from the center not greater than one-eighth
(1/8) the width of such unit at its narrowest part; and
(c) such drilling unit be in the shape of a square except
for normal variations in land divisions of the government
survey.

2. Any provision to the contrary notwithstanding, the Commission may in proper cases by order entered after notice and hearing, as required by law, grant exceptions and permit drilling locations to become effective, thereby authorizing the drilling or completion of wells to the Pictured Cliff not conforming to the requirements of Section 1 if the Commission shall find that the property sought to be drilled would be deprived of an opportunity to produce gas in the absence of such exception, and shall also find one or more of the following conditions to exist.

(a) that consolidation of properties through pooling of interests in additional land notwithstanding diligent efforts made in good faith; is impossible or impractical,

(b) that the property sought to be drilled is located within a developed portion of the area and its unorthodox size or shape is due to the adjacent developed properties;

(c) that because of the nature of the terrain, location of the proposed well at a greater distance from the center of its drilling unit should be permitted; or

(d) that by reason of the location of the property sought to be drilled along the southwest or northeast flank of a developed portion of the area; it appears impossible that gas which can be produced in paying quantities will be encountered if the well conforms to Section 1, in which case the Commission may modify the requirements of Section 1 to the extent it desms necessary; provided, it shall be the general policy of the Commission in any such case to require the pooling of properties to consolidate interests in 160 acres if practical to do so, whether or not in the shape of a square, and to require that the well be located at least thirteen hundred twenty (1320) feet from the nearest well producing from the Platuret Chiff if practical to do so. The Commission reserves the right to impare reasonable conditions upon the granting of any such exception.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, that the Kutz Canon-Fulcher Basin area which is subject to this order, herein sometimes termed the "area", shall be those lands in T.3ON, R 12W, T 29N, R. 12W, T 29N, R. 11W, T 28N, R 11W, and T 28N, R. 10W, N.M.P.M., which are commonly known as the Kutz Canon or Fulcher Basin gas field, or as both such fields, and also all land located within one (1) mile of any well in such fields which is capable of producing natural gas from the Pictured Cliff, including wells -ereafter drilled which extend the gas productive area of such fields; provided that the term "area" shall not include any lands now or hereafter included by the Commission in some other field or fields.

Entered and adopted by the Oil Conservation Commission this ______ / day of ______, 1948.

CHAIRMAN

COMMISSIONER

SEC.

Suite 17, Radio Plaza Telephone 3003 1



John J. Dompsoy President

Bempsey Realty Company

Santa Fe, New Mexico March 3, 1948

file and 14

Mr. Dick Spurrier State Geologist Santa Fe, N. M.

Dear Mr. Spurrier:

I wrote you requesting before a decision was made by the State Oil Conservation Commission in connection with the spacing request in an area of San Juan County by the Southern Union Gas Company, that I would be permitted to incorporate a statement in the proceedings. I now find that the lands I am developing are not in the area embraced by the hearing. Therefore, I have no further interest in the matter.

Thank you yery kindly. lun 1 John J. Deapsey

JJD: jw

1

ALBUAT R. CREUR Registered Fetroleum Engineer State of New Nexico

> 1020 North Shipp Hobbs, New Mexico February 21, 1948

The New Mexico Oil Conservation Commission

Santa Ne, New Mexico

Concerning: Brisf submitted on behalf of some of the independent operators and small land owners of san Juan County in regard to:

> Case Number 126, relative to the request of the Southern Union Gas Company for a spacing caling for the Fulcher Pasin-Kutz Canyon Gas Fields, Jan Juan County.

Centlemen:

C F T

> I wish to submit have with for your consideration in this matter a few written statements cummarizing this case and bestimony pertaining thereto, as I have analyzed it.

1. The general problem of optimum spacing in any field requires careful study and a large amount of carefully jathered and compiled information.

2. Until a proximately was weake pairs to this heaving all or the mecessary induced how has been available only to the ionithern Union the Company. At that the parts of this induces any indocention has been exclided by the direct black and that available to intercented parties. The source is not a filterent time, second, to persit a stady of this methan by an entities done was adopted. How over, the internet of the last the last of adopted intercents, the inter adopted by an entities have a individual. How over, the internet of the last the last of adopted to provide a definite poly of the set.

LUCGBU

3. A spacing ruling in an old field without regard to proration--or without a proration ruling--would, in effect, be a direct contradiction to the conception of correlative rights as understood in the petroleum industry.

> For, just as new 40-acre wells offsetting plu wells on 100 acres would unfairly drain the 150-acre tract; so would new 160-acre units be distuid by plu wells on 40-acre tracts.

d. The problem of increased wells without an unlimited market, and resulting scaller per well production rate as brought out by Mr. Joster Correll of the USAS would, in my opinion, be more likely aggravated by 160-acre units than relieved; due to the increased number of forced officets.

5. In regard to the evidence presented at the hearing, Sebruary 17, 1948 it was shown that old walls had a drainage influence over extended distances in some areas, and in interference test conducted on adjoining wells established communication between them: but the evidence presented did not allow how sales gas will be left unrecovered in the reservoir at abandoment for various well specings; nor did the fortilized control of a solid which well specings; nor did the fortilized control of a solid which well specings; nor did the fortilized control of a solid wolld have be but the original interference which is order to as wells could interference control of a solid on the fortune of the order of a solid could have be but the original interference which is an order to as wells and the but the original interference which is a solid could interference of the original interference of a solid could have be but the original interference which is a solid could have be but the original integrated, is a solid on the probability and the but the original of the solid on the solid of the original of the fortune of a solid could be be a solid on the solid of the solid

1

(b) in viol of this, a desiring on s species of the first of the first of the second of the second

LIEGBLE

in the reservoir for arrous well spacings; for which subject inadequate testimony was presented.

(c) A provision should be made, if a spacing of 100 about ger well is contamplated, to permit later infilled drilling on a closer spacing, 10 ever proven economically feasible. To should be recognized that the next smallest, practical spacing from 160-acre onits is 60 acres per well; and this is possible only if the wells on the initial 160-acre tracts are spotted on 80-acre patterns. If a rigid center-spot location on 100 acres is regulted, the only uniform spacing on infilled drilling for each 160-acre tract, would require 4 sore wells, or an average of 52 acres per well.

Prom the testimony presented at the hearing it can be seen that an increase in the price of gas, plus a decrease in the cost of drilling the wells (both of which are normal trendss) would justify infilled drilling on 00-acre locationsif it is found later that as much as approximately 25% more gas can be recovered on the closer spacing. This sale information indicates that infilled drilling of 32 acres per well would provedly never to sconomically feasible. Hence, 160-acre center-spot locations would make later infilled drilling on individual 160-acre tracts forever impossible.

Encover, a study of the field indicates that a large number of the drilling units can be more effectively drained by locating the wells in the most permeable part of the unit; and this permeable part is not necessarily in the solitor of 150-acre arants. For the sale number of wells, the field can be more effectively drained by placing the wells in the most permeable parts of units rather than rigid contempol locations.

It is therefore requisted, that is the event the Consission decides to but a spack profile equiring 100-acres per well, that consideration be given to floability of beaten, each well on its unit; in order that maximum advantage may be realized from the continuously developed to be head and an instruction (instance tion; and in order that up to head and by providity to locate their colle on 20-acre patterns in the opportubility to they would be in position in the constitute of the set

1

LICGBLE

PROPOSED ORDER

BEFORE THE OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION OF THE STATE OF NEW MEXICO

IN THE MATTER OF A HEARING CALLED BY THE OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION OF THE STATE OF NEW MEXICO FOR THE PURPOSE OF CONSIDERING:

> CASE NO. 126 ORDER NO. 748

IN THE MATTER OF THE PETITION OF THE SOUTHERN UNION PRODUCTION COMPANY FOR AN ORDER FIXING THE SPACING OF WELLS IN THE KUTZ CANYON-FULCHER BASIN GAS FIELDS OF SAN JUAN COUNTY (AS THEY MAY BE EXTENDED) ON THE BASIS OF ONE WELL TO A DRILLING UNIT OF AP-PROXIMATELY 160 ACRES WITH SUITABLE PROVIS-IONS FOR ANY RELATED MATTERS, INCLUDING SPECIAL APPROVAL OF NONCONFORMING WELL LO-CATIONS WERE NECESSARY.

PROPOSED ORDER OF THE COMMISSION

BY THE COMMISSION:

WHEREAS, after due notice as required by law the Commission held a public hearing in Santa Fe on February 17, 1948, to consider the petition of Southern Union Production Company for the adoption of an order fixing the spacing of wells hereafter drilled in the Kutz Canyon-Fulcher Basin gas field, San Juan County, New Mexico, and related matters; and

WHEREAS, the Commission having considered the evidence adduced at such hearing, pertinent information otherwise available in the Commission's records, the statements made and viewpoints expressed by interested parties at or in connection with such hearing,

FINDS, from the evidence adduced:

A. That the Kutz Canyon and Fulcher Basin gas pools are productive of natural gas from the Pictured Cliffs sandstone formation, that such pools are contiguous and from all information available to date appear to be one continuous gas producing area or pool in the Pictured Cliffs sandstone;

B. That such pool has produced natural gas for more than 15 years, during which time the average of well-head pressures has declined approximately 200 P.S.I. gauge.

C. That by reason of rules of this Commission previously applicable to the pool, of the general practices of certain operators in the area and of policies of the U.S. Geological Survey, a fairly uniform spacing of one well to 160 acres has heretofore prevailed throughout most of the peol;

D. That one well will, in view of present evidence, economically and effectively drain the recoverable gas from at least 160 acres of the pool and, accordingly, that more dense spacing in the pool may be conducive to waste and will unnecessarily increase the costs of development and productions under present economic conditions; E. That for wells hereafter drilled, a general spacing pattern of one centrally located well on a unit of 160 acres, substantially in the shape of a square, is required to protect the equities of those having interests in wells heretofore drilled on 160-acre tracts, for which general spacing pattern the pooling of properties should be encouraged when necessary;

F. That the gas productive area of the pool is likely to be substantially more extensive than the presently developed portion thereof;

G. That waste will result in the drilling of wells in the pool, unless special rules and regulations are adopted for the prevention thereof; and

H. That, while the Kutz Canyon-Fulcher Basin gas field has been commercially productive for more than 15 years, it has not been subject to cooperatore action representative of the interest of all the operatores or lease-holders within the area during that period. In addition, properties, holdings and/or leases of any undetermined number of small landowners or lease-holders, whose total acreage is either less than 160 acres or includes portions of 160-acre traots, still exist within the pool boundaries, as herein defined. Furthermore, the number of such holdings will inorease as the pool boundaries are extended by subsequent drilling. In recognition of these facts, the Commission hereby serves notice that in order to equally protect the interest of all property owners and leaseholders within the Kutz Canyon-Fulcher Basin pool, exception to the following rules will be granted in cases where it can be demonstrated, by petition and hearing, as provided by law, that compliance would cause undue hardship, loss, or expense.

THEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED that, effective on the date of this order, the following rules and regulations shall apply to wells hereafter drilled or completed or recompleted to the Pictured Cliff pool in the Kutz Canyon-Fulcher Basin area, defined below, in addition to the Commission's applicable rules, regulations and orders heretofore or hereafter adopted to the extent not in conflict herowith:

Section 1. No well shall be drilled or completed or recompleted, and no Notice of Intention to Drill or drilling permit shall be approved, unless

- (a) such well be located on a designated drilling unit of not less than one hundred sixty (160) acres of land, more or less, according to legal subdivisions of the United States Land Surveys, in which unit all the interests are consolidated by pooling agreement or otherwise and on which no other well is completed, or approved for completion, in the pool;
- (b) such drilling unit be in the shape of a square except for normal variations in legal subdivisions of the United States Lands Surveys; and
- (c) such well be located on its drilling unit at a distance from the unit boundaries of not less than nine hundred ninety feet (990); provided, if such proposed new well is to be an offset to any then producing gas well completed in the pool, or the drilling of which has authorized prior to the effective date of this order, located on an adjoining unit in which the interests are not identical with those in the unit proposed to be drilled, such proposed well may be located and drilled offsetting the existing well and as close to the common unit boundary line as the well to be so offset.

Section 2. Any provision herein to the contrary notwithstanding, the Commission may, and in proper cases will, on petition or on its own motion, by order entered after notice and hearing to the extent required by law, grant exceptions and permit drilling locations to become effective, thereby authorizing the drilling or completion of wells in the pool not conforming to the requirements of Section 1 above if the Commission shall find that the property sought to be drilled would be deprived of an opportunity to produce gas from the pool in the absence of such exception, and shall also find one or more of the following conditions to exist:

- (a) that consolidation or pooling of the property sought to be drilled with necessary adjoining land, notwithstanding diligent efforts made in good faith, is impossible or impraotical;
- (b) that the property sought to be drilled is located within a then developed pertion of the pool and its non-conforming size or shape is due to the adjoining developed properties in the pool;
- (c) that because of the nature of the terrain, location of the proposed well at a lesser distance from one of the outer boundaries of its drilling unit should be permitted; or
- (d) that by reason of the location of the property to be drilled along the southwest or northeast flank of a developed portion of the area, it appears improbable that gas can be produced in paying quantities if the well conforms to Section 1, in which case the Commission may modify the requirements of Section 1 as to such well to the extont it deems necessary;

or irrespective of such findings, if the Commission shall find that by reason of all circumstances an exception is proper in the prevention of waste, or undue drainage between properties, or otherwise in the exercise by the Commission of its jurisdiction over the spacing of wells or its other powers conferred by law, express or implied.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, in accordance with recommendations of the New Mexico Nomenclature Committee approved and adopted by this Commission, the Pictured Cliff gas producing pool in the Kutz Canyon-Fulcher Basin area, to which this order applies, is defined to include the following described land in San Juan County, New Mexico:

Township 27 North,	Ranze 10 West
Sec. 4	A11
Sec. 3	11/2
	•
Toumship 28 North,	
Sec. 15	3.1/4
Sec. 16	s/2
Sec. 17	SN/4, N/2
Secs. 13,19	
20, 21	ATI

~? **-**

Township 28 North,	Runge 10 West
Sec. 22	17/2
Soc. 27	NN /4
Sec. 28, 29	All
Sec. 30	11/2
Sec. 32, 33	A11
Township 28 North,	Range 11 West
Secs. 10,11,12,13	
14,15 and 24	A11
Sec. 22	NE/4
Sec. 23	N/2 SE/4
Township 29 North,	Range 11 West
Sec. 6	S.1/4
Sec. 7	W/2
Sec. 17	s/2 SN
Sacs. 18,19,20	
21	A11
Sec. 27	s/2
Seos. 28,29 & 30	A11
Sec. 32	NW/4
Sec. 33,34	A11
Sec. 35	W/2
Township 29 North,	
Secs. 1,2 & 3	All
Sec. 4 Secs. 10,11,12 13 & 14	NE/4
Secs. 10,11,12	
13 & 1 4	All
Sec. 15	N / 2
Secs. 23 & 24	A11
Township 30 North,	Range 12 West
Secs. 28,29,30,32	
33, 34	A11
Sec. 35	W/2, SE/4 SW/4
Sec. 36	S#/4

All additional lands located within one-half (1/2) mile of any part of a drilling unit established hereunder which included land in the pool as defined or as it may be extended shall conform to these rules and regulations; provided, however, that such pool shall in no event be automatically extended so as to include any lands now or hereafter included by the Commission in some other producing area formally designated as an oil or gas pool in the Pictured Cliffs, provided, further, by order of this Commission the pool may be redesignated from time to time so as to embrace other lands in the vicinty which are believed, on the basis of additional developments, to be capable of producing gas from the Kutz Canyon-Fulcher Basin pool, whother or not such other lands shall have been at one time included in another designated field or pool producing from the Pictured Cliff's.

Entered and adopted by the Oil Conservation Commission this 14 day of May, 1948.

STATE OF NEW NEXICO OIL CONSERVATION CONNISSION CHAIRDAN

LEA COUNTY OPERATORS COMMITTEE MAY 17, 1948 HOBBS, NEW MEXICO

PROFOSED ORDER

BEFORE THE OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION OF THE STATE OF NEW MEXICO

IN THE MATTER OF A HEARING CALLED BY THE OIL CONSERVATION COLMISSION OF THE STATE OF NEW MEXICO FOR THE PURFOSE OF CONSIDERING:

> CASE NO. 126 ORDER NO. 748

IN THE MATTER & THE PETITION OF THE SOUTHERN UNION PRODUCTION COMPANY FOR AN ORDER FIXING THE SPACING OF WELLS IN THE KUTZ CANYON-FULCHER BASIN GAS FIELDS OF SAN JUAN COUNTY (AS THEY MAY BE EXTENDED) ON THE BASIS OF ONE WELL TO A DRILLING UNIT OF AP-PROXIMATELY 160 ACRES WITH SUITABLE PROVIS-IONS FOR ANY RELATED MATTERS, INCLUDING SPECIAL APPROVAL OF NONCONFORMING WELL LO-CATIONS WERE NECESSARY.

PROPOSED ORDER OF THE COMMISSION

BY THE COMMISSION:

WHEREAS, after due notice as required by law the Commission held a public hearing in Santa Fe on February 17, 1948, to consider the petition of Southern Union Production Company for the adoption of an order fixing the spacing of wells hereafter drilled in the Kutz Canyon-Fulcher Basin gas field, San Juan County, New Mexico, and related matters; and

WHEREAS, the Commission having considered the evidence adduced at such hearing, pertiment information otherwise available in the Commission's records, the statements made and viewpoints expressed by interested parties at or in connection with such hearing,

FINDS, from the evidence adduced:

A. That the Kutz Canyon and Fulchor Easin gas pools are productive of natural gas from the Pictured Cliffs sandstone formation, that such pools are contiguous and from all information available to date appear to be one continuous gas producing area or pool in the Pictured Cliffs sandstone;

B. That such pool has produced natural gas for more than 15 years, during which time the average of well-head pressures has declined approximately 200 P.S.I. gauge.

C. That by reason of rules of this Commission previously applicable to the pool, of the general practices of certain operators in the area and of policies of the U.S. Geological Survey, a fairly uniform spacing of one well to 160 acres has heretofore prevailed throughout most of the pool;

D. That one well will, in view of present evidence, economically and effectively drain the recoverable gas from at least 160 acres of the pool and, accordingly, that more dense spacing in the pool may be conducive to waste and will unnecessarily increase the costs of development and productions under present economic conditions; E. That for wells hereafter drilled, a general spacing pattern of one centrally located well on a unit of 160 acres, substantially in the shape of a square, is required to protect the equities of those having interests in wells heretofore drilled on 160-acre tracts, for which general spacing pattern the pooling of properties should be encouraged when necessary;

F. That the gas productive area of the pool is likely to be substantially more extensive than the presently developed portion thereof;

G. That waste will result in the drilling of wells in the pool, unless special rules and regulations are adopted for the prevention thereof; and

H. That, while the Kutz Canyon-Fulcher Basin gas field has been commercially productive for more than 15 years, it has not been subject to cooperatore action representative of the interest of all the operatores or lease-holders within the area during that period. In addition, properties, holdings and/or leases of any undetermined number of small landowners or lease-holders, whose total acreage is either less than 160 acres or includes portions of 160-acre tracts, still exist within the pool boundaries, as herein defined. Furthermore, the number of such holdings will inorease as the pool boundaries are extended by subsequent drilling. In recognition of these facts, the Commission hereby serves notice that in order to equally protect the interest of all property owners and leaseholders within the Kutz Canyon-Fulcher Basin pool, exception to the following rules will be granted in cases where it can be demonstrated, by petition and hearing, as provided by law, that compliance would cause undue hardship, loss, or expense.

THEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED that, effective on the date of this order, the following rules and regulations shall apply to wells hereafter drilled or completed or recompleted to the Pictured Cliff pool in the Kutz Canyon-Fulcher Basin area, defined below, in addition to the Commission's applicable rules, regulations and orders heretofore or hereafter adopted to the extent not in conflict herewith:

Section 1. No well shall be drilled or completed or recompleted, and no Notice of Intention to Drill or drilling permit shall be approved, unless

- (a) such well be located on a designated drilling unit of not less than one hundred sixty (160) acres of land, more or less, according to legal subdivisions of the United States Land Surveys, in which unit all the interests are consolidated by pooling agreement or otherwise and on which no other well is completed, or approved for completion, in the pool;
- (b) such drilling unit be in the shape of a square except for normal variations in legal subdivisions of the United States Lands Surveys; and

1

(c) such well be located on its drilling unit at a distance from the unit boundaries of not less than nine hundred ninety feet (990); provided, if such proposed new well is to be an offset to any then producing gas well completed in the pool, or the drilling of which has authorized prior to the effective date of this order, located on an adjoining unit in which the interests are not identical with those in the unit proposed to be drilled, such proposed well may be located and drilled offsetting the existing well and as close to the cormon unit boundary line as the well to be so offset. Section 2. Any provision herein to the contrary notwithstanding, the Commission may, and in proper cases will, on petition or on its own motion, by order entered after notice and hearing to the extent required by law, grant exceptions and permit drilling locations to become effective, thereby authorizing the drilling or completion of wells in the pool not conforming to the requirements of Section 1 above if the Commission shall find that the property sought to be drilled would be deprived of an opportunity to produce gas from the pool in the absence of such exception, and shall also find one or more of the following conditions to exist:

- (a) that consolidation or pooling of the property sought to be drilled with necessary adjoining land, notwithstanding diligent efforts made in good faith, is impossible or impractical;
- (b) that the property sought to be drilled is located within a then developed portion of the pool and its non-conforming size or shape is due to the adjoining developed properties in the pool;
- (c) that because of the nature of the terrain, location of the proposed well at a lesser distance from one of the outer boundaries of its drilling unit should be permitted; or
- (d) that by reason of the location of the property to be drilled along the southwest or northeast flank of a developed portion of the area, it appears improbable that gas can be produced in paying quantities if the well conforms to Section 1, in which case the Commission may modify the requirements of Section 1 as to such well to the extent it deems necessary;

or irrespective of such findings, if the Commission shall find that by reason of all circunstances an exception is proper in the prevention of waste, or undue drainage between properties, or otherwise in the exercise by the Commission of its jurisdiction over the spacing of wells or its other powers conferred by law, express or implied.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, in accordance with recommendations of the New-Mexico Nomenclature Committee approved and adopted by this Commission, the Pictured Cliff gas producing pool in the Kutz Canyon-Fulcher Basin area, to which this order applies, is defined to include the following described land in San Juan County, New Mexico:

}

Township 27 North,	Range 10 West
Sec. 4	A11
Sec. 3	W/2
	·
Township 28 North,	
Sec. 15	3.7/4
Sec. 16	S/2
Sec. 16 Sec. 17	S/2 SN/4, N/2
• • •	S∕2 SN/4, N/2
Sec. 17	S/2 SW/4, W/2 All

-4--

Township 28 North,	Range 10 West
Sec. 22	W/2
Sec. 27	N8/4
Sec. 28, 29	AII
Sec. 30	N/2
Sec. 32, 33	All
Township 28 North,	Range 11 West
Secs. 10,11,12,13	
14,15 and 24	A11
Sec. 22	NE/4 N/2 SE/4
Sec. 23	N/2 SE/4
Township 29 North,	Range 11 West
Sec. 6	Si1/4
Sec. 7	W/2
Sec. 17	s/2 SN
Secs. 18,19,20	
21	A11
Sec. 27	s/2
Secs. 28,29 & 30	Å11
Sec. 32	NW/4
Sec. 33,34	All
Sec. 35	W /2
Township 29 North,	Range 12 West
Secs. 1,2 & 3	All
Sec. 4	NE/4
Secs. 10,11,12	
13 & 14	All
Sec. 15	N/2
Secs. 23 & 24	A11
Township 30 North,	Range 12 West
Secs. 28,29,30,32	
33, 34	A11
Sec. 35	W/2, SE/4 SN/4
Sec. 36	Sil/4

All additional lands located within one-half (1/2) mile of any part of a drilling unit established hereunder which included land in the pool as defined or as it may be extended shall conform to these rules and regulations; provided, however, that such pool shall in no event be automatically extended so as to include any lands new or hereafter included by the Commission in some other producing area formally designated as an oil or gas pool in the Pictured Cliffs, provided, further, by order of this Commission the pool may be redesignated from time to time so as to embrace other lands in the vicinty which are believed, on the basis of additional developments, to be capable of producing gas from the Kutz Canyon-Fulcher Basin pool, whether or not such other lands shall have been at one time included in another designated field or pool producing from the Pictured Cliffs.

Entored and adopted by the Oil Conservation Commission this 14 day of May, 1948.

STATE OF NEW MERICO OIL CONSERVATION CONSISSION

LEA COUNTY OPERATORS CONFLITTEE MAY 17, 1948 HOBBS, NEW MEXICO

.

CHAIRIAN
Porm C-101

NEW MEXICO OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Santa Fe, New Mexico NOTICE OF INTENTION TO DRILL

. .

÷

OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION W MEXICO.

Det

Notice must be given to the Oil Conservation Commission or its proper agent and approver that include or the begins. If changes in the proposed plan are considered advisable, a copy of this notice showing such changes will be returned to the sender. Submit this notice in triplicate. One copy will be returned following the prover such additional instructions in Rules and Regulations of the Commission.

OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION, Santa Fe, New Mexico,

Gentlemen:

You are hereby notified that it is our intention to commence the drilling of a well to be known as.....

Pisce

					Well No.	10		
		Company or	Operator	Nell No In				
of	Sec	, T	, R	, N. M., P. M.,	Field,	County.		
		x	The well	is feet (N.) (S	5.) of the line ar	ndfeet		
			(E.) (W.)) of theline of	£			
			(Give directions		other iegal subdivision lines.	Cross out wrong		
		╺━┨╼╼╎╌╌┼╌╌┨	if state is	and the oil and gas lease is	NoAssignment	No		
ļ			lf patente	ed land the owner is				
			Address					
			lf govern	ment land the permittee i	B			
			Address					
	The lessee is							
	ABE	A SHE ACRES	Address					
L	_	ELL CORBECTLY	We propo	se to drill well with drilling	equipment as follows:			

The status of a bond for this well in conformance with Rule 39 of the General Rules and Regulations of the Commission is as follows:

We propose to use the following strings of casing and to land or cement them as indicated:

Bize of Hole	Bize of Casing	Weight Per Fost	New or Second Hand	Depth	Landed or Cemented	Baoks Censor
			:			
1						

Additional information: Pursuant to the Cormission's Order No. _____, the drilling unit for this well is _______, more or less, being the _______, N.M.P.M.

Approved....., 19.....

Sincerely yours,

except as follows:	
	Company or Operator
	By
	Position
OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION,	Send communications regarding well to
By	Name
Title	Address

SOUTHERN UNION PRODUCTION COMPANY BURT BUILDING DALLAB, TEXAS



May 29, 1948

Mr. R. R. Spurrier, Secretary Oil Conservation Commission Santa Fe, New Mexico

Dear Dick:

I will make an effort to cover the points we discussed on the telephone with respect to the proposed form of order in Case No. 126, Southern Union Production Company's application for a spacing order in the Kutz Canon-Fulcher Basin area.

Most important, of course, is the definition of the pool. In some instances the proposed order expands the acreage over that we suggested. While the reason for this expansion is not immediately apparent to us it does not seem to be too important. On the other hand, certain contractions were made, presumably on the theory that by the last paragraph of the proposed order it would be made applicable also to lands within one-half mile of those specifically described. A close reading of the last paragraph convinces me that the order, as proposed, would not apply to any land not specifically described.

The language is "All additional lands located within one-half (1/2) mile of any part of a drilling unit established hereunder which includes land in the pool as defined or as it may be extended shall conform to these rules and regulations; . . ." Notice that to be a "drilling unit established hereunder" the unit would have to be composed of lands specifically described. The order does not say "All additional lands located within one-half (1/2) mile of any part of the above described lands". For this reason the suggested area we described was determined by including each quarter section offsetting a producing quarter section either directly or diagonally; hence, in order to avoid effect of the order anyone proposing to drill a new well would have to jump entirely a l60-acre tract flanking the nonproducing area.

On the contrary, your description of acreage would permit direct offset drilling in some instances, particularly noticeable in the northwestern part. Surely if the order is to accomplish its result it must apply to lands adjoining those which are now developed. While there may be some instances in which it is not necessary to include acreage offsetting very small wolls, it deems to us that in general the acreage should be expended to include all quarter sections offsetting producing quarter sections in any direction.

The last paragraph as suggested by us was intended to accomplish automatic extension of the area to which the order is applicable. For example, both forms of order describe the SWH of Section 6, T. 29 N., R. 11 W. Suppose that this is established as a drilling unit under the order (as contemplated by Section 1(a)) so as to come within the intention of the last paragraph. Clearly it would include "lands in the pool as defined" since all the unit is initially defined. Then by application of the last paragraph the remainder of Section 6 would be subject to the order since all the rest of the section is within one-half mile of a "drilling unit" established under the order. Thereafter, if the SE_4^1 of Section 6 should be designated as a drilling unit, then the pool would be automatically extended and the order automatically applicable to the W_2^1 of Section 5 and the NW_4^1 of Section 8. The intention here, of course, is to make the order automatically cover extensions resulting from regular outward development. On the other hand, if before the SW_{4}^{1} of Section 6 should be designated as a unit the $SE_{L}^{\frac{1}{2}}$ of that section should be drilled, the order would not automatically apply so that its provisions need not be observed unless and until the Commission should see fit to extend it by supplemental order, redesignating the pool.

Under your proposed form it appears that anyone could drill, for example, the NE $\frac{1}{4}$ of Section 31, T. 30 N., R. 12 W., without complying with the spacing or density requirements of the order. Conceivably, several wells could be drilled simultaneously or consecutively before a supplemental order might be entered. Yet, this particular land is offset by production three ways. A similar situation prevails with respect to the SM $\frac{1}{h}$ of Section 20 and the SE $\frac{1}{h}$ of Section 19.

Going now to page 1 in finding D, it strikes us that the word "may" in the third line should be "will" since the word "conducive" provides sufficient latitude; moreover, in this same finding that the words "under present economic conditions" at the last should be deleted since the statement is true under any conditions.

In finding H the sentence beginning "Furthermore" seems more of a forecast than a fact. I believe the Commission could probably say as a fact that the number of such holdings will be <u>likely</u> to increase otc.

In the same finding we think that the last sentence should be deleted entirely since it is not a fact and since it can be construed as an invitation to request exceptions. In this connection it seems significant that everyone known to have any substantial interest in this area is apparently satisfied that the spacing rules proposed are proper and economically sound; in other words, that any opposition to the program has been abandoned. I believe Van told you of the expression we received from Al Greer, Jr. Therefore, if anything along this line is appropriate, it definitely seems to us that it should be de-emphasized and considered for what it is, i.e., an exception to the rule to be granted only in special situations. The fact is that by express provisions of Section 2 a great majority of nonconforming situations are expressly identified and provided for; hence, other exceptions should be few and carefully scrutinized --certainly not invited. Let's delete the last sentence of H.

In part (d) under Section 2 we suggest that the last three words of the second line be changed to "of the developed," and that the semicolon in the next line be changed to a comma so as to preserve the continuity. At the end of (d) you dropped a proviso we had suggested which seems worthwhile since it affords notice that the Commission does not intend to throw down the bars to anyone desiring to arill on the flanks. The proviso gives notice of a sound policy of the Commission, particularly with respect to location of a well at least 1,320 feet from other wells. These seem to be minimum requirements of which the operators are entitled to be notified.

In the last paragraph of Section 2, beginning "or, irrespective of such findings," you may want to add back, perhaps as a new sentence, the idea now expressed under finding H that the Commission will take such action as is necessary "in order to equally protect the interests of all property owners and leaseholders within the Kutz Canon-Fulcher Basin pool" by granting of exceptions in cases where it can be demonstrated, by petition and hearing, as provided by law, that compliance would cause undue hardship, loss or expense. Personally, I think addition of this would be surplus, but it is a matter of preference. We do feel that exceptions should not be emphasized or invited.

In the next paragraph beginning "It is further ordered" the word "initially" is omitted after the word "include" in the fourth line. This should be replaced since it furthers the idea of automatic extension provided for in the last paragraph. Referring again to the last paragraph of the order, it seems to us that the saving of a few words sacrifices definiteness and clarity in the provisions for automatic extensions to cover orderly flank development, and that the last paragraph we suggested should be reinstated with the substitution of 1/2 for 3/4.

To comply with the theory of Section 1(a), wherein it is provided that the drilling unit be designated, and to avoid any confusion on an operator's part, we suggest addition of a new Section 2 (changing present Section 2 to Section 3), as follows:

K Section 2.) In connection with wells hereafter proposed to be drilled or completed or recompleted in the pool, as initially defined or as it may be extended, there shall be included on the form C-101, "Notice of Intention to Drill", in addition to the other required information, a designation of the drilling unit established hereunder for such well, by legal cubdivisions of the United States Land Surveys, in substantially the following manner: "Pursuant to the Conviscion's Order No. 748, the drilling unit for this well is ______ acres, more or less, being the _______ (here describe lands constituting the unit) ______, N.M.P.M." Should you want to discuss any of these ideas by telephone during my absence from town next week, please call Mr. Van Thompson collect.

With best regards and thanks, I am

Yours very truly,

Willis L. Lea, Jr.

4

WLL:FG Encl.

۰.

1

cc: Mr. J. R. Cole, Santa Fe

SOUTHERN UNION PRODUCTION COMPANY BURT BUILDING DALLAS, TEXAS

April 12, 1948

Air Mail

Mr. R. R. Spurrier State Geologist Oil Conservation Commission Santa Fe, New Mexico

Case 126

an (s. 130 - 1302 - 60)

🔆 APR 11 1948

១២១ នោង មុខ

e, tem his

Dear Mr. Spurrier:

As previously arranged, I am glad to enclose several copies of the form of a suggested order which may be acceptable in connection with the Kutz Canon-Fulcher Basin spacing matter. This incorporates some revision from the tentative draft previously submitted. For example, provision is now made in Section 1(c) for the continuation of offset rights.

I was prepared to write you at considerable length about the form of this order or come back out to Santa Fe for a discussion; however, it developed that Mr. Van Thompson was required to be in San Juan County during the early part of this week and I have arranged with him to drop by Santa Fe for a discussion with you before returning here.

My suggestion would be that the form of this order be reviewed by you and Governor Miles and the Commission's staff so that any questions which arise may be discussed with Mr. Thompson upon his arrival at Santa in a day or so. I am uncertain about the formal matters of heading and conclusion and call them to your attention for such adjustment as you may think advicable.

With best regards, I am

Yours very truly,

Willis L. Lea, Jr.

WLL:fr encls. cc - Mr. J. R. Cole Mr. Van Thompson

P.S. Under separate cover I am forwarding two copies of a map showing the Kutz Canon-Fulcher Basin wells and identifying the state, federal and fee lands, respectively, by distinctive colors. Please see that Geo. Graham gets a map.

BURT BUILDING DALLAS, TEXAS

April 22, 1948

Case 126

<u>Air Mail</u>

Mr. R. R. Spurrier, Secretary Oil Conservation Commission Santa Fe, New Mexico

Dear Dick:

Confirming our long-distance conversation this morning, it has been suggested, and we agree, that at the bottom of page 2 of the suggested form of order heretofore submitted, there should be deleted the words "authorized by the Commission to be" so that the phrase at the bottom of the page will be "apply to wells hereafter drilled. . . ."; moreover, that the word "granted" appearing in the third line of Section 1, page 3, should be change to "approved".

As I told you, the reason for including lands adjacent to the Byrd-Frost #1 Hargrave in this suggested form of order is the fact that this well encountered a good "kick" (using the words of Mr. Van Thompson) in the Pictured Cliff, thus clearly indicating the extension of the Pictured Cliff productive area to lands adjacent to the Hargrave well. I understand that this fact can be readily and easily established, probably with information in our possession.

Referring to the mechanics of extending the area subject to this order, it does not matter particularly to us whether the suggested procedure for automatic extensions is followed or not. It strikes us that the suggested procedure is sound and convenient and workable, that it saves time and trouble, and that it is a more modern approach to gas field extensions; however, if you prefer to follow the practice of periodic supplemental orders extending the area, that is certainly all right. We think it is important that the original territory be described, as suggested in the proposed order, sufficiently large to incorporate all possible direct and diagonal 160-acre tracts on the flanks of the develved area which offset existing wells; otherwise, the order will not accomplish its purpose. Our land description was prepared with the thought in mind that the order should as a minimum include all. the flanking 160-acre tracts on which wells might be drilled offsetting present production.

Mr. Morrell said on the telephone the other day that he was not pleased with the 750-foot provision in Section 1(c), and that he might discuss it with you. We think there is ample basis to change this to 990 feet and would, in fact, prefer to see it 990 instead of 750. The present 750-foot provision was suggested in deference to ideas expressed at and after the hearing. It is just a middle-ground approach which does not seriously affect the 160-acre spacing program. Either 750' or 990' or some intermediate figure will be satisfactory with us.

I urge you to complete consideration of this matter, discussing it with Mr. Graham and others of your staff, to the end that it may be concluded without further delay. Should there be any further questions or problems, please do not hesitate to call me collect in Dallas, Central-8010, through Saturday, or in care of the Company's offices at El Paso during the day Monday, as under those circumstances I will expect to meet with you in Santa Fe at the earliest convenient time.

Just as soon as I can I will consider the question you asked on the telephone and give you a memorandum.

With best regards, I am

Yours very truly, Willis L. Lea, Jr.

WIL:fr

cc - Mr. Van Thompson

~

April 5, 1948

CASE NO. 126, Southern Union Production Company.

MEMORANDUM:

Testimony shows that in Fulcher Basin-Kutz Canyon, San Juan County, that there was an original rock pressure of 585 pounds as of 1927 and 1928. A pressure survey in 1947 showed that the average rock pressure of gas to be 385 pounds, and it is indicated that since 1947 test the gas pressure has declined from the average of 385 pounds.

Certain wells, some of which have been drilled during recent years, are shown by chart to be below the original 585-pound pressure, but slightly above the 385-pound average of 1947. Evidence was submitted to the effect that approximately one-third of the as of the field has already been taken out.

Upon the plat or diagram submitted there are "two sinks" indicating roughly the two old fields. In these the pressure is down to about to 350 pounds. Some of the recent wells drilled showed the pressure of between 400 and 500 pounds, which is below the pressure in the Feasel Well to the northwest end of the field which has 565-pound pressure indicating that the closely drilled wells has caused pressure decline.

The petitioner offered in evidence the results of an

 $\bigcirc \bigcirc \bigcirc \bigcirc \lor \lor$

Page 2. Case No. 126.

interference test covering seven wells on a 160-acre spacing to substantiate claim that there was gas drainage across 160 acres. The test consisted of Walker No. 1, Walker No. 2, McGrath 1, 2, and 3, Kattler No. 1, and Hudson No. 2 wells. All were shut in for twelve days, then all except Walker No. 1 were put on production against a line pressure of 261 P F I. Thereafter, on the following day, the six surrounding wells were taken off the gas line and blown to the air, with the Walker No. 1 continuing to be shut in. A recording pressure chart on the wellhead of Walker No. 1, the shut in well, showed a considerable gain in pressure, explained as the normal build up. Pressures on the third and fourth days continued this build up. On the fourth day, the six surrounding wells were put back on production. On the fifth day, the pressare of Walker No. 1 Coll back below because of provious delays, thus indicating pressure interference. The average pressures dropped 1.8 pounds pressure, (not large but petitioner urges that in consideration of other reservoir factors is conclusive for a material drainage under 160 acres), The drop-back was about two pounds. Figures submitted were that the porosity of the Pictured Cliff was about 20%, estimated from about 20 core samples. The on incor calculated that under 160 acres under original pressure of 505 pounds that there was an approximate 1,878,000,000 cubic feet. The field would not be any good

Memorandum

and the

_ -

٦ }

Page 3. Case No. 126.

after the pressure goes down to 150 pounds, figured about 72% of the initial gas in place

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR GEOLOGICAL SURVEY

P. O. Box 997

July 2, 1948

OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION MANTA FE, NEW MEXICO. Roswell, New Mexico

Mr. R. R. Spurrier New Mexico Oil Conservation Commission P. O. Box 871 Santa Fe, New Mexico

Dear Dick:

With your letter of May 13 you forwarded a copy of a proposed order covering the petition of Southern Union Production Company for an order fixing 160-acre well spacing in the Kutz Canyon-Fulcher Pasin gas field and requested comments or suggestions thereon.

In my opinion the proposed order as drafted is very satisfactory and should be very helpful to maintain and encourage orderly development of the gas reserves of this field. I offer minor suggestions and changes as follows:

Paragraph D, third line, change the word "may" to "would".

Reginning at the end of the fourth line, delete the words "under present economic conditions".

Paragraph H, eighth line, change the word "will" to "may".

In Sec. 2(d), second line, change the word "a" to "the".

In the same line, change the semicolon to a comma.

It is my impression that section 2(d) would provide for a reduction in gas allowable if exceptions were granted to permit drilling on less than 160-acre drilling units.

In view of the recent formulation of the Northwest New Mexico Nomenclature Conmittee, it is assumed of course that you will use the name of that Committee in the second line of the paragraph beginning "It is further ordered", also that the definition of the Kutz Canyon-Fulcher Basin gas field will be revised to conform with the definition recommended by the said Momenclature Committee as indicated on a list recently prepared by Mr. Parnes of your office which appears complete and correct as to this ficld.

I regret that the press of other business has unduly delayed my reply to you on this matter. However, I have previously concurred in the order and discussed these particular changes in personal conferences with you on June 15. This letter will confirm those statements and may be filed with your record of the case to show the concurrence of this office in the proposed order.

1

Very truly yours,

Foster morrell

Foster Morrell, Supervisor, Oil and Gas Operations.

o onomically justifiable.

6. It is realized that some action may be necessary to protect the investment of operators who drilled wells on 160acre tracts. It is possible, however that the entire situation could best be handled by an operators committee formed by active operators in the area. Regular meetings could be held and all additional information studied and discussed. In the event of failure of each a committee to brink, reasonable spreedent smong the operators, resort could be had to legal action by the 011 Conservation Commitcian.

Yours very traly, /3/ Albert : Greer Albert : Greer

The decrease in the cost of unilling would result from improved methods and competition in drilling as more activity centers in this area.

BEFORE THE OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION OF THE STATE OF NEW MEXICO

IN THE MATTER OF A HEARING CALLED BY THE OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION OF THE STATE OF NEW MEXICO FOR THE PURPOSE OF CONSIDERING:

> CASE NO. 126 ORDER NO. 748

IN THE MATTER OF THE PETITION OF THE SOUTHERN UNION PRODUCTION COMPANY FOR AN ORDER FIXING THE SPACING OF WELLS IN THE KUTZ CANON-FULCHER BASIN GAS FIRLDS OF SAN JUAN COUNTY (AS THEY MAY BE EXTENDED) ON THE BASIS OF ONE WELL TO A DRILLING UNIT OF AP-PROXIMATELY 160 ACRES WITH SUITABLE PROVIS-IONS FOR ANY RELATED MATTERS, INCLUDING SPECIAL APPROVAL OF NONCONFORMING WELL LO-CATIONS WHERE NECESSARY.

PROPOSED ORDER OF THE COMMISSION

BY THE COMMISSION:

WHEREAS, after due notice as required by law the Commission held a public hearing in Santa Fe on February 17, 1948, to consider the petition of Southern Union Production Company for the adoption of an order fixing the spacing of wells hereafter drilled in the Kutz Canon-Fulcher Basin gas field, San Juan County, New Mexico, and related matters; and

WHEREAS, the Commission having considered the evidence adduced at such hearing, pertinent information otherwise available in the Commission's records, the statements made and viewpoints expressed by interested parties at or in connection with such hearing,

FINDS, from the evidence adduced:

A. That the Kutz Canon and Fulcher Basin gas pools are productive of natural gas from the Pictured Cliffs sandstone formation, that such pools are contiguous and from all information available to date appear to be one continuous gas producing area or pool in the Pictured Cliffs sandstone;

B. That such pool has produced natural gas for more than 15 years, during which time the average of well-head pressures has declined approximately 200 P.S.I. gauge.

C. That by reason of rules of this Commission previously applicable to the pool, of the general practices of certain operators in the area and of policies of the U. S. Geological Survey, a fairly uniform spacing of one well to 160 acres has heretofore prevailed throughout most of the pool;

D. That one well will, in view of present evidence, economically and effectively drain the recoverable gas from at heast 160 acres of the pool and, accordingly, that more dense spacing in the pool may be conducive to waste and will unnecessarily increase the costs of development and production under present economic conditions;

E. That for wells hereafter drilled, a general spacing pattern of one centrally located well on a unit of 160 acres, substantially in the shape of a square, is required to protect the equities of those having interests in wells heretofore drilled on 160-acre tracts, for which general spacing pattern the pooling of properties should be encouraged when necessary;

F. That the gas productive area of the pool is likely to be substantially more extensive than the presently developed partion thereof; G. That waste will result in the drilling of wells in the pool, unless special rules and regulations are adopted for the prevention thereof; and

H. That, while the Kutz Canon-Fulcher Basin ras field has been commercially productive for more than 15 years, it has not been subject to cooperative action representative of the interest of all the operators or leaseholders within the area during that period. In addition, properties, holdings and/or leases of an undetermined number of small landowners or leaseholders, whose total acreage is either less than 160 acres or includes portions of 160-acre tracts, still exist within the pool boundaries, as herein defined. Furthermore, the number of such holdings will increase as the pool boundaries are extended by subsequent drilling. In recognition of these facts, the Commission hereby serves notice that in order to equally protect the interest of all property owners and leaseholders within the Kutz Canon-Fulcher Basin pool, exception to the following rules will be granted in cases where it can be demonstrated, by petition and hearing, as provided by law, that compliance would cause undue hardship, loss, or expense.

THEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED that, effective on the date of this order, the following rules and regulations shall apply to wells hereafter drilled or completed or recompleted to the Pictured Cliff pool in the Kutz Canon-Fulcher Easin area, defined below, in addition to the Commission's applicable rules, regulations and orders heretofore or hereafter adopted to the extent not in conflict herewith:

Section 1. No well shall be drilled or completed or recompleted, and no Notice of Intention to Drill or drilling permit shall be approved, unless

- (a) such well be located on a designated drilling unit of not less than one hundred sixty (160) acres of land, more or less, according to legal subdivisions of the United States Land Surveys, in which unit all the interests are consolidated by pooling agreement or otherwise and on which no other well is completed, or approved for completion, in the pool;
- (b) such drilling unit be in the shape of a square except for normal variations in legal subdivisions of the United States Lands Surveys; and
- (c) such well be located on its drilling unit at a distance from the unit boundaries of not less than nine hundred ninety feet (990); provided, if such proposed new well is to be an offset to any then producing gas well completed in the pool, or the drilling of which was authorized, prior to the effective date of this order, located on an adjoining unit in which the interests are not identical with those in the unit proposed to be drilled, such proposed well may be located and drilled offsetting the existing well and as close to the common unit boundary line as the well to be so offset.

Section 2. Any provision herein to the contrary notwithstanding, the Commission may, and in proper cases will, on petition or on its own notion, by order entered after notice and hearing to the extent required by taw, grant exceptions and permit drilling locations to become effective, thereby authorizing the drilling or completion of wells in the pool not conforming to the requirements of Section 1 above if the Condition shell find that the property sought to be drilled would be deprived of an apportunity to produce gas from the pool in the absence of such exception, and shall close find one or more of the following conditions to exist:

> (a) that consolidation or pooling of the property sought to be drilled with necessary adjoining land, notwithstanding diligent efforts made in good faith, is impossible or impractical;

- (b) that the property sought to be drilled is located within a then developed portion of the pool and its non-conforming size or shape is due to the adjoining developed properties in the pool;
- (c) that because of the nature of the terrain, location of the proposed well at a lesser distance from one of the outer boundaries of its drilling unit should be permitted; or
- (d) that by reason of the location of the property to be drilled along the southwest or northeast flank of a developed portion of the area; it appears improbable that gas can be produced in paying quantities if the well conforms to Section 1, in which case the Commission may modify the requirements of Section 1 as to such well to the extent it deems necessary;

or, irrespective of such findings, if the Commission shall find that by reason of all circumstances an exception is proper in the prevention of waste, or undue drainage between properties, or otherwise in the exercise by the Commission of its jurisdiction over the spacing of wells or its other powers conferred by law, express or implied.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, in accordance with recommendations of the New Mexico Nomenclature Commendations approved and adopted by this Commission, the Pictured Cliff gas producing pool in the Kutz Canon-Fulcher Basin area, to which this order applies, is defined to include the following described land in San Juan County, New Mexico:

Township 27 North,	
Sec. 4	All
Sec. 3	₩/2
	D
Township 28 North,	Range 10 West
Sec. 15 Sec. 16	SW/4
Sec. 10 Sec. 17	s/2 5w/4, w/2
	SW/4, W/2
Secs. 13,19 20,21	All
20,21	ALL
Township 28 North,	Range 10 West
Sec. 22	W/2
Sec. 27	NW/4
Sec. 28,29	All
Sec. 30	N/2
Sec. 32,33	All
Township 28 North,	Range 11 West
Secs. 10,11,12,13 14,15 and 24	
14,15 and 24	All
Sec. 22	1.26/4
Sec. 23	2.12 5.12
Township 29 North,	Panca 11 Mart
Sec. 6	5%/4
	3/2
380• 7 380• 17	3/2 51
3003. 18,19,20	
21	ALL
Jec. 27	3/2
Secs. 28,29 & 30	411
300, 32	single.
Sec. 33.34	413.
Sec. 33,34 Sec. 35	\$/2
commonly 29 Lorda,	nanço 12 Gest
Township 2) north, Secs. 1,2, & 3	XU
Sec. 4	ne/s
SLeffer, ausel	
13, & 34	71) 1
Sec. 15	1/2
Jous, 23 2 24,	AD

Township 30 North,	
Jues. 28,29,30,32	
33,34	A11
Sec. 35	W/2,SE/4
Sec. 36	SW/4

All additional lands located within one-half (1/2) mile of any part of a drilling unit established hereunder which includes land in the pool as defined or as it may be extended shall conform to these rules and regulations; provided, however, that such pool shall in no event be automatically extended so as to include any lands now or hereafter included by the Commission in some other producing area formally designated as an oil or gas pool in the Pictured Cliffs, provided, further, by order of this Commission the pool may be redesignated from time to time so as to embrace other lands in the vicinity which are believed, on the basis of additional developments, to be capable of producing gas from the Kutz Canon-Fulcher Basin pool, whether or not such other lands shall have been at one time included in another designated field or pool producing from the Pictured Cliffs.

Entered and adopted by the Oil Conservation Commission this 14 day of May, 1943.

STATE OF NEW MEXICO OIL CONSERVATION COMPLISSION

CHAIRMAN

MEMBER

UR RS SECRETARY

Company Mountain Oil and June 22,1948

Case 126

State Oil Conservation Commission Santa Fe, New Mexico

Dear Sir:

I would like to state the opinion of this Company on the petition of Southern Union Gas Co. of 160 acre spacing in the Fulcher Kutz Canyon gas field were we have oil gas lease holdings and have laid plans for developement of this property, and now have one well drilling.

It is this companys opinion that approval of this petition would greatly hinder operations of the Independent and small operator for the development of gas which is badly needeà thoughout the country.And on a standpoint of conservation of the States natural resoures the fourty acre spacing has proved very satisfactory. I remain

Very truly yours David L. Mille President

THE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

Lingen

JUN 24 **194**8

نراجا

cm/D.:

OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO

19 May 1948

dr. Willis L. Lea, Jr. Attorney At Law Burt Suilding Dallas 1, Texas

Dear Willis:

 \mathbb{C}

 \mathbb{P}

Y

1

-

Thank you very much for your letter of LA May. Your work and opinions are very much appreciated.

Hope the Order for Case 126 is reasonable in your opinion.

Sincerely

BRS:bsp

WILLIS L. LEA, JR. ATTORNEY AT LAW BURT BUILDING DALLAS I, TEXAS

May 14, 1948

Mr. R. R. Spurrier, State Geologist Oil Conservation Commission Santa Fe, New Mexico

Dear Dick:

My absence from Dallas has prevented earlier attention to your request for my views on the propriety under your statutes of holding Oil Conservation Commission hearings with only one member of the Commission present. I understand that your inquiry was raised because of the absence or expected absence of one or two members of the Commission and you have in mind that ultimately at least two (2) members of the Commission would concur, after review of the record, in any order which might be issued.

I have given the question considerable study and have, in addition, asked one of the men in my office, Robert M. Martin, to go into your question more deeply than I have done. It is unfortunate that your statute does not make express provision for the trial examiner procedure since that would clearly meet your requirements at this time.

For the reasons indicated below I cannot be convinced that it is safe for you to proceed with the conduct of hearings unless at least two (2) members of the Commission are, in fact, present and acting. While it is by no means clear that procedure with a one-man hearing and a two-man order is improper, I cannot give you an opinion that it is good procedure and, therefore, must advise against it.

The following provisions of your statute are significant:

"Two (2) members of the Commission shall constitute a quorum for all purposes." (Emphasis supplied.) Sec. 69-204.

"The Commission, or any member thereof, is hereby empowered to subpoend witnesses, to require their attendance and giving of testimony before it, and to require the production of books, papers or records in any proceeding before the Commission." (Emphasis supplied.) Sec. 69-207. "Included in the power given to the Commission is the authority: . . . to hold hearings . . . " Sec. 69-211.

It is worthy of notice that, while the Legislature made express provision that one member of the Commission might administer oaths or might subpoena witnesses for giving testimony before the Commission, no provision is made for trial examiner procedure, and authority therefor must be found, if at all, in implications of the Act.

I realize there is, perhaps, as much argument in favor of propriety of the trial examiner procedure as there is opposed to it. For example, in Sec. 69.206 we find "The Commission shall prescribe its rules of order or of procedure in hearing or other proceedings before it under this Act", from which it may be ably contended that the Commission has authority to set up the trial examiner procedure by regulation. Sec. 69.210 gives support to such contention, and Sec. 69.221 provides that a hearing may be held "at such time, place and manner as may be prescribed by the Commission." While I believe the term "manner" must mean a manner consistent with statutory authorization, I, nevertheless, see the possibility that your courts might find the trial examiner procedure proper if expressly authorized by Commission regulation adopted after notice and hearing before a majority Commission. My associate here is inclined to the contrary view, and, as noted above, I definitely think it unsafe.

While the trial examiner procedure is widely used, I know of no instance of its use in the absence of express legislative sanction. For example, in my own experience the trial examiner procedure is authorized by express statute in the Public Utility Holding Company Act (SEC), in the Federal Power Act and Natural Gas Act (FPC), in the Texas Railroad Commission statutes, in the National Labor Relations Act and in various workmen's compensation statutes, for example, Arizona, Utah and Oklahoma. When so authorized, the trial examiner may be either a member of the Commission itself or an agent appointed by the Commission to preside at the hearing. The doubts in my mind are not dispelled by the cases which hold that referees or trial examiners act in a quasi judicial capacity, not in a purely ministerial function. I will not burden you with the cases, although I will be glad to supply citations if you are interested in going deeper into the question.

I am sorry this investigation did not result in more useful information for you, but it just seems to me that the court could very well decide for or against trial examiner procedure, and, therefore, it is not a safe course in the present state of your statutes.

With best regards, I am

/ very truly

ML:fr

SOUTHERN UNION PRODUCTION COMPANY BURT BUILDING DALLAS, TEXAS

1 = 1-

April 6, 1948

Gindenses

Mr. R. R. Spurrier, Secretary New Mexico Oil Conservation Commission Santa Fe, New Mexico

Dear Mr. Spurrier:

Having had an opportunity to review the stenographic transcript of our February 17 hearing, I wanted to call to your attention one or two minor discrepancies.

At page 8 in the center of the page Exhibit 4 should consist of "the chart and data accompanying Mr. Nichols' letter. . .". I notice that the letter is made a part of the transcript proper and to complete the record both the accompanying chart and data should be attached as Exhibit 4.

At page 10 the first sentence appearing below the appended core analysis information should be amended by deleting the word "to" so as to make the sentence read "From the data the average porosity is found to be 20%."

If you concur in these corrections, please advise me so that I may make them on my copy of the record. At the same time please call to my attention any other discrepancies which you observed.

Mr. Thompson has now returned to Dallas and we are trying to get together during the day with respect to revision of the suggested form of order. In any case, we will expedite our work and let you hear from us as promptly as possible.

I appreciate the very satisfactory conference we had in your office last week and trust that an appropriate order can be promptly entered.

With best regards and thanks, I am

L. Lea, Jr.

WLL:fr cc - Mr. George Graham BUFORD THE OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION SANTA FE, NEW MUXICO

State of New Mexico to:

All named parties in the following case, and notice to the public:

CASE NO. 126

In the matter of the petition of Southern Union Production Company for an order fixing the spacing of wells in the Kuts Canon and Fulcher Basin gas fields of San Juan County (as they may be extended) on the basis of one well to a drilling unit of approximately 160 acres with suitable provisions for any related matters including special approval of unorthodox well locations where necessary.

BY MR. WILLIS LEA, Attorney for Southern Union Production Company.

If the Commission please, for the Petitioner we have "illis Les of Dallas and Manuel Sanches of Santa Fe.

This is a petition of the Southern Union Production Company for an order of the Commission to fix a spacing program in Kutz Canon and Fulcher Besin. We have referred to them as two fields and it may be two fields, however, more recent drilling has developed the fact that the fields are contiguous. I believe our evidence will indicate, for practical purposes at least, the fields are one.

This problem of spacing has been handled rather satisfactorily heretofore because of several well known facts. During the war the P. A. W. had a spacing program of 160 acres, and this Commission conformed to it. Prior to that the activity in the area did not seem to require any particular spacing. Shortly after the war the 160 acre rule of this Commission applicable to that area was rescinded, with the result that the general spacing rule which I believe is 40 acres, with wells to be drilled 330 feet from lease boundary lines, has prevailed. This is an economic problem. We all know in a given reservoir there is only so much gas and only so much can be commercially extracted. This field is 20 years old, the first well was drilled in 1929; it has developed sometimes gradually and sometimes rapidly. The facts the Southern Union Production Company has accumulated over the years as one of the oldest operators are available to us. The Company has made its own study of spacing and what is the proper spacing in that area. This is no oil area unless you want to call the oil turned up in the so-called Farmington sories.

It may be one or more of the wells might connercially produce oil from the Farmington. In fact, I know of no well that is maineing oil in this immediate area. We have a gas problem. We recently employed Mr. Earl Michols of Dellas to test our figures and reach his own conclusions; for the benefit of the Commission and others interested as to what is a proper souching unit for that field. We conclusions go not only to the area which a well will drain, but also go to the question of the computer of drilling on the 160 acres as opposed to some realled spacing units. I don't think we have a pro-ration problem; it is not our view to do that. We have been connected with a plue line. The read comes to Santa Pe and Albuquerque. If there are any exceptions I don't believe I have of the connection in the process of being made. As we all know, gas to what and measuring so from other areas; some of it comes for Santa Pe and Measuring so from other areas; acres for Santa Pe and Measuring so from other areas; acres for Santa Pe and Measuring so from other areas; acres for Santa Pe and Measuring so from other areas; acres for Santa Pe and Measuring so from other areas; acres for Santa Pe and Measuring so from (After being duly sworn Mr. Farl Nichols and Mr. Van Thompson testified as follows)

MR, LEA:

Mr. Nichols, state your name for the record.

MR. NICHOLS:

Earl Michols.

Q. You live in Dallas, Texas?

A. That is right.

Q. What is your profession?

A. Petroleum Engineer.

Q. You are actively engaged in that profession at the present time?

That is right, consultant.

Q. For how long?

A. As consultant or petroleum engineer?

Q. Petrolaum angineer?

A. Since the first of 1938 - about 10 years.

Q. What has been the nature of your experience since 1938?

A. I spent about three years with Carter Oil Company in Oklahoma, during that time they put me through the training program gasoline plant work, research work in chemical laboratory, field engineering, office and inventory courses - a little bit of everything they felt a Petroleum Engineer should have. After I left Carter I worked for Shillips in their research department for a short while; then with Care Laboratories, Inc., in Dallas. I worked for them about 6g years as manager of the reservoir fluid analysis department.

Q. You have had experience in the study of reservoir conditions?

A. Primarily that has been the biggest majority of my work.

Q. Included the study of reserves and perosity?

A. That is right.

Q. What is your educational background?

A. I received my degree from Texas Christian University, major in chysics and math, a small amount of graduate work in physics from the Mashington University in St. Louis.

Q. Have you been employed by Couthern Union Production Company to make a study of statistics and conditions applicable to Kutz Canon-Fulcher Basin?

A. That is right.

Q. To this the first time you have been exployed by Southern Union Production Company? A. That is right.

Q. Were the Company's data made available to you in so far as they apply to these fields?

A. Yes, they gave me all their data.

Q. Did you find those data c mplete or not for your purpose in making the required study?

A. Yes.

Q. How many wells located in these areas?

A. Approximately 77.

Q. Do you know when the first well was drilled?

A. I don't have that information.

MR. VAN THOMPSON:

The first well was completed in 1927 or 1928.

Q. What would you say to have been the initial field pressure in that area?

MR. NICHOLS:

In the order of 585 pounds, might be some variation one way or the other.

Q. 585 pounds Virgin Rock Pressure?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. From your study of the present conditions of that area what do you find to be the arithmetical average of pressures presently prevailing in wells completed in that area?

A. A lot of the work was based upon the last pressure survey of April 1947. The arithmetic average pressure at that time was 385 pounds.

Q. As opposed to 585 pounds originally?

A. That is right.

Q. Would you state whether or not the pressure is likely to have declined under 385 pounds since the last test in April of 1947?

A. I think it is reasonable to assume that it would have - yes.

Q. In connection with these pressures, have you prepared a chart showing graphically the initial field pressure of approximately 585 counds as compared with the average prevailing pressures in this field by years and also showing the initial vell-head pressures of certain wells more recently completed in that area?

A. I have.

Ē

Q. Is this the study you refer to? (Presented charts)

A. X90, 10 18.

9. Mill you bloase state what that means for the benefit of the record?

A. This particular compilation of data is divided into two areas, Kutz Canon and Fulcher Basin. In the Kutz Canon field the average arithmetic pressure in the wells producing at any given time has been plotted versus the time in years, that is the lower broken line near the middle or bottom of the page. The upper dotted line is a flat line showing approximately the initial pressure of the field. Between these two lines some of the wells have been drilled later in the life of the field. Some of them have been drilled during the last year, and the pressure i, those wells is spotted in the proper position. The pressure on those wells does not lie near the 585 pound but between the 585 pound line and the average field pressure. A line has been drawn through these new wells representing an average of their pressures.

Q. Is it approximately one-half way between?

A. Yes. Not any individual well, but groups of wells by average, and it lies approximately one-half way between. There is a definite indication that in those areas where these wells have been drilled there had been pressure decline from the initial pressure, indicating you had pressure reduction out there previous to those wells having been drilled. The same would apply to Fulcher Basin.

Q. What is the conclusion or conclusions to be drawn from this type of study?

A. You have undoubtedly had, if the initial field pressure over the area is 585 pounds, and if you have drilled in adjacent areas since that time it is pretty conclusive you have had pressure decline in those areas. If you had pressure decline you have had removal of gas out of there.

Q. What does it mean with respect to the quantity of gas ultimately to be recovered from one of the wells more recently drilled?

A. The quantity of gas existing in a given unit of the reservoir is proportional to pressure existing on that gas. Whatever your pressure might be the quantity of gas you will recover is proportionate to the pressure of the gas existing. You would expect less gas from these wells drilled in lower pressure areas.

Q. If you drill a well with initial rock pressure of 400 pounds you could compute the quantity of gas which might be ultimately recovered from that well as opposed to the quantity expected to be recovered from a well having approximately the 585 pound virgin field pressure?

A. You could,

Q. In any event, to the extent that your initial rock pressure in any well is below the initial field pressure of 585 pounds, the quantity of gas to be recovered is reduced?

A. That is right.

Q. Would it be a fair question to ask you if you could a proximate by a fraction of the total reserves recoverable from a given spacing unit that will not be recovered because of the lower pressure from the recently drilled wells?

A. If the average pressure is 385 pounds and the initial 585 pounds you would have a satio of 400 to 600 pounds absolute, and would have approximately 1/3 of your gas having already been produced.

Q. That is 1/3 of the gas that originally underlay a drilling unit that has been taken out by drilling not on that unit but on adjacent units?

A. That is right.

Q. Have you prepared, Mr. Michols, what I will refer to as pressure contour map, showing in general terms at least, the prevailing well-head pressures in this field?

A. That is right.

Q. If the Commission please, may we have identified as Petitioner's Exhibits 1 and 2 the schedules concerning which Mr. Nichols has just testified to?

COMMISSIONFR MILES:

You may.

Q. We will offer them in evidence at a later time.

May we have similarly identified as Petitioner's Exhibit No. 3 the map I will refer to as a pressure contour map, dated January 7, 1948?

COMMISSION R MILES:

You may.

Q. Mr. Michols, I hand you this map identified as Petitioner's Exhibit No. 3, and aks you to explain the mothod of its preparation and give the conclusions to be drawn from it.

A. On this particular map, I took the pressures existing in April of 1947 and spotted them in their proper geographical location, adjacent to the well location. Then drawing lines of equal pres sures in their proper place between these pressure points, we get what we call a pressure contour map showing the overall pressure picture of the area. The outer line is the 575 pound contour. These are in 25 pound intervals so the innermost contour is the 375 pound contour. The innermost further down on the map is the 350 pound contour. There are two "sinks", and it is rather apparent those lie roughly in the center of the two old fields, with the intervening area having remained undrilled for sometime, It is normal you would expect in the older areas to have larger pressure declines. You will notice also in the new intervening area between the two sinks. That sink is quite likely due to the influence of production from the two older areas. Another sink is forming in the upper northwest area; that is due to the total withdrawals from that area being proportionately large due to the small well spacing units.

Q. Is it not a fact that the area on the northwest is a newer developed area?

A. I believe that is right,

Q. Do you have the dates on which those wells were drilled?

A. Yes, sir. Paggoner #1, June 1946, Paggoner #2, September 1947. Coop #1 September 1946. Coop #3, October 1947. Wyper #2 January 1947.

Q. All fairly recent drilling?

A. That is right.

1

Q. What can you say with respect to the pressure in that area surrounding those wells?

A. You have pressures existing all the way from 475 pounds to 500 pounds, which is 100 pounds or so lower than the initial field pressure. It looks like the pressure declino there is rather rapid in that particular area.

Q. Are those wells more or less densely spaced than the wells further to the south?

A. I think by observation they are more closely spaced.

Q. Any comparison between the pressure deslines in these more densely spaced wells in comparison with the wells to the south which appear to be drilled on the 160 acre unit?

MR. THOMPSON:

That last record is in April 1947, and the majority of them have completed since that time.

MR. MICHOLS:

Your question could be tied back to withdrauals in any area regardless of the wells. Your total withdrawals on an area basis would give you an indication.

Q. Referring to this well in the extreme southeast portion of the field, the Feasel #1, what is its original rock pressure?

A. 565 pounds. Some 20 pounds lower than the initial of the field.

Q. Is it very close to any other well drilled in the area?

A. No it isn't.

Q. In other words, the Feasel well was drilled some distance from the other wells and you found initial pressure within 20 pounds of the original virgin rock pressure?

A. That is right.

Q. Will you compare that to some wells more recently drilled?

A. The wells in the center section, drilled a year or so ago, some of the Mangum wells, had pressures in April existing between the 425 pound and 450 pounds contour.

Q. Those wore initial pressures?

A. Those were pressures existing in April 1947. The Mangum #1 was completed in February 1947, and the initial pressure was 492 pounds, No. 2 was completed in June 1947 at 454 pounds, No. 3 was completed in July 1947 at 440 pounds.

Q. Now do you account for the fact that those wells had lower initial pressaure than the Feasel No. 1 well?

A. The drainage from these two adjacent areas secningly had a great offect on this pressure.

Q. That is because production from adjacent wells previously drilled had so reduced the pressure in that visinity that in the main portion of the field you find here initial pressures?

A. fint is slitt.

Q. Anything also in particular to be said a but this map?

A. I don't balieve so.

Q. Mr. Nichols, state whether or not the Company caused to be made an interference test at your suggestion on six or seven wells drilled in this area with a spacing unit of 160 acres for each well?

A. They did.

Q. Will you state in general terms how the interference test was conducted and what assumptions were necessary and what was found as a result of the interference test?

A. I believe my letter to Mr. Thompson dated February 5, 1948 will explain that.

(Letter as follows)

"EARL A NICHOLS Consulting Petroleum Engineer 2000 Kidwell Street Dallas, Texas T3-4422

February 5, 1948

Mr. Van Thompson Southern Union Gas Co. Burt Building Dallas, Texas

Dear Mr. Thompson:

"I have received the charts giving the results of the recommended field tests. These tests were performed on the Kutz Canyon -Fulcher Basin Field in order to attempt to establish a positive, mechanical answer as to whether pressure interference exists across 160 acre tracts in the above mentioned field. It was our belief that should such pressure interference exist between wells now drilled on approximately 160 acre spacing, one could accordingly feel that drainage across 160 acres tracts existed.

"Seven wells whose approximate spacing are 160 acres per well were chosen. They were the SUP Malker #1, SUP Walker #2, SUP Mc Grath #1, SUP Mc Grath #2, SUP McGrath #3, SUP Kattler #1, and the SUP Hudson #2 wells. These wells were shut in at noon January 9, 1948 and remained shut in until 8:30 A.M. January 12, 1948. At this time all of the wells except the Walker # 1 were put on production against a line pressure of 261 to 270 P.S.I. ga. At 9:00 A.M. on January 13th, the currounding wells were taken off of the line and blown to the air, the Malker #1 still remaining shut in. A recording pressure chart on the well head of the Valker # 1 well during this test reveals the attached tabulated and graphical recults.

"It is to be noticed that due to the normal eyels of attropherie temperature shange during a 24 hour period, the temperature effect on the recording instrument shows a distinctive 24 hour cycle change on the recorded pressures. To help clarify this effect, the pressures were plotted versus time of day and this graph is included. It will be noticed that, irregardless of these temperature effects, the overall curve of pressures for the second day lie considerably above the curve of the pressures for the first day of the shot in period. This is explained, of course, as using the normal build up of pressure due to the well being shot in. Likewise, the curves of pressure due to the well being shot in. Likewise, the curves of pressure for the 3rd and Ath days lie respectively higher each day, showing this core build up. The curves of wells their effect on build wor for the source pathen noticed that the curve of pressures for the 5th day falls back below those of the 4th day, very definitely indicating pressure interference had reached the Walker # 1 from the outlying wells.

"In order to try to evaluate the magnitude of this pressure drop, an arithmetic average of the pressures the last 21 hours of the tests give a value of 401, 8 P.S.I. gauge. An arithmetic average of the pressures during the same hours of the preceding day gave 403.6 P.S.I. gauge. This is a 1.8 pound drop. This may not seem like a large drop, but after consideraing all of the reservoir factors involved, this is felt to be as large a pressure drop as one might expect.

"It is my feeling that these tests have conclusively shown pressure interference between wells now drilled on a 160 acre pattern. It is further my feeling that since pressure draw down can be experienced between such wells, drainage of reservoir material across 160 acre tracts exists under such conditions.

"If there are any points discussed on which you would like further comment, please contact zs.

Very truly yours, /s/ Earl A. Nichols

Earl A. Nichols

EAN/1y"

The Chart accompanying Mr. Nichols' letter was marked for identification as Petitioner's Exhibit #4.

MR. LEA:

Lets try to identify where these wells are located.

MR. THOMPSON:

Sections 2 and 3, Township 29; Section 34, Township 30, each in Range 12 W.

Q. Identify for us on this map the test well - Walker No. 1, outlining the spacing unit of Walker #1.

A. NE/4 Section 3, 29 N, 12 W.

Q. Vill you identify for us the surrounding units on which the other six wells are located?

A. Walker #2, McGrath #3, McGrath #1, Kattler #1, Hudson #2, Southern Union Production McGrath #2.

Q. Your test well is located right in the middle of these other units?

4. That is right.

C. Your pressures were taken on the Malker No. 1 Well?

A. MR. MICHOLS:

Yes, sir, those adjacent wells had been shut in. The pressures throughout that whole period of time were measured on the Walker Well.

Q. That is, I believe, without exception 160 acre spacing units with the well located in approximate center of the spacing unit? The fourth day is the red line?

A. That is right. The fifth day fell below the fourth day and in certain periods below the third day. The pressure during the last hour was below the third and fourth day pressures.

Q. Yet during this entire time the Walker No. 1 was shut in, the outlying wells were being produced during the last how many hours of the test?

A. Approximately 25 hours of the test.

Q. From the time the outlying wells were open to the sir, how long did it take the pressure decline to be noted in the centrally located test well?

A. The remaining wells were put on the line at 8:30 a.m., January 12th at 9:00 o'clock a.m., January 13th twenty five hours later, they were taken off and put on the air, and there was approximately 24 hours remaining in this test.

Q. You regard the result of this interference test as being significant?

A. I do.

Q. Does it not indicate that not only did the outlying wells pull down their own pressures on 160 acre units - but that the outlying production also pulled down the pressure on the centrally located test well?

A. That is right.

Q. Is not each of those wells located on a regular 160 acre tract?

A. That is right.

Q. It is not noteworthy that instead of continuing to build up the test well pressure not only ceased to build up but in fact declined?

A. That is right. I think it might be expected that the well would have continued to build up for some time longer, how long I don't want to say. Might be a day or a week.

MR. SPURRIER:

How much did it drop back?

A. About 2 pounds. That is the arithmetical average in the last 21 hours.

MR. LEA:

1

. ·

Looking at this chart I find at the beginning of the first day a pressure of approximately 381 pounds on Walker #1.

A. It varies by the hour, it started at 381 pounds.

Q. At the same hour of the second day the well had built up to 398 pounds.

A. That is right.

Q. Approximately 17 pounds build up.

That is right.

Q. The same hour the next day it had built up to approximately AO3 bounds.

A. Right.

Q. At the care hour the fourth day the build up was approximately AOT pounds,

A. Right.

Q. At the same hour the fifth day I find a very noticeable pressure interference had been commenced.

A. That is right. It was at that hour of the fifth day that the interference began to show up. There was undoubtedly some effect after the fifth day.

Q. From the data available, has it been possible for you to compute the total gross number of cubic feet of gas which should be expected to be in the reservoir under 160 acres of land?

A. Yes, it has been. There are certain assumptions one frequently has to use. An attempt was made to calculate the actual reservoir gas in place from the available reservoir data.

We had one set of core analysis data on the Cozzens #2 well. This is certainly a minimum amount of core analysis.

والمراجع المراجع

. 41 · 20 2

Sample _Number	Permeability Millidarcys	Porosity Fer Cent	
1	98	18.3	
2	92	16.7	
3	74	23.3	
4	90	18.6	
4 5 6	102	14.3	be 20%. The connate
6	10	9.8	rity of reservoirs you have
7	51	12.3	you have a film of water
8	83	9.6	stone you have some
9	59	17.5	usually referred to as
10	5.5	8.1	ir to reservoir; the
11	18	20.5	figure. Some reser-
12	16	19.3	•
13	8.6	19.5	feet used. It varies
14	10	18.3	ome that have 10, 12
15	18	17.7	(about 50 wells) gives
16	11	16.3	
17	18	19.1	
18	15	10.3	
19	44	15.5	
20	17	18.5	part of the gross sand
21	50	19.2	ed. The deviation
22	95	12.3	lifying some of the
23	118	131	; is nothing more than
24	340	11.1	ldeal gas laws. All
25	423	19.5	
26	160	16 3	itual que te place
27	6.5	61	ptual gas in place
28	15	18.5	ands, initially, on su.ft. of gas at
standard conditions	existed in 195 m	ren or one	reservoir initially.

That is the total gas in place. Below a certain pressure this field cannot be operated economically. We set it at 150 pounds. The net gas that can be taken from the reservoir between 535 bounds and 150 pounds is 1,361,000,000, or about 72% of the initial gas in place.

MR, CASMYLL SILVER - Florence Company:

Vould you consider all of those permeabilities as being within the effective pay?

ole pressure inter-

h day that the ly some effect

ou to compute the total ted to be in the reser-

ns one frequently actual reservoir

18 #2 well. This

From the data to the average porosity is found to be 20%. The connate water is estimated to be 20%. In the great majority of reservoirs you have water existing in the reservoir itself - ih sand you have a film of water existing in and around the sand grains. In limestone you have some water existing around the lime itself. This is usually referred to as connate water - that value can vary from reservoir to reservoir; the value of 20% here used is a rather conservative figure. Some reservoirs have less and some have considerably more connate water. An average effective thickness of pay section of 40 feet used. It varies from well to well - some more than 100 feet to some that have 10, 12 and 13 feet; an average of the majority of wells (about 50 wells) gives a figure of 40 feet effective pay.

Q. You refer to the effective thickness.

A. That is right. Effective thickness is that part of the gross sand which has porosity, permeability and gas saturated. The deviation factor has been set at 9/10 as a matter of simplifying some of the calculations - to explain a little further, that is nothing more than the amount this particular gas varies from the ideal gas laws. All natural gases deviate some from the ideal laws.

From these data a calculation was made of the actual gas in place under the initial pressure conditions of 585 pounds, initially, on a 160 acre block. Approximately 1,878,000,000 cu.ft. of gas at standard conditions existed in 160 acres of the reserveir initially.

That is the total gas in place. Below a contain pressure this field cannot be operated economically. We set it at 150 pounds. The net gas that can be taken from the reservoir between 585 pounds and 150 pounds is 1,361,000,000, or about 72% of the initial gas in place.

MR. CASHFLL SILVER - Flore 200 Company:

Would you consider all of those permerbilities as being within the effective pay?

MR. NICHOLSI

there was no consideration made as to the permeability in determining the effective pay. I presume you are referring to the thickness data. It was taken from the various drilling logs available and one or two electric logs were taken into consideration.

The amount of gas - net gas you might expect to recover between 585 pounds and 150 pounds, multiplied by 5¢ per thousand cu.ft. and allowing for State taxes, royalty and production tax brings the net down to about 845 which would give gross income irregardless of time of about *56,000 per 160 acre block. That does not give any consideration to operating excense or the present worth of a dollar. A lot of these dollars are going to be obtained a number of years hence. This is simply the gross income minus royalty and tax. The cost of drilling wells would be roughly \$16,000 per well varying from person to person. That would allow a ratio of dollars returned on your investment of about 3[†] to 1.

If you will take 160 acres at the present pressure average of the field of 385 pounds. The ultimate total income to be recovered over the years would be \$30,000 after deducting royalty and taxes, but without giving any effect to operating expenses or other factors.

MR. SILVER:

That is assuming initial well-head pressure of 385 pounds would give you a ratio of about 1.9?

A. Yes - it would give you a ratio of about 1.9 to 1. If we look at it as a 40 nere drilling unit and calculate the ultimate returns you might expect in the order of \$14,000 with the initial pressure of 585 pounds. If the well cost you \$16,000 you would be in the red to begin with. If your well was drilled in an area with 385 pound pressure your total revenue would be in the order of \$7,500 and your well would still cost \$16,000.

MR. LEA:

1

Mr. Nichols, would you care to express an opinion from the studies made and data reviewed - whether or not one well drilled on 160 acres at approximately the center could be reasonabley expected to drain in this field more or less than 160 acres or exactly 160 acres.

A. I feel the material we have looked at here has shown that the drainage from one well is adequate for a 160 acre block. You will be able to drain a 160 acre block with one well.

Q. Are there any instances where the gas produced from one of the older wells in the field exceeds the field exceeds the calculated quantity of gas initially in place under 160 acres.

A. There are several wells where total production to date has already either exceeded or been very close to the 1,878,000,000 cu, 2%, of gas in 160 acres. The Browning and Stewart No. A well has produced over 2 billion cubic feet; that well still has 305 bounds of pressure and will undoubtedly produce still some gas.

MR, ENGLISH:

the ouns that wall?

MR. THEMPSON:

No do now - Southern Union recently bought it from decoming and Stewart.

MH. N'ICHOLS:

Angels Peak, the 9-B and 10-B - between the two of them there has been 2,600,000,000 cubic feet of gas in 160 acres, and one-half of this is 1,300,000,000 each, which is approaching the 1,878,000,000. Summit #1 has produced 17 billion and the Summit #2 has produced 1-1/10 billion. The Cornell wells 3 and 4 have together produced nearly 17 billion, one half of which for each well is 7/10 billion with 373 pounds pressure remaining.

MR. ENGLISH:

Where you are drawing more gas off one well, would that make a difference in your pressure? Your pressure would be lower than where you did not have to draw as much gas?

A. Yes, especially if you did not have any gas from other areas to help re-build your pressure. Those pressure sinks had been influenced from some adjacent areas. This is indicated by the pressure build-up. There have been times when some areas have been shut in and have had a considerable build up, indicating you have had pressure build-up from these outlying areas.

MR. LEA:

In making assumptions necessary to compute the total reserves of gas under the 160 acre tract you have taken such data as was available?

A. That is right.

Q. Where assumptions had to be made were you on the long side or on the low side in making your estimate.

A. I feel in all these estimates we have been optimistic in making the necessary assumptions for computing reserves.

(EXAMINATION OF MR. VAN THOMPSON)

MR. LEA:

. 1

Your name is Van Thompson and you live in Dallas?

MR. THOMPSON:

Yes, sir.

Q. You are employed by the Southern Union Gas Company and the Southern Union Production Company?

A. That is right.

Q. How long have you worked for Southern Union?

A. Since 1930.

Q. What is your present capacity?

A. I am Chief Engineer of the Company in charge of production for all properties.

9. Are you familiar with the gas situation in Kutz Canon and Fulcher Basin?

A. I have been personally familiar with it since 1932.

Q. Is it, at the present time, under your personal supervision?
A. Yes, sir.

Q. Are you familiar with the statistics and data in the way of gas production, open flow capacity, pressures, etc.?

A. That is right - our Company has accumulated this information by years since the beginning. We had a practice instituted of shutting all wells in for a week and took pressures during that time every year.

4. Was that the data made available to Mr. Nichols in the course of his study?

A. Yes, sir.

". You have heard Mr. Michols testify, are his findings made in connection with the study of this field - have they confirmed or altered your own conclusions?

A. Yes, it has convinced me that on a lot of the wells we have drilled in the middle of the field on closer spacings we will never get our money back out of them - it isn't economical.

Q. Did your figures on the total reserves of gas on 160 acres correspond with the figures Mr. Nichols has given us?

A. I would say, if anything, they would probably be a little less.

Q. Your figures would be less than his?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. What experience have you had in connection with unitization or more simple form of commutisation of separately owned tracts?

A. Well, during the last 12 years we have unitized about seven different tracts into 160 acre drilling units. These have included fee land and federal land, so far they have not included any state land.

Q. Have you used the so-called short form of commutization agreement in these?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Has your experience been satisfactory or unsatisfactory?

A. So far it has worked very well, it hasn't taken long to get them approved.

Q. Have you commutized federal lend with fee land?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now about commutized with federal and federal?

A. I think we are working on one at the present time but it isn't completed.

Q. In general, your experience has been good and delay has not been too bady

A. Right.

MR. LEA:

If the Commission please, we would like now to offer in evidence Exhibits which have been identified as Petitioner's exhibits 1 to 4 respectively.

COMMISSION: R MIL'S:

Exhibits received.

MR. LEA:

.

Mr. Foster Morrell wrote a letter regarding this proceeding in his letter suggested he would have no objection to the use of it in this proceeding. It may be well known that Mr. Morrell, and I presume his predecessors, have participated to some extent in the 160 acre spacing condition which generally prevails at the present time.

He writes under date of February 10, 1948 - -

"UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR GEOLOGICAL SURVEY

> P. 0. Box 997 Roswell, New Mexico February 10, 1948

Mr. Willis L. Lea, Jr. Southern Union Production Company Burt Building Dallas, Texas

Dear Mr. Lea:

"Reference is made to your letter of January 26, enclosing for our information a copy of Southern Union Production Company's petition forwarded to the New Mexico Oil Conservation Commission requesting an order, after notice and hearing fixing spacing requirements for wells hereafter drilled in the Kuts Canyon-Fulcher Basin gas fields, San Juan County, New Mexico. You requested our opinion concerning the proper spacing of wells in these fields.

"The essential facts presented in your petition are substantiated by the records of this office, and, accordingly, this office concurs in your request for the establishment of a well sprcing plan with a minimum of one well to 160 acres to promote orderly development without waste in the Kutz Canyon and Fulcher Basin gas fields.

"As most of the lands in these fields are public lands of the United States, it is the desire of this office to encourage uniform and economic development and greatest ultimate recovery of gas from these fields. This dan be accompliched only so long as snassonable profit can be secured from capital invested. Federal leases have been developed generally on a well spacing pattern of one well to 160 acres, except where necessary to protect properties from closer spacing by offset operators.

"Only where the market demand and marketing facilities are unlimited for continued expansion with the completion of additional outlets or producing gas wells can necessary profit be obtained to continue development. These conditions are not present in the fields under consideration. Hence the drilling of unnecessary wells does not proportionately increase the ultimate volume of gas available for sale but instead tends to reduce the margin of profit of all wells in the fields and to discourage proper development of the fields.

"Future development at a well density consistent with the majority of past development is essential to prevent injury to neighboring leases or properties and to protect equilibria involved. "There is no objection to your use of this letter in connection with your petition to the New Mexico Oil Conservation Commission. As this office is very interested in the subject, I expect to be present at the hearing in Santa Fe on February 17.

Very truly yours,

/s/ Foster Morrell

FOSTER MORRELL Supervisor, Oil and Gas Operations"

MR. LEAI

I would like to have this in evidence as Petitioner's Exhibit No. 5. I believe that is all we have at the present time.

(Exhibit No. 5 admitted).

DUDLEY CORNELL:

I would like to ask Mr. Nichols is it a fact that the conclusions which you have drawn from your work here would support an application for pro-ration of gas in this field on a 160 acre basis just as fully as it does on 160 acre spacing?

A. My conclusion is that there is adequate drainage by one well on a 160 acre block.

Q. The petition here would really prevent the wells being drilled on 40 acres - have you given any thought to the wells on 40 acre spacing?

A. My purpose was to determine if adequate drainage can be obtained by one well, on a 160 acre block.

Q. If 160 acre spacing in this field is used, do you have any suggestions in handling the present wells on 40 acre songing?

A. I have not given the problem any consideration. I think you will find some precedent set up, however.

MR. LEA:

We have always visualized this matter as a spacing matter. For that reason I am sure Mr. Nichols has not approached it on pro-ration.

MR. CORNELL:

I cannot see how the two problems can be separated, I was wondering if you would ignore the situation.

HR, LEAS

I would make a statement - Here is the way we see it, this field is 20 years oli or more. It has been growing and developing by fits and starts ever since, but it is an old field with a rather loose spacing regulation which has prevailed during most of the time. It is only natural there have grown up several inequities where the spacing of units is too close to larger adjoining units. I have your situation in mind among others. Pro-ration may have to come to the Kutz Canon-Fulcher Basin field on a proper pro-ration proposal. I can say now my Company will have no objection to pro-ration but we will be very much interested because of the additional burden cast upon us by pro-ration, and I think the Commission will be very much interested because of the additional burden of administering pro-ration.

MR. CORNELL:

ŀ

You have referred to my own situation, makes it personal - I would like to ask Mr. Thompson one or two questions.

You have an 80 acre lease on which you have two wells known as the Cornell-SUG 3 and 4?

MR. THOMPSON:

That is right, yes, sir.

MR. CORNELL:

And that 80 is entirely surrounded by acreage I am interested in.

MR. THOMPSON:

I am not sure it is surrounded on the south.

MR. CORNELL:

Yes, sir. How far do you think those two wells are draining?

MR. THOMPSON

They are draining considerably more than 80 acres.

(CONTINUED ON PAGE 17)

s. In this study you any it is dealeded, necessary will enter a suld you asy this draining would go finilo from the addition.

A. Do, i wouldn't may it is draining that has the book would be a half section in each direction.

w. Presupposing 180 acres spectrum, the drainage would be noteens the next 40 acres?

å. 198, Sir.

G. A well located such as that would at least drain the 40 acros adjoining it?

A. That is correct.

4. With an 80 acre lease - 2 - 40 acres on east, mest, north and south, 6 - 40!s plus the 80 you have, your two wells would be effective draining 640 acres?

A. In the petition we are asking for 160 acres minimum spacing and the purpose is to prevent what is happening right there.

G. I as simply making a little argument for this pro-ration; wouldn't it be true those two wells would be draining effective 640 acres:

A. Possibly so. We are contending one well would drain 180.

Q. If your spacing rule is put into effect without pro-ration those two wells will continue to drain 640 acres.

WR. LEA:

I don't believe the witness is in agreement with you that the two wells were draining 640 acros. It is conceded that one well will drain 160 acros.

MR. SILVER:

You make a presumption that Mr. Michols has proved that. I don't believe the Commission has yet admitted that.

MR. LEAS

My statement was I did not think the ovidence submitted would substantiate the idea, or that the witness agreed, that the two wells usual drain the 640 acres.

ER. SILVER:

to one has admitted that a coll sound drain the 180.

12R. Leak

ì

ne are siller to press to a consolid ten are collected to in the terms of the collected to in the later.

33. attal at

The area all they be an effectively on a consideration and approach.

ita 1123

the billions i could allo any attained in blacky, on this the devices.

MR. CORNELL:

I agree with the witnesses from the standpoint of the economics of drilling these wells on the 40 acres, but the spacing rule without a follow-up with a pro-ration order, I think is just doing one-half the job, and creates additional inequalities. I would like to suggest what we need for this field is a pro-ration order, ratable taking and common purchaser act. I would like to suggest to this Commission that some leader appoint a committee to present such legislation for the next legislature, that it be carefully prepared and operators have a chance to voice their suggestions and at this next legislature all the operators combined with their influence, to the end we do obtain a common purchaser and ratable taking law for gas. I think there has been changeon some operators in this subject. I think it lies into this application here.

I would like to ask another question - Mr. Nichols, with reference to your interference test of the seven wells, isn't it a fact that the original pressures on those wells differ and that their open flow potentials are different.

MR. NICHOLS:

That is right, I am sure it is.

Q. Very considerable difference isn't there?

A. I can sheck them and see.

Q. I would like to develop more fully in the economics in those wells, the amount of gas withdrawn and their open flow potentials.

A. In the interference test all the measurements were made on one well, the Walker No. 1. Irregardless of the open flow potentials and the pressures on the surrounding wells the pressures on this well built up to the fifth day and then dropped back. The only difference which the open flow potentials of the surrounding wells might make would be in the quantity of gas produced from them during the test, which in turn might influence only the magnitude of the pressure drop during that time.

MR. THOMPSON:

Hudson #2 well had an open flow in January 1948 of 580 MOF, McGrath #1 of 416 MCF, McGrath #2 140 MCF, McGrath #3, 396 MCF - Walker No. 1 584 MCF

Q. I did not have in mind proving anything particularly, but thought that information should be in the record.

RR. SILVER:

How are these wells gauged?

MR. NICHOLS:

The Walker No. 1 well and a recording instrument on the well head.

Q. What kind of recording instrument, dead weight?

MR. THOMPSON:

Bristol Spring Gauge - recording gauge.

Q. Hr. Michols, you are familiar with spring gauges. To your knowledge isn't it true spring gauges have variation of five to 10 pounds. In use of spring gauges they have to be tested against larger tested gauges?

A. That is true in any type of gauge.

 Q_{\bullet} In Sections 11 and 14, township 29 N, range 10 %, wasn't there considerable variation in rock pressure when the wells were brought in?

A. I think that is brought out in the exhibit showing initial field pressures and pressures of wells drilled hater in the life of the field.

Q. Isn't it true that the pressure measured on a well is in part functional of the length of time in which that well is allowed to remain idle?

A. Your build-up time certainly affects the pressure measurements.

Q. Isn't it also true that the permeability changes and that the lower the permeability the longer the pressure build-up required to reach stabilization?

A. I am not aware the permeability changes in a given field.

G. I have the permeability as given me here. (Quoting certain figures noted from evidence).

A. The permeabilities you are reading there are individual measurements on individual feet - one sample for each foot. That is normal in any kind of reservoir. Permeability of a given foot is constant and does not change during life of the well.

Q. Isn't it true the permeability in this well, which is the only well in the field that has core analysis, is not a good test of the permeability?

A. In what manner?

Q. In that one well, if the variation of permeability is so great from fost to foot vertically, then conceiveably the permeability from foot to foot horizontally is just as great.

A. Getting back to your point, it is true that the amount of our core analysis data is on the low side. I pointed out early in my discussion that we had in that instance a minimum of data, and that we had to assume certain things - for example the deviation factor.

Q. I have no objections to your deviation value.

A. Along that same line of thought we have a minimum of permeability data but we used what we had, which is the best we can do.

G. The point I was attempting to bring out was the very serious effect permeability would have on your concept of drainage across 160 acres - I wanted to point the manner in which they affect that.

A. I think we can approach it from this angle; the permeability is a measure of the rate at which a well can produce, but not a measure of the total amount it will produce. Permeability times feet will be an index of the open flow. Potentials on every well in the field are not exactly the same.

4. That is exactly right.

FR. 210128008

Would you wind stating what you think aimises spealing should be?

AL SILVERS

We have a field of one sum on which we own considerable part or sujority of acreage in the San Juan Basin that has alcost exactly similar reservoir conditions. Any decision the Countission might make with respect to your field will certainly have a bearing on a field alcost exactly like it geologically. So have no opinion as to what the well spacing should be in this field, we are only interested in finding out what the most economic spacing would be. Therefore, we are vitally interested in this case. That will determine what the economic spacing is in our field. Therefore, I want to bring out some of the inadequate data presented by Mr. Nichols. The fact that an additional test should be made which may aid the Commission to determine the type of drainage on 160 acre spacing they would want, but by 160 acre spacing the data presented today, I do not think is adequate. By meeting with Mr. Nichols I believe we could find out.

MR. NICHOLS:

Back to about the last point I made in regard to tetal production from certain blocks - that is based on porosity. It does not tie back into permeability or productivity.

MR. SILVER:

As I stated before, I thought you were over generous in the amount of gas in place.

A. That fact tied with the actual production from some of these wells is pretty hard to overlook.

MR. SILVER:

Let's go into the problem of reservoir development - each well is a sink and each field is in itself a larger sink within a known gas area. I think there are men in this audience who know there have been wells drilled outside this field which have encountered gas and that gas has been non-commercial. It is entirely conceivable this is the only commercial gas production in the area. If you have a sink here what is the optimum number of wells draining this basin.

A. That is an economic problem. I think the productivity of the wells is related directly to permeability. I think the fact that there has been greater production from these wells on the 160 acre block than the total original gas in place proves very definitely drainage across those areas.

MR. SILVER:

I do not believe this whole heartedly myself, but as a point of reasonable doubt, Mr. Thompson, you have drilled many wells in the area, the United States Geological Survey in its professional paper No. 134, by Mr. J. B. Reeside, Jr., gives the thickness of the Picture Cliff sand zone in this zone between 75 and 225 gross feet.

MR. THOMPSON:

The gross and effective thickness are two different things.

MR. SILVER:

Q. We have cored as much as 25 feet of such sand and found the core bleeding gas all the way.

BR. THOMPSONS

This appears in wells of that type as well as wells of thicknesses of 10 and 12 feet.

MR. SILVER:

Q. You get some influx of drainage of gas upward from the lower permeability zones?

A. Is it in the lower part?

HR. SILVER:

Q. Usually it is in the lower part but you get streaks of higher permeability with lower parmeability.

MR, CORDELL:

Mr. Michols, you stated in your opinion 72% of the gas underlying 160 acres would be withdrawn under 160 acres spacing - how such do you think under 40 acres spacing? MR. NICH LS:

I said it was, if we want to assume the abandonment pressure of 150#, it would be 72%.

Q. What would be the recovery from 40 acre block as compared to 160 acres?

A. You would have 2 as much gas.

Q. How much gas is going to be missed in the sand - approximately 28% of the gas?

A. It would be the same purcentage if your pressure was brought to the same pressure regardless of size of the unit.

MR. SILVER:

You could withdraw more gas on 40 acre spacing than 160 acres,

A. That is an economical problem. I don't know why you could.

Q. This isn't economics, I am just helping Mr. Cornell get his point.

A. You could take it to absolute zero pressure but you would be there an awful long time.

MR. ENGLISH:

Finishing the wells - the Picture Cliff wells have all get coal and water just above the pay zone. I wonder if it would make any difference in the finishing of the well - if it would make any difference in your pressures. We drilled a well and got $\frac{1}{2}$ more gas - we cemented off some of that gas, I wondered if that would make any difference in your pressure?

A. If you comented the casing above that water it would make some differ-

Q. Some of these wells you are getting your figures off of - if they are wells of bad completion jobs and have some water in the well bore.

MR. THOMPSON:

We have siphon lines in every one, even then we get pressure that will be 10 to 20 pounds low.

MR. NICHOLS:

If your well bore goes into the main part of Picture Cliff sand your buildup on that well is determined by the permeability - your pressure would be all right.

CORTISSIONER MILES:

One question was asked I did not get the answer on - someone asked if it would be more complete recovery of gas with a well on 40 acres than 160 acres.

MR, MICHOLS:

If your pressure over the whole block, whether it be 40 or 160 acres, is drawn down to 150# your gas recovery percentage would be the same recovery of gas from a 40 acre block would be a of the gas recovered whom a 160 acre block.

IR. LEA:

Let me get this question clear - take a 40 acre unit as opposed to a 160 acre unit. If during the connercially productive life of this field you had one well on 100 acres as opposed to one on 40 acres, in the conter of each unit, and no drainage between the units, would you be able to get from a 40 acre tract more than 25% of what you would get out of a 160 acre tract - during the productive life of the entire field. For your ultimate productivity of gas during the productive life of the field would recovery be substantially greater in the case of four wells equally spaced on 160 acres than with one wall in the case, or is it just a question of time?

LIR. NICHOLS:

If your pressure is stabilized, if you draw down that whole area to 150% the same in any geographical area, if your complete 40 acre block is drawn down to exactly 150%, you would get $\frac{1}{4}$ of what is recoverable on the 160 acre block drawn down to exactly 150%. Those things are true because equal withdrawals in a given unit will be as your pressure is drawn down; just the same in a large area as a small. You will get the gas out one way or the other. It is this question of drainage from 160 acres being adequate and I believe it is.

MR. LEA:

Given a reasonable period of time, which might be measured by the economic life of the field, would your pressure equalization of 160 acres with one well be substantially all the way across that 160 acres?

A. If your permeability from one area to another is substantially the same, whether foot by foot does not matter - the permeability times the feet is uniform geographically, the answer is yes.

WR. LEA:

Nould you be able to state from the study of this field and from the data available that there exists, generally speaking, that type of permeability - are you satisfied there is drainage across 160 acre tracts by virtue of permeability of the areas?

A. I believe about the first thing we introduced was that those wells drilled later in the life of the field had initial pressures considerably lower than the field initial of 585%. Those were taken where they might happen to hit and have indicated that generally speaking you have sufficient permeability for drainage over large areas.

MR. ALBERT GREER:

In your first exhibit you have shown these wells - the new wells come in with pressure between the old field pressure and the initial field pressure. In other words, you found a pressure differential which here approximates 100%. You made the statement that the wells would probably have to be abandoned at 150% pressure which I assume to be the seven day shut-in pressure you have recorded.

MR. NICHOLS:

I do not believe I studed that they had to be abandoned at 150%. This 150% arbitrarily has been set as possible abandonment pressure.

MR. GREER:

ì

There would still be a pressure differential between the old walls and new wolls.

MR. MICHHS:

These wells vary from well to well. Even drilled at a given they there is as much as 70% difference from well to well. It would depend on where you drilled your well.

SR. GREERS

Too, isn't the differential increasing as the pressure in the old field declines.

THE PROPERTY AND A STREET STRE

Tagnituda, yes. It is not declining by percentagos.

HR. UNEERI

At 150# for the field we may expect a differential of 150 or 200#.

MR. TROMPSON:

I don't think there will be any now wells at that point.

MR. GREER:

I was assuming there would be - doesn't that 200# represent additional recoverable gas if the wells had been drilled on closer specing?

HR. THOMPSON:

If you found a position to drill where that was true - but that would be unsconomical, don't you think?

MR. GREERI

I think that ought to be decided by the Commission. Approximately 5/4 of the gas originally in the place would still be there.

MR. THOMPSON:

This well - a theoretical well - what is the actual pressure - 150 plus 200# - - -

HR. GREER:

Would there be a greater recovery of gas with denser spacing - there will be more, just how much you are just about to figure out.

MR. MICHOLS:

If your pressure is 365# and initial 600# you would have approximately 61% of your pressure remaining or approximately 1,100,000,000 cu. ft. of gas. At 150# we have a little over 500,000,000 remaining, which would amount to a difference of 500 or 600 million that could be obtained between 365# and 150#.

MR. OREER:

Which represents a very large volume of gas when you consider a large field.

MR. NICHOLS:

On a 160 acre block at 5# a thousand, it would be about \$30,000 derived.

MR. GREER:

If the operator could reduce the cost from 14 or 15 thousand dollars to 10 thousand dollars he would have a ratio of 3 to 1 and could do it economic-ally.

HEL, NICHOLS:

If your drilling cost could be reduced that great, those conditions would hold true.

MR. GREER:

That is one thing possibly an operator could do.

AR. MICHOLS:

It doesn't prove that closer spacings would recover more gas - if your pressure reduction is such that you have equalization of pressure of 150% over the entire area you will recover the same amount of gas regardless of well density.

MR. GREER:

The information you present here does not substantiate that fact. The wells open with most bottom hole pressure and the well you were testing had a draw down, very small draw down compared to very many of the oil and gas fields in the state.

We have a great draw down but spacings are not changed. The operators believed they would recover more oil or gas due to the fact that they get greater production. Draw down of approximately 400% in adjoining wells that caused draw-down of 2% in the adjoining wells was very small.

MR. NICHOLS:

But is an indication of differential.

MR. GREERS

You will have that anywhere in the United States. The question is one of how much will it draw down and how much will it affect it.

MR. THOMPSON:

I think these wells shown in the outlying area - show that.

MR. GREER:

What percentage?

MR. THOMPSON:

It is 150# compared with 600#. You are assuming pressure of some theoretical amount in the outlying area.

MR. GREER:

You do not have evidence to support that and we don't know it will do it.

MR. THOMPSON:

You have got drainage across there.

MR. GREER:

Drainage, but how much drainage and at the end of the time how much gas is left in the reservoir that you could have produced? Spacing on 160 acres it would be adjoining wells on your spacings. We can take wells in most of the fields of New Mexico and West Texas and you will find the same type of pressure interference between wells on adjoining units. That factor alone is not sufficient evidence, it is a minor important consideration. The well spacing itself - it is going to result to the unrecoverable gas and cost of drilling the wells. There is a question it will be a considerable amount of gas left.

-24-

IN. THOMOSONE

I don't follow you. If you drilled a well on 160 acres - we are going to abandon that particular well at 150%, you could not possibly have 360% pressure inside the unit.

MR. GREER:

We are not talking about now wells - two or three miles in some cases, in most cases they are off to the sides - the average.

MR. THOMESON:

In some cases they are 160 acres from the old wells.

MR. GREER:

When you have that you have no differential at all.

MR. THEMPSON:

All these wells had not been produced at all when this was taken. That was a dead section, no production being taken out there at all.

MR. GRUER:

Let's take a close one - 416, that is a difference of 60% on a 160 acre mit.

MR. THOMPSON:

This well wasn't being produced at the time. It had just been drilled. When you connect it with the pipe line it will immediately start declining. You would have an area of 1/4 or 1/2 mile - overywhere else where you had a well connected with the pipeline it will be coming down in pressure.

MR. GREER:

So would the well drilled five miles away, but how far would it deplets the area? Mr. Morrell said something about inadequate market for all the wells and the drilling of additional wells would further decrease the take from any individual well. It was his opinion 160 acre spacing would tend to alleviate that situation. It appears to me 160 acres would tend to aggravate rather than alleviate. There are a great many wells now drilled that his on the inside of any particular block but the company drilled the well, which is greater than 1320 feet from the edge of the lease. This well then does not force the offset on the adjoining lease. If the 160 acres spacing is taken up a great many more offsets will be forced and required than is now existing in the field on 40 acre spacing ruling. If we take this information presented today as corroct, a man would have the right and privilege to any to the land omicks — I do not believe I can conveniently drill the well on 4 decrea - it is possible he can unitize with concern or is would have a reasonable choice for not drilling a well himself. 160 acres, he would not have the forced or reason for not drilling the well and you would have additional would not belied or could for a forced, i which for the 160 acre spacing you require acres 30 or 40 effects in the field.

R. DAt

- 1

You assume that if the requested order is catered, any 160 more unit which about a 160 more unit you have got to have a well defilled on 117

19. 68 FRI

T presure that to be so, if the forelasist grasse tate ruling. It is not a 40 acro ruling and I believe it would be the same for 180.

N. UAL

4. If you are predicting that the generated is joing to do that is one Wilmy, but if you are assorbing the approxity for such affacting I would be inclined.

to disagree with you.

A. The government thinks this is the logical thing to do. It will depend on how your lease is written up. I believe they are federal leases in the Kuts Canon area - - -

WR. ENGLISH:

The majority of them.

MR. GREER:

I believe this should be taken into consideration.

MR. THOMPSON:

Nichols and I checked the amount of gas withdrawals from the two fields for last year. The average take from the whole field was 17% of its open flow.

MR. ORENER:

You feel any wells in those fields would be granted an allowable to what it has been in the past, regardless of the production and spacing.

MR. THOMPSON:

I did not follow you at all.

MR. GREER:

I believe if you will show the government screage in these fields you will find approximately 15 or 20 additional locations which will be forced if the 160 acre ruling is upheld.

HR. THOMPSON:

Why on 160 if it is not being forced on 401

LR. GREER:

Some of the wells now drilled are more than 1320 feet from the edge of the loase.

MR. THOMPSON:

I believe that is a problem of the United States Goological Survey.

IR. SFORRICR:

Al do you mean to say that the distance of 1320 feet is the offset distance. If then drilling a woll closer than 1.350 foot to your acroage then you will be forced to drill an offset. - By whose rules and regulations?

Ma. GROURS

. .

Mr. Horrell will you contradict or and to thatt

MR. MRR. MAR.

I would like to sake my statement all at one blue.

M. SPARCER:

Is it reasonable to believe that the price of gas in Weis area will remain at by you thousand and if so how long. I as not using facetious in the least - Mr. Mohola! figures were necessarily predicted on 5β a thousand but also the prices were assumed.

MR. GREERI

Additional recoverable gas left in the ground more from it and possibly additional wells. Just how much gas would be left is the question.

COMMISSIONER MILTS:

The point I am interested in is as to the recovery. It may become more valuable - but the recovery is what I am interested in.

MANUEL SANCHEZI

Wouldn't your regulations have to be changed then? It is a matter to be considered at the time. Then the time comes if you can recover it below 150% economically, isn't that the time to come in and pass regulations?

CO-MISSIONER MILLS:

If it could be recovered now that would be the time to consider it.

HR. SANCHEZ:

Has there ever been any basic figure fixed upon which recovery at the present time could not be had economically?

MR. MICHOLS:

I think that varies both with your drilling cost and operating expense in any given areas; I think it would be considerably misleading for me t - try to give a point such as that.

IR. GREERI

It is conceivable all gas could be recovered on 159 acre basis - it is better for the operators to get together and decide among themselves as to what they prefer. Certainly an operator is not going to drill a woll closer than he feels he can recover gas economically in and at the same time he would like to be able to drill on smaller area if he feels he can.

MR. LEAT

- }

Mr. Cornissioner, I would like to make a state ont. Mr. Spurgier asked the question regarding the price of pass. To forth been that is going to happe to the price of gau in San Juan Donney or any other Location. I only know the price of gas in this general area has increased within the lost 18 wonths from 3 of 54. The concensus of opinion along producers is the b the price of gas will increase. The all know her raise of gas in a size preader of gas the stress from the dependence. on many factors, not the losst of which is the about at get and lette in that aron. I don't know thather 150° or 100° or some office figure is the aburdonish's pressure for this field, but it shribbe to that the operating costs of the preducers or of the gathering company is a real and positive barelor, not only on the value of the gas but on the abandomout pressure for the field. Inless I an bally Informed, I bolieve Southers Union aredustion Company in the operations in Unio Kutz Canon - Falchor basin area is required to visit every wall on a daily or twice daily basis for the purpose of obecking the well as to the operating condition. deving openhed up in that field for a long time it has been our view, as ovidenced by our own operations, so have operated on a backs of one well to 169 acros - we believe one well will reasonably and occupately arain 160 cores. Mayons in exhibited to his views, and ours should not measuredly provelly henover, to he a goes to see affect to ditter a suffer or college for own conclusions and while it is probable that in any given period you and get core gas out by putting is a wells on 160 acres; it is also true and meaned by denied that you do have drainage, counter drainage, cross drainage and drainage

from wide areas. If the present spacing rule prevails - I have heard some comments that made no wonder whother someone would really like to see 240 or 320 acre spacing, but so long as the present 40 acre ruling prevails in these fields some 20 years old - where pressures have declined without exception because of adjoining wells - we contend there is ample drainage across 160 acres. 1/8 of the gas has already been taken out. To leave the spacing like it is will permit or perhaps encourage the drilling of wells on a 40 acre basis, and is actually going to reduce the value of gas produced from that field because of additional operating cost, ultimately, to the man interested in getting value from that gas. Hy people are convinced we should have had 160 acres in the field all the time. To a large extent we have, in fact, operated on the basis of 160 acres; it is the smallest area that we think is a proper spacing unit. It isn't really feasible to try to unitise any smaller, but if you did you would almost be compelled to go to 40 acres. There might be some gas in remote areas that will never be recovered but we cannot see the economics of it. He can see it is liable to permit and encourage the operators to drill to their own self-destruction. I think we are all interested in getting the most gas for the least money. We want all the gas we can produce consistently with reasonable investment. It will naturally take longer to get that 71% of the total reserves out of one well on 160 acres than it will take with one well on each 40 acres; as prossures get lower and lower it is naturally going to produce less.

With the Southern Union Compressor Station serving this area - it is now some 2000 HP - and the gathering lines and with 160 acre spacing prevailing we aren't concerned about our ability to get the gas out of there. There is a definite danger to anybody owning and operating in that field under a spacing rule that will permit the drilling of wells on 40 acre units. We have just had an example of it - we have some wells located on like units, under the rule of the Commission and don't criticize it. Under your rules, however, it was proposed recently to drill a well up in the nock of three 160 acre units 330 feet from each of them. Such well would require a 3 way offset and that kind of thing isn't even 40 acre spacing. He would be forced to pay compensatory royalty or drill three wells to offset - I am sure my figures are right and the distance between those wells is only 660 feet. If that is not 10 acre spacing I am badly mistaken. It is this very situation that brought this matter before this Commission. The well was re-located before it was commenced and put in the center of a 160 more unit. We sincerely have brought this thing to the Commission because we felt that something had to be done. He are drilling in an old area where 1/3 of the gas is already gone. As to the old wells on small units, the wells were drilled properly and lawfully at the time. They are there and if we had it all to do over again we wouldn't drill them in some cases. Whether that is true with some other people I don't know, but there the wells are and we cannot do anything about it. We do know that one well will drain more than 160 acres of land if given a reasonable opportunity in point of time. To suggest 180 acres because that is the generally established spacing.

COMPERSION RELATED F

Anybody also like to us's any problems h

(No response)

int we get one point straight a as an overall picture, i has ballen, show the halter has nore threasing at that particular time pertaining to thether in we part wild predere one gas from 4 wolds on the course each then i wold on 100 acros.

Sto 3. At

I would concole it is mailers that it was some partial of the part and extended core gas on 100 acro tracts by drilling i wells blan out well. It is the lighting fuctor of the open flow. I think everyone realizes that they can predate more gas per day with 4 wells that only. Our problem is to find an epident opening onth boby the removably all pairs are consolded with the Son it is a construct cannot produce more yes althought from 4 wells that from our los for an elite acre unit.

JUDAR STTHE

On behalf of the Stanolind bil Company I am instructed to advise the Commission they have no objection, but believe the spacing should be larger than the 160 acres in these pools of gas.

DUDLEY CORVELLE

Mr. A. Greer has been informal chairman of independent operators, and he asked me to ask that a copy of these exhibits be made available - and that the independent operators be allowed a rebuttal at the next meeting of the Commission.

IR. LEAT

I don't know what that means exactly, but it strikes me a little singular. We went to the extreme of mailing to each person a copy of our petition with the suggestion that we exchange information with a view to ending our business properly at this hearing. I do not comprehend exactly why it should be necessary under those conditions - adequate notice has been given and we had no request from anyone for information. We did not hear from Mr. Cornell. We are not denying the opportunity to anyone to be heard in this matter, but I believe the opportunity has been given.

SR. SILVER:

I would like to make a statement for my employer. As I said before, we have no particular desire about well spacing other than the most economical. We have a peculiar problem in San Juan Basin of having a like permeability of sand structure, productive areas which are not too well understood to the present day. We do not particularly have any preference in this field, we have a small amount of acreage on which we probably will never drill. We would like to see, if possible, additional data on this field as time goes on. So far as the 160 acre spacing is concerned, it is entirely feasible that a greater or lesser spacing might be desirable. That should be determined from the economic facts. We would like to see the data given here today given to us in some form.

CONTRESSION OR PILLISE

Mr. Les, you do not feel you can operate on less than 160 acres from an economical standpoint?

10. IFA:

· i

We sincerely think it would be a mistake to do it. Mr. Nichols' figures assume \$16,000.00 cost and a 5¢ rate on present day conditions. If you could find a spot where a well drilled could produce 535% and you drill on 40 acres, the only thing other than 160 acres that is feasible, you would recover only 37% of your investment disregarding operating cost and disregarding the fact that it would take you years to do it in. If you drill a well with 400% of pressure you would recover - assuming you had this kind of condition, exactly one-half your original investment.

马马, 中国的, 南部1

You follows have been building on pressnand off day and have names condumned the millions of fort you would get.

15115 1. 02.101234

Mr. Mohols gave it in the record.

.2. C.GLISET

f we do like to have show a like of state of gase

113. 1030月20日日

For Laberrony has doveloped the net pressor his parts of 160 energy as 1,000,000,000 Peak. If you dealt an energy of the formula press well and you will be a different to the press of the operation of the second the second of the second wells at \$16,000.00 a well - would be almost \$8,000,000.00 you would have to apend. It would be impossible to ever recover the original investment.

IR. LEAL

My statement was made on the same assumption, a 400% well could never produce the same quantity of gas as a 585% well.

MR. ENGLISH:

You follows have anything against ratable taking?

MR. LEAI

No. But about a year ago there was a bill appeared - about a year ago - and it was the most immature I have seen. If we are going to have one, let's have a good one.

COMMISSION'R MILES:

That was the only bill presented, you had the same opportuativy of anybody else to present one. The meeting was called for the purpose of discussing it and that should not be taken as an example.

MR. LEAL

I did not mean to suggest that at all, but the fact does remain that a bill was presented and we thought it a bad one and had to oppose it. Pro-ration may oppose to this field, perhaps it should. There are people in the field today that would be hurt by this. Our only question about pro-ration would be the additional burden on the operators and the Commission.

COMMISSION R MILUS:

This is a matter to come before the Legislature and not this Commission.

MR. ORDERI

1

I would like to request that the Commission consider the offsets that will be required if a 160 acre spacing ruling is upheld or in deciding on spacing ruling that they be taken into consideration; and the reason for that being considered I would refer to Mr. Foster Morrell's letter in which he remarks about the market, and the increased number of wells causing the production from each well to be so small as to make it uneconomical to drill additional wells. Also the rule 4 - 40 acres to a unit, and establishing a great number of bad spaced wells throughout the field. I doubt that the average spacing in the field exceeds 120 acres. I do not believe the retaining of the 40 acre spacing units will ase additional wells in the old field unless it does become couple itself.

EVERY A FREIMAR

I would like to clarify the points that have been raised.

First, in order to show the interest that the Federal Covernment has in the Kutz Caryon - Fulcher Basin areas, I have propared some acreage figures. A conservative estimate taking in more than 1/2 mile from present existing wells arrived at a figure of a proximitely 22,630 acres that could be considered as proven production. From the south end of Section 32 up to Section 19, 30 M, 12 M - of that acreage the federal is 16,200 or 71%, fee land 0400 mores or 20%. According to our maps there are 30 meres of state hand we could not get percentage mark on. On that proven acreage there have been 77 wells completed; 45 on government lands and 32 on fee lands. The development, 56% of the walls, against d3% for fee lands as 50 mile lands. The development, 56% of the walls, fields - Fulcher Hasta total to 18,400 - 22 lands powersted; 5% for the solution to access, 5% of the meter and 50 mile acres of the could be walls, against d3% for fee lands as 50 mile lands. The development, 5% of the walls, against d3% for fee lands and 52 on fee lands. The development, 5% of the walls, against d3% for fee lands as 50 mile lands. The development, 5% of the walls, against d3% for fee lands as 50 mile powersted; 5% for the solution of the lands of the solution of the lands of the solution of the lands of the solution.

In the Fulcher Basin fields, 40% of the wells on J. S. Land, in number 21 on U.S. land, 31 on fee land - a total of 52. Kuts Canon is a total of 10,280 acres, of the federal interest represents 98%, of the fee 4%. Twenty-five wells have been completed, 24 of those 25 wells are on our federal land, with the control we have under the lease act and federal leases in Kuts Canon, we have 96% of the asreage developed by 96% of the wells. Going back somewhat into history of the development. I think the whole picture is somewhat complicated by the variance of opinions of individuals versus companies which we always have with us, but our position is one that equity should be provided regardless of whether the operator is a major company or an individual or small company. The facts with respect to development are indicated in a very short statement I reported recently to Washington, that during the past six years wells increased from 8 as of December 31, 1941 in Fulcher Basin only to 15 as of December 31, 1944 and 51 as of December 31, 1947. A ratio of 3 to 51 or over six times increase. The field withdrawals during that period is represented by the figures of 1 billion ou. ft. for 1942, 1.9 billion in 1945, and 2.6 billion in 1947. That is a ratio of one to 2.6. We have a number of outlying producing wells but the number of wells increased 6 times and the market increased by only 2.6 on all wells in the same period. The withdrawal per unit decreased.

MR. ENGLISH:

Have they been taking all that gas?

A. They have a market for all the gas.

MR. ENGLISH:

If you are furnishing gas from Barker you wouldn't be taking as much gas from Fulcher Basin?

MR. MORRELL:

Barker comes into the pipeline south of Kuts Canyon and does not affect the deliveries in the Kuts Canyon - Fulcher Basin area.

Any market from any field will depend on deliverability of the gas from that field, and deliverability depends on the open flow capacity. You can't get away from pressure at the rate to which the wells can get it up.

MR. ENGLISH:

At one time they had the same prossure in each field. You are not going to try and tell me there isn't any more gas than before. Now do you know this field won't reach out and take in a large area?

TEL MARRELLI

This is just a matter of record of past production. The point we are called hat that you have greater increased wells than you have in the warket, which couns you will have to divey up your market.

MR. DEGISTRE

From mat I hear there is a pretty good size realed.

TX: GREER:

Inn't it natural for the pressure of gas we is to decline in any gas field? They could have taken more gas from time to thee by lowering their pressure.

MR. MOLKELGS

I don't have ab up lowered pressure in order to get sore gus. It is a matter of record in all gas publications that for protection of recorders the shadd let encode 201 of the flow. There were yours you will find that limit is estimated.

11. A. A.

The production of clubbury 14 checked by antiched and 35 of the order (Nor and

whether you hart the reservoir by lating more is certainly an open on stion.

MAR NO. UNBLER

It has been debated for the last 30 years and there has been very little proof otherwise. You are getting to the matter of rate at which a reservoir will re-charge itself. If you pull it out the fast when it dones you are going to have to sit there and wait for it.

MR. GREER.

I do not believe you dould find evidence to substantiate that.

MR. SILVER:

This field and your data given - more gas by harder draws and I believe it will be substantiated.

IR. THOMPSON

I said the average annual take was 17% of its open flow, I don't know of a field in the country that is being given a better pull than that.

IR. MORRELL:

In the earlier days of development, there were certain spacing exceptions unde before it was determined that a 160 acro spacing was the most economical and best for the reservoir - at that time by agreement with both Southern Union Oas and Dudley Cornell in connection with the development of the Fulcher Basin field, the only one active at that time - we set up 180 acre units. P.A.W. had the 640 acre limitation and at the request of Cornell and Southern Union Gas, several 160 acre exceptions were made.

MR. CORMELL:

Southern Union Gas refused to join with me in my application at that time.

MR. MORRELL:

The fact was that we had 160 acre spacing and the Gil Conservation Commission adopted an order for that field - Order 551 effective in June 1943.

On application from private land operators and after a hearing of the Commission, the Commission cancelled the order. The Interstate Compact Consission made a recommendation that well spacing adopted during the war should be continued wherever feasible to protect equities. A great additional development - this increase from 15 to 31 over a three year period has been to a considerable extent caused by the recent development on private hands along the Aniver. River. I think they are entitled to all the gas undern ath their ground and should be given considerations, but (don't think that not age when d act up spacing for the entite field. That the Consission could do and should do has been pointed out in the testimeny. The only other thing (could see at this time would be by legislation for pro-ration, as The Council proposed. As I understand the petition of the Couldars that the development from now on and will not edversely affect any existing wolls up to this they. In answer to some of the questions that have been related, its Great her given in some ideas. Maybe up on the field whet have been related, its for development from

DR. EXPLORA

That is what we are afraid of.

12. 19 2.253

The question of officies is a multiplicity of your lease terms, lease tores on private leads are more strict them on federal land. (I the operator does ask do what the short thinks he should, he can take it hat court at hype base to doint on officies. The public lands leases allow considerable discretion with discretion is in favor of the operator. Companyation regality is called for in liou of estual drilling. We made this as to each location and wherever a possible location might be we take into consideration all known facts. If we think there is drainage we will call on year to show cause why you shouldn't drill. You have a chance to show us and if the information is adequate that is all there is to it. Our office at Roswell has leaned over backwards on the spacing matter in Fulcher Basin, primarily because of the small type of production obtained. To let this thing come to a head where it can get to a point of development -I have in mind a tract surrounded by four wells, immediately adjoining that 180 on which we have asked Byrd-Frost to drill one well, but if the Commission does not see fit to protect the equity of operators who have already drilled and allows unnecessary wells to be drilled on 40 acre tracts = - =

MR. ENGLISH:

What well is that?

MR. MORRELL:

That is the Byrd-Frost Hudson.

MR. ENGLISH:

You don't consider that a gas well?

MR. MORRELL:

That is a gas well of the type being completed in that field.

If the Commission does not see fit to set up a minimum spacing for that, more than 40 acres and up to 160, it may become necessary for us to essentially draw a fence around private operations by requiring offsets where we have a block of acreage on 160 acre spacing. We don't want to do that, that is false economy. The testimony presented has shown this is more a matter of economics than anything else. I would like to take exception to Mr. Greer's statements as to the gas left in the ground. There will not be any more gas in the 160 than the 40. I would also like to correct a statement made by Mr. Silver - you said you had an identical field.

MR. SILVER:

I meant the geological boundaries - type of formation, age, conditions of accumulation, everything but the pressure.

MR. NOTRELL:

Would you name that for the record - the name of the field?

MR. SILVER:

· 1

Manco field - two producing sones, Fesa Verde Sorvation and Joint Medbout sandstone. 4400 feet and approximate y 5051 feet.

MEL MONTERLE

Pressure 18 about which?

TR. 3707.24

The pressure is around 1300", the only difference, the accountation is currents of gas the limits of the field and their field is not limited by geological conditions so much as by economical factors of production and develop ont. The feel we have a field limited the same way by economic factors of production and development. The geological factors closely approximate these in Fulcher Easin - Kutz Canon.

MR. CORNELLS

I understood you ware talking of an artire different reservair. You sude the above and what was done in the Fulsion Basin and Kutz Canon would a ply directly to your field.

MR. SILVER:

I meant what action the Commission might take on low permeability reservoir, it is economically a marginal reservoir, has to be produced as such. We feel also our reservoir might be marginal reservoir and will have to be produced as such. The action of the Commission in this case will have some bearing on our field.

MR. MORRELLS

Did you have in mind a spacing of 160 acres or more.

MR. SILVER:

Our pressure is greator. We could not conceivably see less than 320 acrespacing.

MR. MORRELLI

As I recall, the south of your present wells at San Juan, the river crosses your structures on which there is considerable land. The same question could arise in the Blanco area as in Fulcher Basin.

It may be a good idea to make an application to the Oil Conservation Commission before it gets out of hand.

MR. SILVER:

We feel we cannot discuss it with the Gil Conservation Commission without a geological survey.

KR. LEA:

Yours is a new field?

MR. SILVER:

No, it is fully as old as Fulcher Basin.

MR. MORRELL:

I would like to mention for the information of the Commission - I think Governor Miles mentioned something about 5¢ gas - I think the operators in Fulcher Basin -Kuts Canon should feel very fortunate that they are receiving 5¢ mof because there is no other gas produced in the State of New Mexico that is getting 5¢ per mof. The standard price in Les County - the bask you can get on normal sale is 5% mof.

I do say, as stated in this lotter, the 160 sore spacing is a nonecomp thing to protoot all parties who have drilled wells - to protoot these from losing the money they have invested - the questions that have been asked indicates a lack of knowledge of what may happen in the future on the part of some individual operators who may be making investments and end up in the red. If we have operators losing comey it is going to discourage development. We work to keep operators on a profitable basis.

TR. F.GLESHE

If we get 160 nerr appeding and if we word to drill a well in Farmington.

TR. M. ADDAN

Bouldn't have any offact.

CONTRACTOR OF SEVEN

Lagana bere is granian as sheke and be should

The factor and the state

Evended Dim de person à dissue poblicers from ferrores la buir Jussi d'amby, est a l'arte de la companye d'arte de la companye. They will be considered by the Consission and included in the record.

12. LTA:

While all these statements have been made without the benefit of the testimony I have some other statements for the record.

One from the Nestern Natural Gas Company expressing approval of the plan, and one from J. J. Hudson. There seems to be several spots of concern about exceptions; I guess we have taken it for granted that exceptions would be provided by the Commission. There will be and there are situations in which if the operator can find it economically feasible to drill he should be permitted to do so, on petition to this Commission describing what he expects to do and be given full consideration whatever spacing unit should be adopted. That applies not only in the well developed field but in the flanking areas where open flows and permeability are a little out of the trend. The oitisens from Farmington seem concerned over the statement in the petition that the Commission's order should govern the field or area as it might be extended. The only purpose of that is to make unnecessary new orders of the Commission on account of extensions. The Commission's order should include the immediate surrounding area of the field as it is extended; otherwise, it could only be controlled by repeated orders of the Commission. I did not suppose anyone had the idea this field would include other developed areas. The Commission's order should have a provision to include this field and exclude other producing areas. So far as other areas are concerned it strikes us there is not sufficient information to this Commission or to the operator to know what is needed. There is no reason to prevent this Commission from entering, on petition, whatever additional orders might be necessary.

IR. MORRELLI

Of the wells drilled 71% of the total and 98% in Kutz Ganon and 54%, I believe, in Fulcher Basin are on Federal land. I would like to add we have had in the past several applications and one current for relief an account of high operating costs, for relief from routals on public land leases from \$1.00 an acre to 25¢ an acre. In granting those the Department has recognized the low roturn. We have one by Mr. Carroll and Mr. Carroll has developed his own lease on 160 acre specing and still needs reduction on the rental.

This increased number of wells and the arnual rate of withdramals at 2.6 billion for 1947 and estimated for 1946 approximately the same. Fifty one gas wells in Fulcher Basin \$15,000 or \$16,000 per well for cost of drilling. You can add your taxes, you would have in the neighborhood of \$1,000 to \$1,500 not per year, in the neighborhood of \$100 per month. That is the situation if you got into excess wells it will continue to decrease. Instead of \$100 to \$160 per conth you get \$75 to \$100 per month.

193. 0082231

Byrd-Frost encourages specing not loss than 100 serves to the well, but us are concerned with this offerst proposition and also feel when the boundaries of the field is successful these should be seen indicated given on the location of wolls loss that 1/2 wild the partible, and the ski be a little datities between

12. SUMBL

The geological limitation of the field to have but discussing will be more by economics than by peology.

itta destribut

J vill coy as wrote.

MESS PERSONAL

terrating to the offert does acale terrar Dere is at about the wa

MR. MORRELLI

I am afraid we would have to differ, anything is a structure.

R. GRAHANI

What area did the proposed order apply to?

IR. THOMPSONS

Approximate area is described in the application.

COMMISSIONER MILES:

Anybody else any question to ask or any statement to make?

The Commission is going to take this case under advisement and anyone who wants to file a written statement to the Commission, we will be glad to have you do so.

NOTICE OF PUBLICATION STATE OF NEW MEXICO OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION

The State of New Mexico, by its Oil Conservation Commission, hereby gives notice, pursuant to law, of the following public herrings to be held February 17, 1948, beginning at 10:00 o'clock a.m. on that day in the City of Santa Fe, New Mexico:

STATE OF NEW FEXICO TO:

All named parties in the following cases, and notice to the public:

Case No. 126

In the matter of the petition of Southern Union Production Company for an order fixing the spacing of wells in the Kutz Canyon and Fulcher Basin gas fields of San Juan County (as they may be extended) on the basis of one well to a drilling unit of approximately 160 acres with suitable provisions for anyrelated matters including special approval of unorthodox well locations where necessary.

Given under the seal of the Oil Conservation Commission of New Mexico, at Santa Fe, New Mexico, on January 26, 1947.

STATE OF NEW MEXICO

OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION

SPURFUR, Secretary